Agenda Packet Page 1 of 238

MunicipaL WATER DISTRICT
Committed to Excellence

AINBOW
.

_BOARD MEETING

I

¥
L

RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Tuesday, April 26, 2016
Open Session - Time: 1:00 p.m.

THE PURPOSE OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING IS TO DISCUSS THE ATTACHED AGENDA

District Office 3707 Old Highway 395 Fallbrook, CA 92028

Board Agenda Policies

Board of Directors Meeting Schedule Regular Board meetings are normally scheduled for the 4" Tuesday
of the month with Open Session discussions starting time certain at 1:00 p.m.

Breaks It is the intent of the Board to take a ten minute break every hour and one-half during the meeting.

Public Input on Specific Agenda ltems and those items not on the Agenda, Except Public Hearings Any

person of the public desiring to speak shall fill out a “Speaker’s Slip”, encouraging them to state their name,

though not mandatory. Such person shall be allowed to speak during public comment time and has the

option of speaking once on any agenda item when it is being discussed. Speaking time shall generally be
. limited to three minutes, unless a longer period is permitted by the Board President.

Public ltems for the Board of Directors’ agenda must be submitted in writing and received by the District
office no later than 10 business days prior to a regular Board of Directors' Meeting.

Agenda Posting and Materials Agendas for all regular Board of Directors’ meetings are posted at least
seventy-two hours prior to the meeting on bulletin boards outside the entrance gate and the main entrance
door of the District, 3707 Old Highway 395, Fallbrook, California 92028. The agendas and all background
material may also be inspected at the District Office.

You may also visit us at www.rainbowmwd.com.

Time Certain Agenda items identified as “time certain” indicate the item will not be heard prior to the time
indicated.

Board meetings will be recorded on CD’s as a secretarial aid. If you wish to listen to the recordings, they will
be available after the draft minutes of the meeting have been prepared. There is no charge associated with
copies of CD’s. Recordings will be kept for two years. Copies of public records are available as a service to

the public; a charge of $.10 per page up to 99 pages will be collected and $.14 per page for 100 pages or
more.

If you have special needs because of a disability which makes it difficult for you to participate in the meeting

. or you require assistance or auxiliary aids to participate in the meeting, please contact the District Secretary,
(760) 728-1178, by at least noon on the Friday preceding the meeting. The District will attempt to make
arrangements to accommodate your disability.

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached.
Page 1 of 6



Agenda Packet Page 2 of 238

Notice is hereby given that the Rainbow Municipal Water District Board of Directors will hold Open Session
at 1:00 p.m. Tuesday, April 26, 2016, at the District Office located at 3707 Old Highway 395, Fallbrook, CA
92028. At any time during the session, the Board of Directors Meeting may adjourn to Closed Session to
consider litigation or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney client privilege.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL: Sanford____Walker______ Brazier____ Bigley___ Stewart

4. ADDITIONS/DELETIONS/AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA (Government Code §54954.2)

5. ORAL/WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

OPPORTUNITY FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD REGARDING
ITEMS NOT ON THIS AGENDA (Government Code § 54954.2).

Under Oral Communications, any person wishing to address the Board on matters not on this
agenda should indicate their desire to speak by filling out and submitting a "Speaker's Slip" to the
Board Secretary before the meeting begins. No action will be taken on any oral communications
item since such item does not appear on this Agenda, unless the Board of Directors makes a
determination that an emergency exists or that the need to take action on the item arose subsequent
to posting of the Agenda (Government Code §54954.2). Speaking time shall generally be limited to
three minutes, unless a longer period is permitted by the Board President.

*6.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES
arch 10, — Special Board Meefin

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS/REPORTS
Directors’ comments are comments by Directors concerning District business, which may be of
interest to the Board. This is placed on the agenda to enable individual Board members to convey
information to the Board and to the public. There is to be no discussion or action taken by the
Board of Directors unless the item is noticed as part of the meeting agenda.

A. President’s Report (Director Sanford)

B. Representative Report (Appointed Representative)

1. SDCWA

2. CSDA

3. LAFCO

4 San Luis Rey Watershed Council

5. Santa Margarita Watershed Council
C. Meeting, Workshop, Committee, Seminar, Etc. Reports by Directors (AB1234)
D. Directors Comments

*8. COMMITTEE REPORTS (Approved Minutes have been attached for reference only.)

[A Budget and Finance Committee]
1. March 8, 2016 Minutes

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached.
Page 2 of 6



*9

Agenda Packet Page 3 of 238

B. Communications Committee |
1. March 7, 2016 Minutes
[C. Engineering Committee |

1. March 2, 2016 Minutes

CONSENT CALENDAR
(The consent calendar items are matters voted on together by a single motion unless separate
action is requested by a Board member, staff or member of the audience.)

A. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 16-09
DESIGNATING VANESSA MARTINEZ AS CONTRACT SIGNER FOR ALL UNION BANK
TRANSACTIONS

(This Resolution replaced Resolution No. 15-17, which appointed Tom Kennedy as contract signer.)
(Staff Recommendation: Adoption of Resolution No. 16-09,)

B. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 16-10 - A RESOLUTION
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT ESTABLISHING
CLASSIFICATIONS AND MONTHLY RATES OF PAY FOR DISTRICT EMPLOYEES EFFECTIVE
JULY 3, 2015 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2016 AND THE GENERAL MANAGER’S SALARY EFFECTIVE
AUGUST 28, 2105 THROUGH AUGUST 28, 2016
(Resolution No. 16-03 incorrectly reflects the salary range for the Associate Engineer job title. The
Associate Engineer was moved to salary grade 90 and the educational requirement of a Professional
Engineer was added fo justify the increase to a higher salary grade.)

(Staff Recommendation: The Board approves Resolution No. 16-10 and direct Human Resources to
post a copy on the RMWD website.)

C. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPOINT ROBERT MARNETT AS AN
ALTERNATE MEMBER TO THE ENGINEERING COMMITTEE
(At their April 6, 2016 Engineering Committee meeting, the committee members voted to recommend
the RMWD Board of Directors appoint Robert Marnett as an alternate member to the Engineering
Committee. If appointed, Mr. Marnett will take Sherry Kirkpatrick’s place on the committee.)
(Staff Recommendation: The Board appoint Robert Marnett as an alternate member to the
Engineering Committee.)

BOARD ACTION ITEMS

*10.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING VACATION OF EXISTING EASEMENTS
FOR THE GOLF GREEN ESTATES, TM 5498-1

(The District has existing easements for sewer lines that are adjacent and cross the Golf Green Estates
development shown on the attached Exhibits. The development has granted the District easements over our
existing sewer lines and proposed sewer lines. The Developer is requesting we quitclaim the easements that
will no longer be in use. As part of the Golf Green Estates development, they will be deeding the District a site
for the new LS1. The Engineering Committee has reviewed the easement vacation request and recommend
the easements be vacated once conditions are met with the District Facilities.)

(Staff Recommendation: Authorize the General Manager to execute quitclaim of easements once facilities are
located out and accepted by the District.)

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached.

Page 3 of 6




Agenda Packet Page 4 of 238

*11.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING REVISION OF ACCEPTANCE OF TERMS
FOR QUITCLAIM OF EASEMENTS IN EXCHANGE FOR WIDER EASEMENT AND NEW
EASEMENT IN THE PROPOSED MOOSA MITIGATION BANK PHASE 1 PORTION

(The District has water and wastewater facilities located along the golf course in easements of various lengths|
giving the District the right to access, maintain and repair District facilites when necessary. Due to the
concerns of having a sewer line in the middle of a mitigation bank and the difficulties of accessing, maintaining
and repairing lines in close proximity to mitigation land the District is planning on relocating the lines out of the
mitigation bank into Camino Del Rey. Therefore, the need to widen the existing easement #26 would not be
necessary. The District would need a new easement from our existing sewer line to Camino Del Rey in order to
relocate the sewer line. Thus revising the original terms approved by the Board last May. The Engineering
Committee has reviewed the terms and recommends the approval of the revision.)

(Staff Recommendation: Authorize the General Manager to execute quitclaim for easement once the District]
receives the additional easements.)

*12.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING EXECUTION OF A SECOND AMENDMENT
TO JOINT AGREEMENT TO IMPROVE SUBDIVISION, JOINT LIEN CONTRACT AND HOLDING
AGREEMENT FOR SAN DIEGO TRACT NO. 5012-1

(The Gilligan development consists of 13 lots south of Morro Reservoir on Catherine Road shown in the
enclosed Figure. Improvements related to the District consist of approximately 3,825 feet of water main to
serve the development. There are no sewer improvements as the development is on septic. The development|
was initially processed through the County and the District in 1998 and has an approved map. This
amendment releases Bank of America from the lien and holding agreement and assigns First American Trust
to assume all obligations of Bank of America. This agreement is being reviewed by Legal Counsel and
revisions were recommended to the County.)

(Staff Recommendation: Authorize the General Manager to execute Joint Agreement to Improve Subdivision,
Joint Lien Contract and Holding Agreement for San Diego Tract No. 4750-1.)

*13.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT THE 2016 WATER AND WASTEWATER
MASTER PLAN UPDATE

(On January 27, 2015 the Board approved the award of the update to the Water and Wastewater Master Plans
fo Atkins. The purpose of the Master Plan Updates is to identify potential system deficiencies, confirm
transmission main sizing and identify future capital improvements projects based on updated ultimate demand
projections. The District's most recent water and wastewater master plans were prepared by Dudek &
Associates in 2006. There is the potential for a considerable amount of new development both within and
outside the current District boundaries in the near future. The water and wastewater master plans serve as the
basis for critical infrastructure decisions and capital fees. Any delays in the master plan completion will delay
the capacity fee analysis. With the rising cost of imported water it is important for the District to develop local
water sources to improve reliability and stabilize water rates. Most critical among the infrastructure decisions is
fo build a District-owned wastewater reclamation plant and recycled distribution system, or to continue to
convey wastewater to Oceanside. The master plans will consider both existing and ultimate, year 2030,
conditions.)

(Staff Recommendation: Either adopt the 2016 Water and Wastewater Master Plan Update or review the 2016
Water and Wastewater Master Plan Update and adopt at the next regular meeting. Release the draft CIP list to
the Finance Committee for their finance model projections and budgetary purposes.)

*14.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION RELATED TO NORTH COUNTY IRRIGATED LANDS
GROUP

(Consider continued operation of North County Irrigated Lands Group.)

(Staff Recommendation: It is abundantly clear that the continued viability of the NCILG is unlikely. For this
reason, the Staff recommendation is to take one of the three actions indicated above. Staff recommends that
the Board solicit input from the members of the NCILG in the form of a poll to determine whether or not there is
a strong preference of the members of the group as to which option is more desirable. Absent such a poll, the
staff recommendation would be to choose Option 3 as it is unlikely that either of the other options will be
anywhere close to being as cost effective.)

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached.

Page 4 of 6




Agenda Packet Page 5 of 238

*15.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE ORDINANCE NO. 16-07 AMENDING AND
UPDATING ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SECTION 8.12 - RENDERING AND PAYMENT OF BILLS
(On November 1, 2000, the Board of Directors approved Resolution No. 00-22, Establishing a Waiver of
Charges Policy. Since the inclusion of Section 8 of the Administrative Code in 2014, the Waiver of Charges
Policy has been superseded by the new language pertaining to delinquent account fees in Administrative Code
Section 8.12.020.6. The new wording states that no fees related to delinquent accounts will be refunded
except in the case of an error made by the District. Staff's preference is to allow a waiver of one late fee
penalty per account within a two year period. This is fo extend a good faith courtesy to the customer in case a
situation transpired that was beyond their control.)

(Staff Recommendation: Approve Ordinance No. 16-07 Amending and Updating Administrative Code Section
8.12 — Rendering and Payment of Bills.)

*16.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION RELATED TO CONVERSION TO PAPERLESS BOARD
PACKETS

(In an effort to be as transparent as possible, RMWD Board packets include all information related to items
under discussion at the Board. The current packet is developed in paper form, hand numbered, and then
scanned into digital form. At the request of the Board, Staff has prepared a cost estimate for the process of
transitioning from our current practices (attached). Based on this estimate, the total cost, including staff time,
to produce, duplicate and deliver Board packets is about $10,900 per year. The cost to migrate to a paperless
agenda will include a one-time cost to procure iPads, along with ongoing costs to support the cellular service
for the iPads, the file transfer software, and the remaining staff time to develop the PDF versions of the Board
packets. The total annual cost, which is still dominated by staff time, is just over $4,530 per year. The net
annual savings is expected to be over $6000 per year. It should be noted here that labor costs involved will not
disappear entirely as the person involved will be engaged in other tasks. The purpose of this action is to try to
free up staff time for more productive endeavors.)

(Staff supports Board direction on this matter.)

*17.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION RELATED TO LAFCO RUNOFF ELECTION

(In March the District was notified that the recent election for the Special District Alternate seat for the Local
Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) required a runoff election. Of the four candidates, none received a
majority, so the two candidates who received the most votes have now been slated to run in a runoff election.
The runoff will be between Judy Hansen of Leucadia Wastewater and our own Dennis Sanford.)

(Staff Recommendation: That the Board vote for Dennis Sanford for the Special District Alternate seat at
LAFCO.)

BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS

18.

DISCUSSION REGARDING ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER

(At the March 22, 2016 Board meeting, Director Brazier suggested the current Board have an opportunity to
discuss in Open Session the current practices at RMWD as it pertains to the Robert’s Rules of Order in Board
and committee meetings, respectively.)

(This item is informational and for discussion purposes only.)

. TION AND
REIMBURSEMENT AND CHAPTER 4.10 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXPENSE
(Discussion regarding Administrative Code Chapters 2.03 and 4.10 to determine if the language should be
amended to set per diem limits in conformity with Federal General Services Administration allowance.
(This item is informational and for discussion purposes only.)

*20.

RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL ITEMS FOR FEBRUARY AND MARCH
2016

A. General Manager Comments
1. Meetings, Conferences and Seminar Calendar

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached.

Page 5 of 6




Agenda Packet Page 6 of 238

B. Communications
1. Ratepayer Letters

| 2. Comment Letter — Urban Water Conservation Workshop 4/20/16 |

C. Construction & Maintenance Comments
1. Construction and Maintenance Report
2. Valve Maintenance Report
3. Garage/Shop Repair
D.— water Operations Comments |
1. Water Operations Report
2, Electrical/Telemetry Report
E. Wastewater Comments
1. Wastewater Report
F.— Operations Comments
1. Water Quality Report
2. Cross Connection Control Program Report
G. Engineering Comments |
1. Engineering Report
H. Customer Service Comments
1. Field Customer Service Report
2. Meters Report
L. Safety Comments
1. Safety Report
J. Human Resources Comments
1. Personnel Changes
2. Organizational Chart
K. Finance NManager Comments
1. Interim Financial Statement
2. Visa Breakdown (February and March)
3. Directors’ Expense
4, Check Register
5. Office Petty Cash (February)
6. Water Usage Report
8 RMWD Sewer Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDU’s) Status

21.  LIST OF SUGGESTED AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING
22. ADJOURNMENT - To Tuesday, May 24, 2016 at 1:00 p.m.
ATTEST TO POSTING:
: L 1l D /- 30 2 &L

Helene Brazier ¢ — Date and Time of Posting
Secretary of the Board Outside Display Cases

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached.
Page 6 of 6



Agenda Packet Page 7 of 238

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

MARCH 10, 2016

1. CALL TO ORDER - The Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Rainbow Municipal
Water District on March 10, 2016 was called to order by President Sanford at 9:04 a.m. in the
Board Room of the District, 3707 Old Highway 395, Fallbrook, CA 92028. President Sanford
presiding.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. ROLL CALL:

Present: Director Walker
Director Sanford
Director Brazier

Absent: None

Also Present:  General Manager Kennedy
Executive Assistant/Board Secretary Washburn
Legal Counsel Stender
Acting Operations Manager Maccarrone
Engineering Manager Kirkpatrick
Human Resources Manager Bush
Superintendent Zuniga
Superintendent Walker
Administrative Analyst Gray

Twelve members of the public were present for Open Session.
4. PUBLIC COMMENT RELATING TO ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

There were no public comments.
BOARD ACTION ITEMS
*5. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE SELECTION OF DIVISION TWO DIRECTOR AND

APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION NO. 16-07, A RESOLUTION APPOINTING
AS DIRECTOR OF DIVISION TWO OF THE RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

President Sanford thanked all those present who submitted their applications noting how much
the Board appreciated it. He stated those not selected are still a valuable commodity to the
District and their involvement and interest in serving was very much appreciated. He asked that
no one be offended as there were a number of applicants which made the process hard due to
the number of qualified candidates.

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached.

Page 1 of 4
20160310_draft



Agenda Packet Page 8 of 238

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT

Director Brazier suggested anyone who does not get appointed consider participating on one of
the RMWD committees. President Sanford added RMWD was one of the few districts that has
committees made up of ratepayers and not staff members and the input received from the
ratepayers is always valued.

Hayden Hamilton introduced himself to the Board as a Bonsall resident since 1999 and a North
County resident since 1984. He stated he and his wife moved to the Bonsall area because she
found it to be one of the best kept secrets in Southern California. He mentioned his wife is a
nurse practitioner that works for the Navy and he was semi-retired who works in market for The
American Aviation Historical Society. He pointed out he has an 8-acre farm with several horses
which keeps him busy. He said his primary motion for running for this position came from
following the ups and downs of RMWD for 16 years and finally figured if he was going to
complain about something, he might as well take an active part in it.

Action:

Moved by Director Brazier to open the nominations for Division 2. Seconded by Director
Walker.

Director Walker nominated Rich Bigley for Division 2.

Director Brazier said she has read all the resumes and found Mr. Bigley would be a good
candidate. President Sanford had no opposition to the nomination.

It was noted that with only three Board Members to make nominations and if each nominated a
different person, they would not be able to make an appointment.

President Sanford called for additional nominations.

Director Walker echoed President Sanford's earlier comments that this was not an easy
decision as there were some very qualified people with good resumes. He said it was helpful to
go through the interview process to learn a little more on the candidates. He stated he hoped
there were other opportunities to step up and volunteer either in the Board capacity or on a
committee.

Director Brazier mentioned there was an election in November 2015 if anyone wished to
challenge. Mr. Kennedy added the term for Division 2 would be ending this year; therefore,
whoever runs and wins in November will serve a four year term for this Division. He pointed out
Division 4 was scheduled to be reelected in 2018; therefore, whoever is elected in November
will have to run again in 2018 for a full four year term.

Mr. Grady asked about the nomination process. It was clarified the nominations come from the
Board.

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached.

Page 2 of 4
20160310_draft



Agenda Packet Page 9 of 238

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT

*6.

President Sanford called for the question for all those in favor of appointing Mr. Richard
Bigley as the Director to fulfill the remaining term in Division 2 to signify by saying aye.

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Directors Brazier, Sanford, and Walker
NOES: None
ABSTAINED: None
ABSENT: None

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE SELECTION OF DIVISION FOUR DIRECTOR AND
APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION NO. 16-06, A RESOLUTION APPOINTING
AS DIRECTOR OF DIVISION FOUR OF THE RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Action:

Moved by Director Brazier to open the nominations for Division 4. Seconded by Director
Walker.

President Sanford nominated William Stewart.

Director Brazier stated she was going to nominate Mr. Stewart as well.
Director Walker said Mr. Stewart would be his first choice.

President Sanford called for additional nominations.

President Sanford called for the question for all those in favor of appointing Mr. William
Stewart as the Director to fulfill the remaining term in Division 4 to signify by saying aye.

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Directors Brazier, Sanford, and Walker
NOES: None
ABSTAINED: None
ABSENT: None

Director Brazier encouraged the remaining candidates to not go away, but rather come to the
RMWD Board and committee meetings due to the fact there are openings at unexpected times.

Maureen Rhyne said when she hears “ratepayer involvement”’, she wants to stress it is the
ratepayers’ district in that the property owners own this district and they are not just ratepayers.
She encouraged everyone to get involved by attending committee meetings where they will
learn a great deal of history about Rainbow as well as about a number of things that are coming
on in the future. She noted it will be very important that the District has good directors. Mr.
Kennedy noted the vernacular of the word ratepayers may need to be changed to stakeholders
or something of that nature.

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached.

Page 3 of 4
20160310_draft



Agenda Packet Page 10 of 238

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT
7. SWEARING IN CEREMONY OF NEW DIVISION 2 DIRECTOR

Legal Counsel swore in Rich Bigley as the Division 2 Director.
8. SWEARING IN CEREMONY OF NEW DIVISION 4 DIRECTOR
It was noted since William Stewart was not present, he could not be sworn in at this time.
9. LIST OF SUGGESTED AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING
It was noted the fixed charge item would be on the March 22, 2016 agenda.
10. ADJOURNMENT - To Tuesday, March 22, 2016, at 1:00 p.m.

The meeting was adjourned with a motion made by Director Brazier to a regular meeting on
. March 22, 2016, at 1:00 p.m.

The meeting was adjourned at 9:02 a.m.

Dennis Sanford, Board President

Dawn M. Washburn, Board Secretary

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached.

Page 4 of 4
20160310_draft



Agenda Packet Page 11 of 238

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

MARCH 22, 2016

1. CALL TO ORDER - The Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Rainbow Municipal
Water District on March 22, 2016 was called to order by Vice President Walker at 1:00 p.m. in
the Board Room of the District, 3707 Old Highway 395, Fallbrook, CA 92028. Vice President
Walker presiding.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL:

Present: Director Walker
Director Brazier
Director Stewart
Director Bigley

Absent: Director Sanford

Also Present:  General Manager Kennedy
Executive Assistant/Board Secretary Washburn
Legal Counsel Stender
Finance Manager Martinez
Acting Operations Manager Maccarrone
Engineering Manager Kirkpatrick
Superintendent Zuniga
Administrative Analyst Gray
Meter Services Crew Leader Diaz

Eight members of the public were present for Open Session.
4, ADDITIONS/AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA (Government Code §54954.2)

There were no changes to the agenda.

5. ORAL/WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
OPPORTUNITY FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD REGARDING
ITEMS NOT ON THIS AGENDA (Government Code § 54954.2).

Jeanne Meadow asked for a clarification on the water availability charge recently published in
the newspaper. Mr. Kennedy explained this was for Improvement District 1 which covers the
entire district and is adopted each year by the Board. He noted the revenue comes from
property taxes and are tracked separately.

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached. Page 1 of 12
20160322_draft



Agenda Packet Page 12 of 238

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT
6.

ANNIVERSARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
A. Victor Veenstra (15 Years)

Mr. Kennedy announced Victor Veenstra was celebrating 15 years with RMWD where he
started in 2001 as a Utility Worker | and has been a Utility Worker Il for quite some time. He
noted Mr. Veenstra was a member of RMWD’s Certified Confined Space Rescue Team as well
as holds several certifications. He presented Mr. Veenstra with a plague and check in
recognition of his tenure with RMWD.

*7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. February 23, 2016 - Regular Board Meeting
Action:
Moved by Director Brazier to approve the minutes of the regular Board meeting of
February 23, 2016. Seconded by Director Bigley.
After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:
AYES: Directors Bigley, Brazier, Stewart and Walker
NOES: None
ABSTAINED: None
ABSENT: Director Sanford
8. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS/REPORTS
Directors’ comments are comments by Directors concerning District business, which may be of
interest to the Board. This is placed on the agenda to enable individual Board members to
convey information to the Board and to the public. There is to be no discussion or action taken
by the Board of Directors unless the item is noticed as part of the meeting agenda.
A. President’'s Report (Director Sanford)
Vice President Walker welcomed Directors Bigley and Stewart to the RMWD Board.
B. Representative Report (Appointed Representative)
1. SDCWA
a. Summary of Formal Board of Directors’ Meeting February 25, 2016
Mr. Kennedy talked about the summary of the formal board meeting provided. He stated the
focus has been on MWD giving out information about their proposed changes to their rate
structure; part of which includes a fixed charge for treatment services which will be pegged this
charge based on consumption from 1997-2008. He noted this puts SDCWA in a bad spot due
to the fact there was a great deal more MWD water back then. He added MWD was also
doubling down on the rate structure that was found to be illegal by the courts last year. He
pointed out the bad news is that is looking as though San Diego will face a 12% increase over
which RMWD will have no control. He mentioned SDCWA and RMWD's representatives will
argue as hard as they can as to the passage of these rates; however, one problem is that MWD
held their rate hearings in early March without their cost of service study which could end up in
another lawsuit. He stated SDCWA was actively talking about ways to get away from using
MWD water and finding other resources.
(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached. Page 2 of 12

20160322 _draft



Agenda Packet Page 13 of 238

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT

2. CSDA
Mr. Kennedy stated there is going to be CSDA conferences coming up which he and President
Sanford will be attending. He mentioned there was a Special District Leadership Academy
conference he encouraged all RMWD Board Members to attend in order to assist the District in
achieving the District of Distinction award. He also pointed CSDA nominations will be
discussed later in this meeting.
3. LAFCO
a. 2015-2016 Special Districts Mailed-Ballot Election Results
b. Election to the LAFCO’s Special Districts Advisory Committee Notification

Mr. Kennedy announced President Sanford did very well in the elections which has forced a
runoff election.

4. San Luis Rey Watershed Council
Vice President Walker noted the Council will meet next week.
5. Santa Margarita Watershed Council
There was no report given.
C. Meeting, Workshop, Committee, Seminar, Etc. Reports by Directors (AB1234)
There were no reports given.
D. Directors Comments

Director Stewart said it was nice to be here.

*9. COMMITTEE REPORTS (Approved Minutes have been attached for reference only.)
A. Budget and Finance Committee
1. February 9, 2016 Minutes
Mr. Stitle reported the committee has started on the budget process for the upcoming year.
B. Communications Committee
1. January 11, 2016 Minutes
2, February 1, 2016 Minutes
There was no report given.
C. Engineering Committee
1. January 6, 2016
2, February 3, 2016
(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached. Page 3 of 12

20160322_draft



Agenda Packet Page 14 of 238

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT

*10

Mrs. Kirkpatrick announced the committee selected officers with Harry Stitle becoming the Vice
Chairperson and Tim Prince continue to serve as the Committee Chairperson. She reported
the committee was reviewing the Master Plan and Standards. Mr. Kennedy added the
committee agreed to release the CIP numbers to the Finance Manager for the budget process.

CONSENT CALENDAR

A. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 16-08
COMMENDING JACK GRIFFITHS FOR HIS SERVICE ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

B. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING REQUEST TO DEFER PROPERTY
OWNED BY MICHAEL AND VICTORIE DARNLEY FROM CHARGES FOR WATER
AVAILABILITY AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ASSESSMENTS

C. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE ORDINANCE NO. 16-05
AMENDING AND UPDATING ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SECTIONS 5.01 AND 8.03

This item was pulled from the Consent Calendar and added to Board Action Items due to
there being modifications made since the preparation of the agenda packet.

D. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 16-04 AMENDING
AND UPDATING RMWD ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SECTION 1.02.020 — CONFLICT OF
INTEREST CODE

Action:

Moved by Director Stewart to pull Item 10C from the Consent Calendar. Seconded by
Director Brazier.

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Directors Bigley, Brazier, Stewart, and Walker
NOES: None

ABSTAINED: None

ABSENT: Director Sanford

Action:

Moved by Director Brazier to approve the remaining consent calendar Items #10A, #10B,
and #10D. Director Stewart.

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Directors Bigley, Brazier, Stewart, and Walker
NOES: None

ABSTAINED: None

ABSENT: Director Sanford

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached. Page 4 of 12

20160322_draft



Agenda Packet Page 15 of 238

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT
BOARD ACTION ITEMS

10C.

*11.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE ORDINANCE NO. 16-05 AMENDING
AND UPDATING ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SECTIONS 5.01, 8.03, 8.06, and 8.11

Mr. Kennedy explained the proposed changes to the respective Administrative Code sections
including the revisions to additional sections that arose after the agenda packet was distributed.

Mr. Kennedy elaborated on Section 8.06 related to what happens should a customer want to
remove water service entirely as opposed to having their meter remain locked off. He reviewed
the proposed changes including that should a customer decide to remove their meter, an MOU
must be signed with RMWD and they must agree to forfeit their right to the capacity.

Director Brazier referenced Page #10C-4 noting the language seemed to indicate the Budget
and Finance committee has independent authority to make moves when according to Section
2.09 of the Administrative Code, committees are advisory only. Mr. Kennedy agreed to change
the proposed language to read the committee will review internal controls and advise the Board
on adoption of appropriate policies.

Director Brazier also pointed out “made be made” should be “may be made” on Page 10C-6.
Action:

Moved by Director Brazier to adopt Ordinance No. 16-05 amending and updating
Administrative Code Sections 5.01, 8.03, 8.06, and 8.11 with the proposed changes.
Seconded by Director Stewart.

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Directors Bigley, Brazier, Stewart, and Walker
NOES: None

ABSTAINED: None

ABSENT: Director Sanford

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON ORDINANCE NO. 16-06 RELATED TO WATER
METER DOWNSIZING AND LIMITED TERM FIXED FEE ABATEMENT PROGRAM

Mr. Kennedy gave a synopsis on what the Board would be considering with this item. He noted
after discussions with Legal Counsel and the rate consultant it was determined the discounts
RMWD was applying to fixed charges for locked off meters were inconsistent with the rules
related to Proposition 218.

Mr. Kennedy explained the policy before the Board today was to consider opening up a period
of time from now until the beginning of June to allow customers an opportunity to downsize their
meters as well as receive a credit back of the difference between the two costs going back to
the beginning of the rate change. He stated if this is approved by the Board of Directors, a letter
will be mailed to all those customers who meet the criteria RMWD would have for low
consumption and would be willing to forfeit their right to the capacity of the larger meter.

Legal Counsel echoed Mr. Kennedy’s comments about the legal requirements involved with the
Paland vs. Brooktrails case which says a district cannot establish different fees based on

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached. Page 5 of 12

20160322_draft



Agenda Packet Page 16 of 238

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT

whether or not a meter is active or inactive due to the fact the service is immediately available
to the parcel. She pointed out RMWD had a rate study conducted as well as held public
hearings required under Proposition 218 providing an opportunity for protest and public
comment. She stated if RMWD were to continue to offer different rates for inactive
connections, it could be challenged as an illegal standby charge under Proposition 218
subjecting the District to potential lawsuits and liabilities.

Sonja Whally stated she has a 1" locked off meter. She questioned the approval to increase
fees for locked off meters per Proposition 218; however, the Proposition 218 states the first
requirement is that the revenues derived from the property related fee or charge must not
exceed the funds required to provide the property related service. She stated there is no
service, maintenance, and water usage; therefore, she wanted to know how the Board came up
with the formula to raise her fee 500% from one month to the next. She also pointed out
Proposition 218 allows for available remedies. She requested for a remedy that reduces her
fees. Mr. Kennedy explained the Paland case clarified this matter in that it is illegal for the
District to have a separate charge for locked off meters. Ms. Whally asked for this matter to be
reconsidered.

Ann Leatherbury mentioned she has been in RMWD since 1958 and expressed concern
regarding her bill increasing by 800% for her 3" meter as addressed in the letter her husband
sent to and was distributed to the Board. She requested a copy of the Paland case. She
explained her circumstances associated with her property and asked how RMWD substantiated
the increase. Mr. Kennedy stated he sent the link to the Cost of Service Study on which this
whole fee structure was based to Mr. Leatherbury. He pointed out this study was with specific
intent of being in compliance with 218 and the San Juan Capistrano case as well as minimize
the most impact on the majority of customers.

Mrs. Leatherbury stated although she respected the idea of downsizing; however, this becomes
an inverse condemnation of her property. She accused RMWD of penalizing long time
landowners with this downsizing and questioned whether this benefits RMWD. Mr. Kennedy
stated these were all valid points and although the decision was not made lightly, it was really
about cost of service. Discussion followed.

Legal Counsel read aloud from the Paland case which we offered to make available on the
RMWD website.

Mrs. Leatherbury asked for some sort of reasonable recourse that was more than citing case
law and consultant studies. She also asked to be shown the costs of changing out a meter
versus the cost of just leaving an old water meter in the ground and reading it every month. She
thanked everyone for listening to her concerns.

Director Brazier asked Legal Counsel to clarify that under Proposition 218 whether RMWD was
declared to have been doing the wrong thing since 2009. It was confirmed RMWD should have
been charging the higher rates all along; therefore it would not be an increase but rather a
reversion to what it should have been all along. Legal Counsel explained the rate study did
result in an increase in the fixed fees; however, the issue under Paland is that RMWD cannot
use whether a meter is locked off as a determination for what rate it will charge. She
emphasized this just cannot be a factor in the rate setting.

Mr. Kennedy assured there was no targeting involved in the Cost of Service Study process.

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached. Page 6 of 12
20160322_draft



Agenda Packet Page 17 of 238

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT

Director Stewart stated RMWD cannot be the only original agricultural district evolving into
residential water district that exists; therefore, he wanted to know if Mr. Kennedy was aware if
those other agencies were coming to the same exact conclusion with respect to this case and
Proposition 218. Mr. Kennedy explained as those other agencies go through their rate study,
they will most likely be advised to look at this closer. Legal Counsel added if a district has
done a rate study since this case came out, those agencies should be removing any differential
based on whether or not a meter is locked off if they want to comply. Director Stewart asked if
there were any agencies that disagree with this matter and have adopted a different posture
regardless of the Paland case. Mr. Kennedy noted the court case was pretty clear and after
discussing this case in great detail it was decided districts cannot do this and remain in
compliance with Proposition 218 and without putting the agency at risk of a lawsuit.

Discussion continued.

Vice President Walker clarified when RMWD looked at the rate structure study, there were fixed
costs and variable costs associated with the water. He explained the primary focus of the
discussion has been the legality of RMWD’s situation which needed to be remedied to have a
more equitable way of accounting for fixed costs versus the water itself and bring those costs
into alignment with state law. He encouraged Mrs. Leatherbury to review Raftelis’ Cost of
Service Study. He noted the purpose today was for RMWD to try to do what it can to remedy
the situation as well as make the transition easier.

Legal Counsel pointed out “this credit will be applied starting on the January 2016 bill up to and
including the bill period when the downsizing is approved” should be deleted in Ordinance No.
16-06 due to redundancy.

Director Brazier noted the Board approved the Raftelis study in large part to increase fairness.
Mr. Stitle added it was also to determine the actual fixed costs.

Mr. Kennedy reviewed the four requirements for allow for meter downsizing. He noted the
program deadline is June, 2016. He stated there would be a letter sent out to all the customers
with locked off meters should the Board approve Ordinance 16-06 and the Memorandum of
Understanding — Meter Downsize Request form will be posted on the website within 24 hours.
Action:

Moved by Director Brazier to approve Ordinance No. 16-06 as amended. Seconded by
Director Stewart.

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Directors Bigley, Brazier, Stewart, and Bigley
NOES: None
ABSTAINED: None
ABSENT: Director Sanford
(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached. Page 7 of 12

20160322_draft



Agenda Packet Page 18 of 238

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT

*12

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE A VARIANCE FROM THE
DISTRICT’S STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND ALLOW A CUSTOMER TO INSTALL TWO
SERVICES USING THE SAME LATERAL

Mr. Mahr addressed the Board noting he has met with the Engineering Committee, Mr.
Kennedy and President Sanford. He expressed concern with the 600% increase in cost he has
experienced and how he thinks what is happening is unfair and not right. He noted he has
decided to downsize to two 1” meters for his two parcels off the same existing lateral. He said
he does not want to incur any charges associated with the addition of the two meters; however,
he will now pay $2,600 as opposed to $700 per year for the two locked off meters. He
requested RMWD pay to have the two 1" meters installed off the existing lateral as well as
connection to the backflow device that will remain in place.

Mr. Kennedy explained the primary request for a variance was to not require Mr. Mahr to hire a
contractor to install the second lateral,"but not to propose to the Board that RMWD pay for the
costs associated with the work involved to change the meters out. He said unless the Board
wants to direct staff to do otherwise, waiving any fees associated with the change out has not
been considered.

Legal Counsel noted the District does have discretion to grant a variance; however, there was
always a potential for liability for a gift of public funds when a variance is granted.

Director Brazier asked for clarification on the requirement for backflow devices. Mr. Kennedy
clarified the current ordinance does not require a backflow device for locked off meters;
however, RMWD cannot turn it back on until a device is installed. He said once a locked off
meter is turned back on, staff will make sure there is a backflow device in place before
reactivating the meter on for those properties that require the device.

Legal Counsel explained this variance specifically addressed the engineering requirements.
She said if the costs are justifiably part of the O&M, then there would be no risk of a gift of
public funds issue; however, if it is not justifiable from an engineering perspective and RMWD
was waiving fees that would otherwise be charged other ratepayers, there was a potential risk.
She cautioned RMWD wants to be consistent on how it treats all ratepayers. Mr. Kennedy
stated the internal analysis was for the second meter was that the customer should pay the
costs and labor fees due to the fact it was a whole new service just as any other customer
would be required to pay. He noted this was not a practice staff intends to bring back on a
regular occasion for this type of situation; therefore, the recommendation was not waive all
costs. He noted the estimate of costs would be approximately $500.

Mr. Mahr reiterated he now pays $2,600 per year to RMWD for locked off water meters after the
installation; therefore, he only thinks it is fair that he does not have to pay the cost. He asked
for clarification that he was paying $62 from January until the installation of the new meters.
Mr. Kennedy said he would be paying the new fixed charges and once the process is complete,
RMWD will calculate the new numbers and determine whether Mr. Mahr would receive a credit
or a bill to make up the difference. Discussion ensued.

Vice President Walker asked Legal Counsel if RMWD were to absorb the costs under the
circumstances that downsizing is a one-time brought on by this new rate structure, would the
District be at risk. Legal Counsel answered it would be a risk if the District does agree to waive
the cost; however, there was no risk in the variance before the Board for consideration.

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached. Page 8 of 12

20160322_draft



Agenda Packet Page 19 of 238

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT

*13.

Legal Counsel explained although it was not substantial liability in one instance; however, but if
RMWD is treating ratepayers inconsistently it would be a problem. She reiterated there was no
legal risk for granting the variance of not installing the second lateral, but there is some minimal
risk if RMWD chooses to waive the cost associated with installing the second meter. Mr.
Kennedy reiterated he did not propose waiving those costs.

It was noted Mr. Mahr's cost would be approximately $400-$500 versus $5,000-$6,000 to
provide service to the second location.

Action:
Moved by Director Stewart to approve the variance. Seconded by Director Brazier.

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Directors Bigley, Brazier, Stewart, and Walker
NOES: None

ABSTAINED: None

ABSENT: Director Sanford

Mr. Mahr asked for clarification regarding his costs. Mr. Kennedy said the cost associated with
the one meter and one box will be paid for by RMWD, but the cost associated with the putting in
the second box Mr. Mahr will need to pay for which Mr. Maccarrone will put together a detailed
cost estimate.

Mr. Mahr asked about reimbursement of the differential between the smaller and larger meter.
Mr. Kennedy explained this applied to the fixed fees (ltem #11) where the Board approved a
policy where if customer downsize, RMWD would waive the new fees back to January. It was
noted a 2” meter with full capacity fees currently costs $61,907 plus installation charges and a
1" costs $22,102 plus cost of installation.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO AWARD A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
CONTRACT TO PREPARE THE WATER AND WASTEWATER ASSET COST AND
CAPACITY FEE STUDY

Mr. Kennedy pointed out there were only two responses to the widely distributed request for
proposals. He noted the asset valuation on RMWD’s ledgers is undervalued as to what the real
assets values are by quite a bit. Discussion ensued regarding depreciation expense.

Vice President Walker expressed concern that staff must be aware of consultants stacking their
proposals. He stated as long as the team was the best to properly conduct the work regardless
of where they reside; however, they must be engaged.

Action:

Moved by Director Brazier to authorize staff to negotiate the contract. Seconded by
Director Stewart.

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached. Page 9 of 12

20160322 _draft



Agenda Packet Page 20 of 238

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT
After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:
AYES: Directors Bigley, Brazier, Stewart, and Walker
NOES: None
ABSTAINED: None
ABSENT: Director Sanford

*14.

*15.

*16.

*17.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING EXECUTION OF A SECOND
AMENDMENT TO JOINT AGREEMENT TO IMPROVE SUBDIVISION, JOINT LIEN
CONTRACT AND HOLDING AGREEMENT FOR SAN DIEGO TRACT NO. 50121

Legal Counsel suggested this item be delayed.

It was confirmed the waterline does not exist at this time.

There was no action taken.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ACCEPTING THE AUDIT REPORT FOR FISCAL
YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015

Mr. Kennedy pointed out although the audit was provided to the Board for review last year, it
had not been formally accepted and filed.

Action:
Moved by Director Brazier to accept the audit report. Seconded by Director Bigley.

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Directors Bigley, Brazier, Stewart, and Walker
NOES: None

ABSTAINED: None

ABSENT: Directors Sanford

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING CSDA BOARD OF DIRECTORS CALL
FOR NOMINATIONS, SEAT B

Vice President Walker called for nominations. There were none.

RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL ITEMS FOR JANUARY/FEBRUARY
2016

A. General Manager Comments

1. Meetings, Conferences and Seminar Calendar
B. Communications

1. Ratepayer Letters

2. Fallbrook Food Pantry

3. Rescission of Conservation Order
C. Construction & Maintenance Comments

1. Construction and Maintenance Report

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached. Page 10 of 12

20160322_draft



Agenda Packet Page 21 of 238

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT
2. Valve Maintenance Report
3. Garage/Shop Repair
D. Water Operations Comments
1. Water Operations Report
2, Electrical/Telemetry Report
E. Wastewater Comments
1. Wastewater Report
F. Operations Comments
1. Water Quality Report
2, Cross Connection Control Program Report
G. Engineering Comments
1. Engineering Report
H. Customer Service Comments
1. Field Customer Service Report
2. Meters Report
L Safety Comments
1. Safety Report
J.  Human Resources Comments
1. Property/Liability and Workers’ Compensation Longevity Distribution

18.

K. Finance Manager Comments

Interim Financial Statement - January

Visa Breakdown

Directors’ Expense-January

Check Register

Water Usage Report-January

RMWD Sewer Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDU’s) Status

onpwN

Mr. Kennedy made mention of communications provided including the rescission of the
Conservation Order. He also talked about the need to increase security at the outdoor pump
stations.

Action:

Moved by Director Brazier to receive and file information and financial items for
January/February 2016. Seconded by Director Stewart.

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Directors Bigley, Brazier, Stewart, and Walker

NOES: None

ABSTAINED: None

ABSENT: Director Sanford

LIST OF SUGGESTED AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING

It was noted Item #14 would be on the agenda if available as well as discussion regarding
electronic agenda packets and Robert’'s Rules of Order.

Mr. Kennedy mentioned Board Member pictures would be taken at the April 26, 2016 Board
meeting.

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached. Page 11 of 12

20160322_draft



Agenda Packet Page 22 of 238

DRAFT DRAFT DRAFT
19. ADJOURNMENT - To Tuesday, April 26, 2016 at 1:00 p.m.

The meeting was adjourned with a motion made by Director Walker to a regular meeting on
April 26, 2016 at 1:00 p.m.

The meeting was adjourned at 2:56 p.m.

Tory Walker, Board Vice President

Dawn M. Washburn, Board Secretary

(*) - Asterisk indicates a report is attached. Page 12 of 12
20160322_draft



Agenda Packet Page 23 of 238

San Diego County Water Authority

SUMMARY OF FORMAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING
MARCH 24, 2016

1 Monthly Treasurer’s Report on Investments and Cash Flow.
The Board noted and filed the monthly Treasurer’s Report.

2 Approve the Recommended Debt Management Activities.

A) The Board authorized the issuance of Water Revenue Refunding Bonds —Series 2016A
to refund certain outstanding long-term debt to yield debt service savings, including the
followmg actions:

a.  Adopted a resolution authorizing the issuance of Water Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2016A, for the purpose of refunding certain existing long-term
debt; and authorized the Director Finance to utilize a negotiated method of sale.

b.  Approved the forms of financing documents for the refunding bond issuances
including the Preliminary Official Statement for the Series 2016A Bonds.

c.  Approved the selection of the underwriting team and US Bauk as trustee.

B) Authorized the issuance of Subordinate Lien Water Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2016S-1 to replace the maturing Subordinate Lien Water Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 20118-1, including the following actions:

a.  Adopted a resolution authorizing the issuance of Subordinate Lien Water
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016S-1, in an aggregate principal amount not
to exceed $90 million for the purpose of a portion of outstanding tax-exempt
commercial paper; authorize the payment of Series 2011S-1 Bonds with
commercial paper notes; and authorized a negotiated method of sale for the
issuance.

b.  Approved the forms of financing documents for the refunding bond issuances
including the Preliminary Official Statement for the 2016S-1 Bonds.

¢.  Approved the selection of the underwrniting team and US Bank as trustee.
C) Adopted a resolution authorizing the increase in the size of the Extendable
Commercial Paper (ECP) program to $100M and authorized and approved

certain actions in connection herewith.

a.  Approved the selection of Bank of America/Merrill Lynch, J.P. Morgan and
Morgan Stanley to serve as dealers on the Series 1 ECP.



Agenda Packet Page 24 of 238

San Diego County Water Authority

b.  Increased the aggregate principal amount of short-term revenue certificates
(including Series 1 ECP Notes) authorized at any time to be outstanding to
$450,000,000.

c. Approved the forms of financing documents including an Offering Memorandum.

Adopt positions on various state and federal bills.

A)

B)

Y

D)

E)

F)

G)

H)

)

K)

The Board adopted a position of Support on AB 1928 (Campos), relating to irrigation
system performance standards and labeling requirements.

The Board adopted a position of Support on AB 2022 (Gordon), relating to advanced
purified demonstration drinking water for educational purposes.

The Board adopted a position of Support if Amended on AB 2040 (Melendez), relating to
outdoor water efficiency improvement tax credits.

The Board adopted a position of Support on AB 2438 (Waldron), relating to CEQA
exemptions for recycled water pipelines.

The Board adopted a position of Oppose on AB 2801 (Gallagher), relating to statutes of
limitations on validation actions.

The Board adopted a position of Support on ACA 8 (Bloom), relating to vote threshold
for local agency bonded indebtedness ballot measures.

The Board adopted a position of Support and Seek Amendments on SB 919 (Hertzberg),
relating to renewable energy rates and tariffs for local water supply development
facilities.

The Board adopted a position of Support on SB 927 (Anderson), relating to director
elections within the Fallbrook Public Utility District.

The Board adopted a position of Support if Amended on SB 1173 (Hertzberg).

The Board adopted a position of Support on H.R. 4615 (Huffman), relating to federal tax
exemptions for water conservation rebates.

The Board adopted a position of Support and Seek Amendments on S. 2533 (Feinstein),
relating to short-term and long-terin drought relief provisions for California.



Agenda Packet Page 25 of 238

San Diego County Water Authority

Proposed Amendment to Sponsored Legislation — AB 2515 (Weber).

The Board approved a proposed amendment to sponsored legislation — AB 2515 (Weber), as
recommended by the Legislation, Outreach and Conservation Committee, Alternative #3:
Statutorily implement Recommendation 6-2 from the Independent Technical Panel’s
“Recommendations Report to the Legislature on Landscape Water Use Efficiency,” relating to

standardizing the Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance revision process.

Modify Shortage Management Actions in Respounse to Securing Drought-Resilient Suppl
Credits under State Water Resources Control Board Emergency Regulation for Statewide
Urban Water Conservation.

In response to obtaining the drought-resilient credits, the Board approved Ordinance No. 2016-
01, including:

a. Rescinded Ordmance No. 2015-02, An Ordinance of the Board of Directors of
the San Diego County Water Authority Allocating Water Pursuant to the Water
Authority’s Drought Management Plan, Imposing Additional Requirements upon
Water Authority Member Agencies Relating to the Use and Conservation of
Water, and Establishing Penalties for Violations of Allocations and
Requirements; and

b. Continued the current provisions that address member agency municipal and
mdustrial and Transitional Special Agricultural Water Rate supply allocations
and penalty assessment for fiscal year 2016; and

c. Continued the Mandatory Supply Cutback Stage (Stage III) of the Water
Authority’s Water Shortage and Drought Response Plan; and

d. Rescinded the July 2014 notification of a Regional Drought Response Level 2,
Drought Alert condition.

Procurement confract for a new 23.5-ton mobile crane truck.
The Board authorized the General Manager to award a contract to San Diego Freightliner for
the purchase of a 23.5-ton mobile crane truck for a total not-to-exceed amount of $266,751.90.

Notice of Completion for the San Vicente Marina Facilities project.
The Board authorized the General Manager to accept the San Vicente Marina Facilities project

as complete, record the Notice of Completion, and release funds held in retention to Pulice
Construction, Inc. following the expiration of the retention period.



Agenda Packet Page 26 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 27 of 238

MINUTES OF THE BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
OF THE RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
MARCH 8, 2016

1. CALL TO ORDER: The Budget & Finance Committee meeting of the Rainbow Municipal Water
District was called to order by Chairperson Stitle on March 8, 2016 in the Board Room of the
District Office at 3707 Old Highway 395, Fallbrook, CA 92028 at 1:02 p.m. Chairperson Stitle
presiding.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL:

Present: Member Stitle
Member Clyde
Member Hensley (Arrived at 1:28 p.m.)
Alternate Moss

Absent: Member Carlstrom
Member Ross

Also Present: = General Manager Kennedy
Executive Assistant Washburn
Finance Manager Martinez
Engineering Manager Kirkpatrick
Meter Services Crew Leader Diaz
There was one public member present.
4, PUBLIC COMMENT RELATING TO ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (Limit 3 Minutes)
There were no comments.
COMMITTEE ACTION ITEMS
5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

There were no comments.

*B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. February 9, 2016

Action:

Moved by Member Clyde to accept the minutes as presented. Seconded by Member
Moss.

Page 1 of 5
20160308_final



Agenda Packet Page 28 of 238

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Members Stitle, Moss, and Clyde
NOES: None

ABSTAINED: None

ABSENT: Members Ross, Carlstrom, and Hensley
UPDATES

A. Strategic Plan

Mr. Kennedy talked about the document provided to the Committee that was approved by the
Board of Directors at their last meeting. He pointed out this document includes the specific
goals and objectives related to the Strategic Plan with the main focus areas broken down into
categories and sub-categories with detailed objective and department areas of responsibilities,
expected completion dates, as well as some sort of measurement of success. He clarified
GFOA stands for Government Finance Officers Association.

Mr. Kennedy reviewed the fiscal responsibility portion of the goals and objectives. He explained
the budget will look different with more connection to strategic planning as well as the goals and
objectives.

Mr. Clyde requested the goals and objectives document be emailed to the Committee
Members.

Mr. Stitle inquired as to whether RMWD had actually physically started on the budget process.
Mrs. Martinez stated she has been working with Springbrook on the setup and she will be
scheduling a fast track process for the budget process. She verified Springbrook has accepted
all the data.

Mr. Kennedy continued to review the goals and objectives noting RMWD will take a look at the
reserves and investment policies which the Committee will review and in turn make a
recommendation to the Board for their consideration in terms of 2016 reserves and
investments. He recommended this be something done on a regular basis to allow exploration
of different investment vehicles to make sure the best decisions are made.

Discussion ensued regarding labor negotiations and some of the steps involved.

Mr. Kennedy gave an update related to changing the look of and information provided on the
RMWD bills, elaborated on the importance District of Distinction program and how the steps
involved for it to be achieved by RMWD, as well as enhancing information to customers in
regards to their consumption through AMI. Discussion followed.

Mr. Ratican stated he has spent 35 years processing and working with state agencies. He
recommended RMWD have a line item for water resources/conservation due to the fact the
state will be looking at this closer. Mr. Kennedy offered to meet with Mrs. Gray to see if they
can come up with something to bring to the Board at the next quarterly update.

B. CIP with Update from Developers as to Dates
Mrs. Kirkpatrick presented another developer update spreadsheet she provided to the
Committee. She noted those developments with which she has been in constant contact.
Discussion ensued regarding the Horse Ridge Creek development.

Page 2 of 5
20160308_final



Agenda Packet Page 29 of 238

C. Accela (Springbrook)

Mrs. Martinez reiterated last week staff went through the first session involving the utility billing
which was more of a setup process. She noted there were two major issues being reviewed,
one being sewer being calculated on an average whereas RMWD goes by the lowest. She
explained they do not do any customization; therefore, there will be ticket order placed to see if
they can cater to the District's needs. She noted the second issue had to do with allocations
which may require staff to clean this up manually on a monthly basis to update on the TSWAR
accounts. She mentioned the second session will be a follow up once these ticket items are
completed, the third session involves training, and the fourth session will be to go live.

Discussion ensued.

Mr. Hensley joined the meeting at 1:28 p.m.

Discussion returned from ltem #9.

Mr. Kennedy pointed out another change to the Administrative Code was to allow for some
additional methods of payment. He clarified any amounts over $50,000 will be paid by check
with the exception of SDCWA who requires wire transfer. Discussion ensued regarding means
of internal controls over wire transfers.

Mr. Hensley encouraged staff to make sure there was some type of documentation showing
who the vendor is in order to prevent money being paid to false vendors. Discussion ensued
regarding setting up parameters to keep this from happening at RMWD.

It was noted the Budget and Finance Committee has reviewed this matter and a specific
proposal will be brought to the Committee for evaluation.

Discussion went to ltem #10.

8.

MONTHLY WATER AND SEWER SALES REPORT WITH PROJECTIONS FOR REMAINDER
OF YEAR

Mrs. Martinez talked about the report provided to the Committee. She noted she did not work
on the sewer sales at this time due to other pressing items coming up that will be discussed in
ltem #9.

DISCUSSION REGARDING HOW TO ADDRESS DELINQUENT ACCOUNTS

Mrs. Martinez explained there have been several customer calls due to a recent change to an
old policy that was set in place several years establishing a waiver of charges policy. It was
when Section 8 of the Administrative Code was adopted, it did not have any provisions for
waiving late fees.

Mr. Kennedy asked the Committee Members to look at Mrs. Martinez’'s proposal for a policy
where customers who have incurred a late fee within a two year period, that late fee can be
waived. Discussion ensued regarding how RMWD could possibly notify landlords of their
tenants not paying their bills and thereby incurring late fees.

Page 3 of 5
20160308_final



Agenda Packet Page 30 of 238

Action:

Moved by Member Moss the Committee waive the late fees once every two years for
accounts normally in good standing. Seconded by Member Hensley.

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Members Stitle, Clyde, Moss, and Hensley
NOES: None

ABSTAINED: None

ABSENT: Members Ross and Carlstrom

Discussion returned to Item 7C.

10.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING LOCKED METERS AND METER
DOWNSIZING

Mr. Kennedy recalled when the Cost of Service Study was completed, the Committee talked
about what to do with locked meters at some length including the RMWD policy allowing for a
waiver of all SDCWA fees, half of RMWD’s fees, and fixed pump charges. He explained when
the study was done, Proposition 218, the San Juan Capistrano case, as well as the 2009
Paland case were taken into consideration. He stated the courts were very clear in their
decision in the Paland case which was directly related to locked meters. He said after
reviewing this information very closely with the assistance of Legal Counsel, it was determined
that because the decision to discontinue water service was a voluntary act by the property
owner that cannot be anticipated by the District in advance, it would not be in compliance with
Proposition 218. He said it was not found anywhere in the Administrative Code where RMWD
has a lock off fee. He explained this matter could be the District at some type of risk.

Mr. Kennedy stated in order to for RMWD to be in compliance, it was necessary to determine
how this matter should be addressed. He reviewed some of the options for the Committee to
consider. Discussions ensued.

Mr. Kennedy explained the other aspect of this was to set something in the Administrative Code
to allow property owners to at a maximum of once per year change their character of service
according to the definitions in the Administrative Code subject to RMWD's approval. He noted
this would give the District a process to where a property owner would come in and
demonstrate they qualify for a character of service change. He verified there would be a
notification sent out to those customers who may benefit from this opportunity.

Mr. Diaz stated he would have a report on the meter classifications before the next Board
meeting.

Mr. Kennedy clarified he wanted to present this to the Committee to see if there were any red
flags in the proposed policy changes. He pointed out there would be a discussion at the next
Board meeting regarding this matter including possibly revising the interpretation of the
Administrative Code fees and charges.

Mrs. Kirkpatrick mentioned some customers will be happy to downsize their meters; however,
there will be others who will want to keep their meters without paying the unlocked charges.

Page 4 of 5
20160308_final



11.

12.

13.

14.

Agenda Packet Page 31 of 238

MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT

Mrs. Martinez and Mr. Kennedy reviewed the monthly financial report handouts provided with
the Committee.

Mr. Hensley requested summaries of these reports rather than so many pages of details.
REVIEW OF GROUNDWATER ISSUE

Mr. Kennedy reported the formation of the GSA’s is moving forward. He stated this means
RMWD will be proceeding with the San Luis Rey Municipal Water District to form a GSA in this
area. He mentioned he has retained a groundwater attorney to provide RMWD with specific
advice regarding this matter. Discussion ensued regarding the anticipated completion dates.

LIST OF SUGGESTED AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT SCHEDULED BUDGET AND
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

It was noted a description of the budget process and timelines as well as financing the Master
Plan should be on the next agenda.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned with a motion made by Member Clyde and seconded by Member
Hensley.

The meeting adjourned at 3:06 p.m.

Harry Stitle, Committee Chairperson

Dawn M. Washburn, Board Secretary

Page 50of 5
20160308_final



Agenda Packet Page 32 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 33 of 238

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING
OF THE RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
MARCH 7, 2016

CALL TO ORDER - The Communications Committee Meeting of the Rainbow Municipal Water
District on March 7, 2016 was called to order by Chairperson Daily at 3:32 p.m.in the Board
Room of the District, 3707 Old Highway 395, Fallbrook, CA 92028. Chairperson Daily,
presiding.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL:

Present: Member O’Leary
Member Daily
Member Kurnik
Member Kirby

Absent: Member Brazier

Member Romani
Also Present:  General Manager Kennedy
Executive Assistant Washburn
Administrative Analyst Gray
No members of the public were present.

PUBLIC COMMENT RELATING TO ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

There were no comments.

COMMITTEE ACTION ITEMS

5.

*6.

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

Mr. O’Leary reported he attended the February 23, 2016 Regular Board meeting to report on
this committee. He noted the Board approved the Strategic Plan which will be discussed later in
this meeting.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. February 1, 2016

Action:

Moved by Member Kirby to approve the minutes as written. Seconded by Member
Kurnik.

Page 1 0of 3
20160307 _final



Agenda Packet Page 34 of 238

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Members Kirby, Daily, O’'Leary, and Kurnik
NOES: None

ABSTAINED: None

ABSENT: Members Brazier and Romani

REVIEW OF COMMUNICATIONS PLAN

Mrs. Gray pointed out communications falls under Iltem #4 of the Strategic Plan Goals and
Objectives where everything the committee had talked about achieving has been included.

Mr. Kennedy added Mrs. Gray was collecting bills from various local districts from which to
reference when looking at changing the look of RMWD’s bills. He noted the finance
department was currently working with the new billing company and hope to have something
next month for this committee to review.

Mr. O’Leary suggested the RMWD’s bill include information about the monthly fixed costs that
must be paid regardless of the actual water use. Discussion ensued regarding locked off
meters.

Mrs. Gray showed the enhancements made to the newsletter. She also noted RMWD was in
the application process for a booth at the Avocado Festival and if selected, she will submit the
necessary information to the festival committee. It was suggested there be maps of the
RMWD’s divisions and samples of the desalination plant water available at the festival.

Discussion ensued regarding the upcoming newsletter and the information to be included. Mrs.
Gray noted she wants to include something related to water conservation and construction
updates in each edition.

It was noted the phone number was missing from the bottom of the newly enhanced newsletter.
It was also suggested the footer could be smaller.

Mr. Kennedy pointed out once the full Board is in place, he would like to publish one press
release per month. He stated he would have announcements on the Board appointees for both
The Village News and Union Tribune after the selections have been made. He also mentioned
it would be worthwhile to publish something regarding Dennis Sanford participating in a run off
election for the seat he ran for at LAFCO.

Discussion ensued regarding special projects that will demand publicity notification during 2016.
REVIEW AND UPDATE OF STRATEGIC PLAN
It was noted the strategic plan was difficult to find on the front page on RMWD'’s website.

Discussion ensued regarding the water reclamation plant preliminary design report study as
well as the groundwater project in terms of how both fit in the strategic plan.

Mr. O’Leary suggested press releases should be more tailored than the press taking agenda
items from which to start a story and gathering quotes after the fact. Mr. Kennedy
recommended identifying a subset of the agenda items at each Board meeting that are of
interest and substance to determine whether the committee wants to prepare a press release.

Page 2 of 3
20160307 _final



10.

1.

Agenda Packet Page 35 of 238

Mr. O'Leary talked about the goal of improving communications between the committees and
the Board of Directors. He suggested there may be some press release ideas if there is a joint
meeting. Mr. Kennedy noted the Budget and Finance Committee will have a joint meeting with
the Board near budget time, the Engineering Committee around the time the Groundwater and
Water Reclamation studies are being completed in the summer, and the Communications in the
fall. He explained these joint meetings would be at the normal Board meeting dates and times.

REVIEW AND ANALYSIS OF RMWD RELATED MEDIA STORIES

Mr. Kennedy pointed out there have been more than one customers have expressed concern
with the locked off meter costs increasing; some of which have stated they would be going to
the media regarding the situation. Discussion followed.

Mr. Daily solicited for other media related stories for discussion.

LIST OF SUGGESTED AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT SCHEDULED COMMUNICATIONS
COMMITTEE MEETING

Mr. O’Leary noted he would be absent at the next meeting.

It was suggested there be an update on the Avocado Festival and review of the 4" Grade
Calendar contest entries on the next agenda.

ADJOURNMENT
Action:
Moved by Member O’Leary to adjourn the meeting. Seconded by Member Kirby.

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Members Dalily, Kirby, Kurnik, and O’Leary
NOES: None

ABSTAINED: None

ABSENT: Members Brazier and Romani

The meeting adjourned at 4:50 p.m.

Mike Daily, Committee Chairperson

Dawn M. Washburn, Board Secretary

Page 3 of 3
20160307_final



Agenda Packet Page 36 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 37 of 238

MINUTES OF THE ENGINEERING COMMITTEE MEETING
OF THE RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
MARCH 2, 2016

CALL TO ORDER - The Engineering Committee Meeting of the Rainbow Municipal Water
District on March 2, 2016 was called to order by Chairperson Prince at 3:01 p.m. in the Board
Room of the District, 3707 Old Highway 395, Fallbrook, CA 92028. Chairperson Prince,
presiding.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL:

Present: Member Prince
Member Stitle
Member Ratican
Member Taufer

Member Murray
Member Brazier
Member Kirby
Alternate Robertson
Alternate Kirkpatrick

Absent: None

Also Present: General Manager Kennedy
Assistant Rubio

There were five public members present: Mr. & Mrs. Mahr, Mr. Marmett (District ratepayers),
Mr. Warren and Mr. Joseph (Atkins Consultants).

PUBLIC COMMENT RELATING TO ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Mr. Kennedy asked to move Mr. and Mrs. Mahr’s question to Agenda Item 10.

COMMITTEE ACTION ITEMS

*5.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. February 3, 2016

Action:

Moved by Member Stitle to approve the minutes as corrected. Seconded by Member
Taufer.

Page 1 of 5
20160302_final



Agenda Packet Page 38 of 238

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Member Prince, Member Brazier, Member Taufer, Member Stitle, Member
Ratican, Member Murray, Member Kirby, Alternate Member Robertson, and
Alternate Member Kirkpatrick

NOES: None
ABSTAINED: None
ABSENT: None

Discussion went to ltem #10.

6.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPOINT 2016 COMMITTEE OFFICERS

Mrs. Brazier said she would like to stay on the committee, although not as an officer. Mr.
Prince asked if anyone would like to be a Vice Chairperson. Mr. Stitle volunteered.

Action:

Moved by Member Robertson to appoint Member Stitle as Vice Chairperson. Seconded
by Member Murray.

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:
AYES: Member Prince, Member Brazier, Member Taufer, Member Stitle, Member

Ratican, Member Murray, Member Kirby, Alternate Member Robertson, and
Alternate Member Kirkpatrick

NOES: None
ABSTAINED: None
ABSENT: None
Action:

Moved by Member Stitle to elect Member Prince as Chairperson. Seconded by Member
Kirby.

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:
AYES: Member Prince, Member Brazier, Member Taufer, Member Stitle, Member

Ratican, Member Murray, Member Kirby, Alternate Member Robertson, and
Alternate Member Kirkpatrick

NOES: None
ABSTAINED: None
ABSENT: None

DISCUSSION REGARDING JOINT COMMITTEE MEETING WITH THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Mr. Kennedy said the Board approved detailed recommendations from the Strategic Plan and
one of those items included yearly joint committee meetings with the Board. He asked the
committee members to prepare a list of specific items for discussion and to work together on
the scheduling. Discussion ensued.

Page 2 of 5
20160302_final



Agenda Packet Page 39 of 238

MASTER PLAN UPDATE

Mrs. Kirkpatrick provided copies of the Draft Master Plan’s missing appendices. She directed
the committee members’ attention to the Atkins Consultant Representatives for comments and
questions regarding the Draft Mater Plan. Discussion ensued.

Alternate Member Robertson left at 4:00 p.m.

10.

Mr. Kennedy explained that California State requires urban water suppliers to update their
Urban Water Management Plan, which contains detailed evaluation of the water supplies
necessary to meet customer demands; whereas the Master Plan reviews the facilities
more than the sources of water. Discussion ensued.

Mr. Ratican brought up a few comments for discussion and recommended that all edits be
highlighted to facilitate the review.

Mr. Kennedy asked if there were any comments on the CIP list. He explained the CIP list
needs to be released to the Budget and Finance Committee for planning purposes. Discussion
ensued.

Action:
Moved by Member Stitle to approve the CIP list. Seconded by Member Brazier
After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Member Prince, Member Brazier, Member Taufer, Member Stitle, Member
Ratican, Member Murray, Member Kirby and Alternate Member Kirkpatrick.

NOES: None

ABSTAINED: None

ABSENT.: None

SAN LUIS REY GROUNDWATER UPDATE

Mr. Kennedy said a specialist water rights attorney obtain by the District has been assisting with
streamlining the Ground Water Sustainability (GSA) process. He pointed out there has been
revised legislation on how to form GSAs, which multiple agencies would be working through.
He mentioned the next step would be to complete the ground water assessment report and
obtain the Board's approval. Discussion ensued.

STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS MANUAL

Mr. Kennedy introduced Mr. and Mrs. Mahr as current District ratepayers with a property
containing a locked off meter. He mentioned during the cost of service study for the new rate
structure the attorneys reviewed Prop 218 and it was determined that waiving the service fees
for locked off meters was not consistent with the California Constitution and to continue the
same practice would subject the District to potential law suits from all the ratepayers that do not
have locked meters. He pointed out the options available for Mr. and Mrs. Mahr would be to
pay the service fee, reduce the size of the meter or terminate service. Discussion ensued.

Page 3 of 5
20160302_final



Agenda Packet Page 40 of 238

Mr. Kennedy said Mr. and Mrs. Mahr had requested to downsize their meter for two 1-inch
meters per current District policy, although they are also requesting to hook up their two parcels
to one lateral, which would not comply with the District’s standards. He pointed out District
standards only allow one service lateral per property. Discussion ensued.

Mr. Mahr said he has been a member of the District since 1973 and never thought he would
have to address the District under these circumstances. He pointed out he went from a $62 bill
for a locked off meter to a $411 bill, which was very upsetting. He stated he could not afford
the new fixed charges on his locked meter, therefore he has elected the option to downsize his
current meter to two 1-inch meters. Discussion ensued.

Mr. Kennedy said the question here was whether to allow two parcels to hook up to the same
lateral. He mentioned having two parcels served by one lateral would pose a certain amount of
risk, such as low pressure and low flow issues. Discussion ensued.

Mr. Ratican suggested when Mr. and Mrs. Mahr decide to sell the lots they should ensure there
was a reservation for easement on the lot that does not have the service. He also
recommended the requirement of a written maintenance agreement between the two lots. Mr.
Kennedy replied the District would ensure those items would be stipulated as part of the
conditions. Discussion ensued.

Action:

Moved by Member Prince to recommend to the Board to approve the two 1-inch meters
on a single lateral. Seconded by Member Kirby.

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:
AYES: Member Prince, Member Taufer, Member Stitle, Member Ratican, Member

Murray, Member Kirby, Alternate Member Robertson, and Alternate
Member Kirkpatrick

NOES: None
ABSTAINED: Member Brazier
ABSENT: None

Mrs. Kirkpatrick provided a handout summarizing the comments received by the committee
members regarding the Draft Standards and Specifications Manual. She said any additional
comments must be submitted soon, since she plans to bring the final draft to the Board next
month.

Action:
Moved by Member Robertson to include the proposed changes and any other changes

on the Standards and Specification Manual and recommend to the Board for approval.
Seconded by Member Stitle.

Page 4 of 5
20160302_final



Agenda Packet Page 41 of 238

After consideration, the motion CARRIED by the following vote:

AYES: Member Prince, Member Brazier, Member Taufer, Member Stitle, Member
Ratican, Member Murray, Member Kirby, Alternate Member Robertson, and
Alternate Member Kirkpatrick

NOES: None
ABSTAINED: None
ABSENT: None

Discussion went to ltem #6.

11.  LIST OF SUGGESTED AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT SCHEDULED ENGINEERING
COMMITTEE MEETING

The recommended agenda items for the next scheduled Engineering Committee Meeting were
vacating Golf Green Estates easements and agenda changes.

12.  ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 4:50 p.m.

Timothy Prince, Committee Chairperson

Dawn M. Washburn, Board Secretary

Page 5 of 5
20160302_final



Agenda Packet Page 42 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 43 of 238

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Committed to Excellence B O AR D ACT I O N

AINBOW
7

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

SUBJECT

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 16-09 DESIGNATING
VANESSA MARTINEZ AS CONTRACT SIGNER FOR ALL UNION BANK TRANSACTIONS

DESCRIPTION
This Resolution replaces Resolution No. 15-17, which appointed Tom Kennedy as contract signer.

POLICY
N/A

BOARD OPTIONS/FISCAL IMPACTS
N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends Adoption of Resolution No. 16-09.

A

T entiedy, GenerAl Manager 4/26/16

l



Agenda Packet Page 44 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 45 of 238

RESOLUTION NO. 16-09

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
DESIGNATING VANESSA MARTINEZ AS CONTRACT SIGNER FOR ALL
TRANSACTIONS WITH UNION BANK

WHEREAS, in the conduct of District business it is necessary for the District to utilize the
Union Bank, and

WHEREAS, this institution requires an authorized person to sign contracts establishing
contracts with the Union Bank;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by
the Board of Directors of Rainbow Municipal Water District that

1. Vanessa Martinez be designated as the contract signer; and
2. Resolution 16-09 replaces Resolution 15-17.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Rainbow
Municipal Water District held on the 26™ day of April, 2016 by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Dennis Sanford, Board President
ATTEST:

Dawn Washburn, Board Secretary



Agenda Packet Page 46 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 47 of 238

MunICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Committed to Excellence B O AR D ACTI O N

AINBOW
I£

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

SUBJECT

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 16-10 — A RESOLUTION
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT ESTABLISHING
CLASSIFICATIONS AND MONTHLY RATES OF PAY FOR DISTRICT EMPLOYEES EFFECTIVE JULY
3, 2015 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2016 AND THE GENERAL MANAGER'’S SALARY EFFECTIVE AUGUST
28, 2015 THROUGH AUGUST 28, 2016.

DESCRIPTION

Resolution 16-03 incorrectly reflects the salary range for the Associate Engineer job title. Originally it was
in fact placed in salary grade 70, but due to very little response to the position during recruitment it was
moved to a higher grade, and additional requirements added to the job description. The Associate
Engineer was moved to salary grade 90 and the educational requirement of a PE (Professional
Engineer) was added to justify the increase to a higher salary grade.

Resolution No. 16-10 rescinds Resolution No. 16-03.

POLICY

This document needs to be updated as needed to comply with CalPERS requirements and California
Code of Regulations 570.5 and 571.

BOARD OPTIONS/FISCAL IMPACTS
N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the Board approves Resolution ib. 16-10 and direct Human Resources to post a
copy on the RMWD website.

| ALY
Tom Kennedy ' April 26, 2016
General Manager




Agenda Packet Page 48 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 49 of 238

RESOLUTION NO. 16-10

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF RAINBOW MUNICPIAL
WATER DISTRICT ESTABLISHING CLASSIFICATIONS AND MONTHLY RATES
OF PAY FOR DISTRICT EMPLOYEES EFFECTIVE July 3, 2015 through June 30, 2016

Job Title Salary Grade Monthly Salary Range

General Manager n/a $17,000

Engineering Manager
Finance Manager

Human Resources Manager
Operations Manager

120 $10,209-$13,395

Constr. & Maintenance Superintendent
Senior Accountant

Wastewater Superintendent

Water Operations Superintendent

95 $7,975-$10,464

Associate Engineer

Constr. & Maintenance Superintendent
Wastewater Superintendent

Water Operations Superintendent

90 $7,591-$9,960

Constr. & Maintenance Superintendent
Senior Accountant

Wastewater Superintendent

Water Operations Superintendent

85 $7,225-$9,480

IT Administrator 80 $6,877-$9,023

Crew Leader
Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 70 $6,129-$8,042

Crew Leader 65 $5,834-$7,654

Administrative Analyst
Assistant Engineer 60 $5,553-$7,286
Crew Leader

Accountant

Accounting Specialist IT
Electrical/Electronic Technician II
Engineering Inspector II

Engineering Technician II

Human Resources Technician II

Senior Customer Service Representative II
System Operator III

55 $5,285-$6,935

Electrical/Electronic Technician I
Engineering Inspector I
Mechanic II

Water Quality Technician II

50 $5,030-$6,600




Agenda Packet Page 50 of 238

Accounting Specialist I
Electrical/Electronic Technician I
Engineering Inspector I

Engineering Technician I

Human Resources Technician I
Purchasing/Warehouse Technician II
Safety Administrator II

Senior Customer Service Representative I
System Operator 11

Utility Worker III

Water Quality Technician I

45

$4,788-$6,282

Administrative Assistant II
Purchasing/Warehouse Technician I
Safety Administrator I

Water Quality Technician I

40

$4,557-$5980

Mechanic I

Purchasing/Warehouse Technician I
Safety Administrator I

System Operator I

Utility Worker 11

35

$4,338-$5,691

Administrative Assistant I

30

$4,129-$5,417

Customer Service Representative 11
Utility Worker I

25

$3,930-$5,156

Customer Service Representative I

15

$3,560-$4,671

Resolution 16-10 rescinds Resolution 16-03.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED in Open Session at a meeting of the Board of
Directors of the Rainbow Municipal Water District held on the 26™ day of April, 2016 by the

following vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Dawn Washburn, Board Secretary

Dennis Sanford, Board President



Agenda Packet Page 51 of 238

/ AINBOW
ﬁ MummPA; WATER DISTRICT
Committed to Excellence | B O AR D ACTI O N

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

SUBJECT

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPOINT ROBERT MARNETT AS AN ALTERNATE
MEMBER TO THE ENGINEERING COMMITTEE

DESCRIPTION

At their April 6, 2016 Engineering Committee meeting, the committee members voted to recommend the
RMWD Board of Directors appoint Robert Marnett as an alternate member to the Engineering
Committee. If appointed, Mr. Marnett will take Sherry Kirkpatrick’s place on the committee.

POLICY
Administrative Code Section 2.09; Committees

BOARD OPTIONS/FISCAL IMPACTS
The Board may make the appointments.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the Board appoint Robert Marnett as an alternate member to the Engineering
Committee.

Tom Kennedy ' April 26, 2016
General Manager



Agenda Packet Page 52 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 53 of 238

MuniciPAL WATER DISTRICT

Committed to Excellence ” | BO AR D ACTI O N

AINBOW
7

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

SUBJECT

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING VACATION OF EXISTING EASEMENTS FOR
-THE GOLF GREEN ESTATES, TM 5498-1

BACKGROUND

The Golf Green Estates development consists of 94 lots surrounding the Bonsall Elementary School. The
developers have been going through the plan checking process with the District and the County of San
Diego.

DESCRIPTION

The District has existing easements for sewer lines that are adjacent and cross the Golf Green Estates
development shown on the attached Exhibits. The development has granted the District easements over
our existing sewer lines and proposed sewer lines. There are existing easements that do not have
facilities in them and other easements where facilities will be relocated during the construction of the
development. The Developer is requesting we quitclaim the easements that will no longer be in use. As
part of the Golf Green Estates development, they will be deeding the District a site for the new LS1.

The Engineering Committee has reviewed the easement vacation request and recommend the
easements be vacated once conditions are met with the District. Facilities.

-POLICY
N/A

BOARD OPTIONS/FISCAL IMPACTS

1. Authorize the General Manager to execute quitclaim of easements once facilities are relocated
out and accepted by the District.

2. Provide other direction to Staff.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends Option 1.

-— -

(278

gﬁﬁerry Kirkpatrick April 26, 2016
gineering Manager




Agenda Packet Page 54 of 238



£.020

A al D 1 £ D sl
MAYCIIUd T"dURNTL T dyT v Ul £J0

GOLF GREENS ESTATES

RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
EXISTING AND PROPOSED SEWER MAIN

BONSALL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL.

APN 125-300-37

¢ LEGEND

JE— PROE

SED SEWER AN

CALLE DE LAS ROSAS

EXISTING SEWER WA

CALLE DE LAS ESTRELLAS

APN 126-300—20

S G
<

-




L

L

APN 126-300-50

S g

95

&

Yh
s

T

B
T

Agenda Packet Page 560f 238
GOLF GREENS ESTATES

RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
QUITCLAIM'S

Ll

BONSALL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

5
s

7

5i
&
d
¥
)
8
iy
7
b %)
<
| [22)
: 2
'.s'i as E
TR A
e |5 2 y
AR m .j VPN 1 25-300-37
£ | A
,i €] - = £l
i ﬂ &
¥ W .4 o i
L [ < %
T 4 L)
[r_‘.
(=}
s3]
- 2B, craNTE
-l R DISTRICT REC. JANUARY 3,
< GOC NG 7P-5GaTY CR.
O

7
NTED
WATER

10 RAINEDW MUNI
T REL. P22,
1963 AT DOGC. NG 155203, O

QUITCLA
L

e
- c
T AFN 198 400 GUITCLAI £t S PARTIAL
- APN 128-300--50 SOCUMENT #3 . EASEMENT CR
P RAINBOW MUNICIPAL




£.923720

AFPN 126-300-50

-
I‘\ycllud I-dbl’\cl. rayc JI Ul £90

GOLF GREENS ESTATES

RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
ULTIMATE SEWER LAYOUT

»9/,,,\
W

(prﬁ

BONSALL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL.

AN 26--500-27

LEGEND

SSTRELLAS
@

CALLEDELASFT

APN 128 300-.C

P




Agenda Packet Page 58 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 59 of 238
f MuniciPAL WATER DISTRICT
’ Committed to Excellence B O AR D A CTI O N

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

SUBJECT

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING REVISION OF ACCEPTANCE OF TERMS FOR
QUITCLAIM OF EASEMENTS IN EXCHANGE FOR WIDER EASEMENT AND NEW EASEMENT IN
THE PROPOSED MOOSA MITIGATION BANK PHASE 1 PORTION

BACKGROUND

The District has been negotiating with the Conservation Land Group, who represent the owner San Luis
Rey Downs Enterprises (SLRDE) regarding our easements and our concerns since the closure of the
golf course. The San Luis Rey Golf Course shut down on August 6, 2014. SLRDE is turning the land into
a mitigation bank. The mitigation bank will be split into possibly three phases, shown on the attached
exhibit. The District is only considering the easements on the Phase 1 portion of the project. The Board
approved the terms for the easements for the Phase 1 portion of the project at the May 26, 2015 Board
meeting, which included a conditional quitclaim of #22 in exchange for 10 foot widening of #23, a 5 foot
widening of #26, and allowing a small amount of grading over #23.

DESCRIPTION

The District has water and wastewater facilities located along the golf course in easements of various
lengths giving the District the right to access, maintain and repair District facilities when necessary. Due
to the concerns of having a sewer line in the middle of a mitigation bank and the difficulties of accessing,
maintaining and repairing lines in close proximity to mitigation land the District is planning on relocating
the lines out of the mitigation bank into Camino Del Rey. Therefore, the need to widen the existing
easement #26 would not be necessary. The District would need a new easement from our existing sewer
line to Camino Del Rey in order to relocate the sewer line. Thus, revising the original terms approved by
‘the Board last May. The Engineering Committee has reviewed the terms and recommends the approval
of the revision. If the District determines relocating the lines is not feasible, we will retain the current
location of the sewer line.

POLICY
NA

BOARD OPTIONS/FISCAL IMPACTS

1. Authorize the General Manager to execute quitclaim for easement once the District receives the
additional easements.

2. Provide direction to staff to amend the proposal for larger easements.



Agenda Packet Page 60 of 238

3. Do not quitclaim easements. District will be left with its existing easements and concerns of
access and having enough room to repair facilities.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Option 1.

Dtk prisa/t

Sherry Kirkpatrick April 26, 2016
Engineering Manager



| MorroCiubvistaPs
e MoTOSLRDOWNSPS |
= MorroViilasForePS

| r RMWDParcels

R

S .._._..\;

|
|
1
=

This map represents a viusal aid intended to assist
Rainbow MWD personnel with the management of
the water and wastewater system facilitites.

Data provided hereon is not a guarantee of actual field

rennginne nar o cuhotinitiia far racned rdrawvinae and finld varifinstinn




Agenda Packet Page 62 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 63 of 238

MuniciPAL WATER DISTRICT

Committed to Exc«.s.allénce | B O ARD ACT | O N

AINBOW
77

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

SUBJECT

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING EXECUTION OF A SECOND AMENDMENT TO
JOINT AGREEMENT TO IMPROVE SUBDIVISION, JOINT LIEN CONTRACT AND HOLDING
AGREEMENT FOR SAN DIEGO TRACT NO. 5012-1

BACKGROUND

The Gilligan development consists of 13 lots south of Morro Reservoir on Catherine Road shown in the
enclosed Figure. Improvements related to the District consist of approximately 3,825 feet of water main
to serve the development. There are no sewer improvements as the development is on septic. The
development was initially processed through the County and the District in 1998 and has an approved
map. This amendment releases Bank of America from the lien and holding agreement and assigns First
‘American Trust to assume all obligations of Bank of America. This agreement is being reviewed by Legal
Counsel and revisions were recommended to the County.

DESCRIPTION
Below is a description of each agreement and its role:

Second Amendment to Joint Agreement:

o Amend the Joint Agreement to include the First American Trust and assume all obligations of
Bank of America to First American Trust.

Joint Lien Contract
e Extend postponement of construction

Holding Agreement and Holding Agreement on the property

e Holding agreement restricts any sale of the lots until obligations are met under the Joint Lien
Contract.

The Joint Lien will be replaced once the property owner decides to start construction with securities
acceptable to both the District and the County. The Joint Lien and Holding agreement are in effect until
September 24, 2017.



Agenda Packet Page 64 of 238

BOARD OPTIONS/FISCAL IMPACTS
There are no fiscal impacts. The development is responsible for all costs.

The Board options are:

1. Authorize the General Manager to execute Joint Agreement to Improve Subdivision, Joint Lien
Contract and Holding Agreement for San Diego Tract No. 4750-1

2. Provide other direction to Staff.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Option 1.

Shérry Kirkpatrick April 26, 2016
Engineering Manager




Agenda-Packet Page 650f238 —
Agend

Pechanga
Indian
Reservation

1

ff
/
¥
_,," g A <
o il
; 5 ool =
i !
3P0 e, 2 L
N i b= T
;4""-#}.‘ g ! -.:-“ _i
_‘;JF\ .jA‘\_\! ds Ré !%-!n-l Im’= ‘j
(’// i £ }ﬁ-kssl g:‘; _rm_-m...:‘
_,5-"" im-mu-m uv—m-n!ﬂ ‘m-nf-'
qod e g 3
FALLBROGKE Fallbrook §t ¥ 4 2= | &
“ i,_, Sumaidl ! i ;
13 = @é =
X g aeet® \ i PalaRd PALA
B ol Q-
i = , <
:: ;# Pala indian
% S Reservation e
T s,
5 ——
o avum sl
T i
grmg g’ --u\—m—mi-:.hm—‘i
s o
i1 g
' i_. == ] PROJECT LOCATION
g T s
z E £
a 2.
s %
‘G’i -
Em:?. a‘"
w7
£ ¥ BONSALL
& e o Cami
ol e | s
) wld 0
! &
ol

A8 Y R

&
10l

:
.hlln_"*
4

Anv—y,

2
rod
li<
%, 2 .
130 e 3 e et
o

e I.- : ' Gopher Canyen Rd
; 14‘ g‘ !I-I" = tj‘i"i
2 3 3 1
= s G
5 kg = g
2 ob‘v
) 2
%
- (]
O
| / AINBOW
(g i GILLIGAN GROVES TM 5012-1
0 237.5 475 950 1,425 1,900

Feet




Agenda Packet Page 66 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 67 of 238

SECOND AMENDMENT TO JOINT AGREEMENT TO IMPROVE MAJOR
SUBDIVISION, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO TRACT NO. 5012-1, JOINT LIEN CONTRACT
AND HOLDING AGREEMENT NO. 00-4625
(Including Extension of Time and Substitution of Holder)

This Second Amendment to Joint Agreement to Improve Major Subdivision, County of San
Diego Tract No 5012-1, Joint Lien Contract and Holding Agreement No. 00-4625 is entered into this
__ day of , 20___, between the County of San Diego, a political
subdivision of the State of California (“County”), Rainbow Municipal Water District (“District”),
Bank of America, N.A. (Current Holder), successor by merger to LaSalle Bank, N.A., First American
Trust, FSB (New Holder), G-Three LLC, a California Limited Liability Company and Jane B. Gilligan,
Trustee of the John A. Gilligan Family Trust, dated September 3, 1974 collectively known as
(“Owners”), with respect to the following:

RECITALS

A. On September 23, 1998 (6), the Board of Supervisors of the County approved a 13
lot subdivision commonly identified as San Diego Tract No. 5012-1, Final Map 13645, and more
particularly described as Lots 1 through 13, inclusive, Map No. 13645, in the County of San Diego,
State of California, filed in the Office of the County Recorder of said County, September 25, 1998,
(hereinafter the “Subdivision”). At the time the final map was approved, J. Phillip Gilligan, Co-
Trustee of the John A. Gilligan Family Trust executed September 3, 1974 (Gilligan), Donald M.
Hoffman, Trustee of the Jet Trust (Hoffman), collectively known as (“Original Owners”) entered
into an agreement dated September 23, 1998 with the District and County entitled, “Joint
Agreement to Improve Major Subdivision County of San Diego Tract No. 5012-1” (“Joint
Improvement Agreement”), to guarantee the construction of public and private improvements in
compliance with the Subdivision Map Act (Govt. Code § 66410, et seq.). County, District, Original
Owners and Security Trust Company (“Security Trust”), entered into an agreement entitled, “Joint
Lien Contract,” recorded on September 24, 1998 (“Joint Lien Contract”) to secure the obligations
stated in the Joint Improvement Agreement. Title to the subdivision was transferred to Security
Trust as holder pursuant to Holding Agreement No. 00-4625 recorded on September 24, 1998
(“Holding Agreement”) to implement the Joint Lien Contract.

B. At the request of the Original Owners, the Board of Supervisors of the County on
February 25, 2004 (23), approved an “ Amendment to Joint Agreement to Improve Subdivision,
Joint Lien Contract and Joint Holding Agreement” (“First Amendment”) recorded March 15, 2004,
whereby the time to complete improvements required by the Joint Improvement Agreement was
extended and G-Three LLC, a California Limited Liability Company, substituted Hoffman and
assumed all obligations stated in and relating to the Joint Improvement Agreement, Joint Lien
Contract and Holding Agreement.



Agenda Packet Page 68 of 238

C. First American Trust, FSB (Successor to Bank of America, N.A. successor by merger
to La Salle Bank, N.A. which was the successor to The Chicago Trust Company of California, which
was the successor to Security Trust Company) desires to fully assume all obligations of Bank of
America, N.A. as the holder stated in and relating to the Joint Lien Contract and the Holding
Agreement.

D. County is amenable to allowing First American Trust, FSB to fully assume all
obligations of Bank of America, N.A. as holder stated in and relating to the Joint Lien Contract and
Holding Agreement.

AGREEMENT

WHEREFORE, it is agreed by and between County, District, First American Trust, FSB, Bank
of America, N.A. and Owners as follows:

1. First American Trust, FSB fully and unconditionally assumes all obligations as holder
in place of Bank of America, N.A. stated in and relating to the Joint Lien Contract and the Holding
Agreement. Bank of America, N.A. is hereby released of all obligations stated in and relating to the
Joint Lien Contract and the Holding Agreement.

2. Section 1l of the Joint Lien Contract and Section 4 of the Holding Agreement are
amended to allow for the transfer of title between the Owners and any former or future holder
under the Holding Agreement for the sole purpose of allowing for the substitution of holders.
Consent to the substitution of holders shall be approved in writing by the County’s Director,
Department of Public Works, or his designee. Substitution of First American Trust, FSB in place of
Bank of America, N.A. is hereby approved. Owner shall cause a deed or deeds reflecting transfer
of title to the subdivision to First American Trust, FSB as holder to be recorded.

3. The County Subdivision Ordinance, San Diego County Code of Regulatory
Ordinances § 81.101 et seq., (“Subdivision Ordinance”) was amended and restated by Ordinance
No. 10037, effective March 26, 2010. The Joint Improvement Agreement, Joint Lien Contract and
Holding Agreement are amended and shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with the
Subdivision Ordinance, as amended. By way of example, references to Subdivision Ordinance
Sections 81.406.1 and 81.712 in Section F. of the Recitals to the Joint Lien Contract shall mean and
refer respectively to Sections 81.409 and 81.711, references to Subdivision Ordinance Section
81.214 in Section D. of the Recitals, Sections L.A.(2) and llI. of the Joint Lien Contract shall mean
and refer to Section 81.205, and references to Subdivision Ordinance Section 81.406 in Section
IV.B. of the Joint Lien Contract shall mean and refer to Section 81.409.

4. Without limiting the ability to grant extensions of the performance completion date
or require immediate completion of improvements, Section | of the Joint Improvement Agreement



Agenda Packet Page 69 of 238

and Section I.H. of the Joint Lien Contract are amended to require substitution of security and the
construction of subdivision improvements by September 24, 2017.

5. Owners shall make all deposits required by the County and District.

6. Except as hereinabove amended, the Joint Improvement Agreement, Joint Lien
Contract and Holding Agreement and all provisions, terms and conditions thereof shall remain in
full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have caused this amendment to be executed as of the
date first written above.

G-THREE LL LIFORNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY,NOWNER
Name TRese<a Qa \li 419 kro\ ' Title haaging Membes

6 \UI\(‘&C. L/L—L./
JANE B. GILLIGAN, Trustee of the JOHN A. GILLIGAN FAMILY TRUST, dated September 3, 1974,
OWNER

By: Q Cne [3 Iulli y gn TR
/(ane B. Gilligan, Trustee /

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

By: By:
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors Name: Title:

f H-17-2e1v
See Attached For Official Notary Wording



Agenda Packet Page 70 of 238

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., (CURRENT HOLDER) Successor by merger to LASALLE BANK, N.A.

S Uice Cesidadt

‘“-I\E_ﬁ]? j Title
= ML P

Name Title

By:
By:

FIRST AMERICAN TRUST, FSB (NEW HOLDER)

Lo 2.

Title

sy Ve

Title

Note: All signatures must be notarized.



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOW]

N N A R RN RN RN TN

DGMENT CIVIL CODE § 1189

N A N A N A N R N N N A N A N N N N N e N B N N O

AN TS

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California )

County of _ORANGE )

On OLTORER. 13, A5 . before me, SLovT T. MIYASHIRG NOTARY Pubiic.
Date Here Insert Name and Title of the Officer

personally appeared E:A. MARKWORIR AND RoReeT BRACKWELL ————
Name(s) of Signer(s)

—

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in
his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s),
or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph
is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

SCOTT J. MIYASHIRO Signature
Commission # 2080607

Notary Public - California
Orange County
Comm. Expires Sep 30, 2018

Place Notary Seal Above

OPTIONAL
Though this section is optional, completing this information can deter alteration of the document or
fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document.

Description of Attached Document

Title or Type of Document: Document Date:

Number of Pages: Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:

Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s)

Signer's Name: Signer's Name:

LI Corporate Officer — Title(s): .| Gorporate Officer — Title(s): _ —_—
'l Partner — [ Limited [ General I I Partner — L!Limited General

[ Individual [ | Attorney in Fact "1 Individual | Attorney in Fact

LIl Trustee M Guardian or Canservator I [ Trustee [ Guardian or Conservator

[ Other: I Other:

Signer Is Representing: _ Signer s Representing:

RN ZSacasaass

©2014 National Natary Assogiation * www.NationalNat

LEALR

V.

AR a5

+ 1-800-US NOTARY (1-800-876-6827) ltem #5907




Agenda Packet Page 72 of 23—

CALIFORNIA ALI.-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE § 1189

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of Califorpi

County of ___ n ﬂ/ ?4(9

On /0//6/20/5 7 before me, %N/ TMG/@/M@» /Vdﬁﬂf 414//0

Date Here Insert Na and, T'tle of the Qtf/cer

personally appeared —ZI%/M// ¢ %ﬂ /K ”// i éﬁﬂy / v

Name(s) of Slgner(s)

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the erson(s) whose name(s) igfare
su scribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that /shefthey executed the same in

i§/hef/their authorized capacity(i f.(fs and that by h‘l’/be’r/thelr signature(s) on the instrument the person(s),
or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph

AMY J. MCKENNA is true and correct.
e reee WITNESS my hand and official seal.
Slgnature%q/u d %/@WM&«/
[ ature of Notary Public

Place Notary Seal Above

OPTIONAL
Though this section is optional, completing this information can deter alteration of the document or
fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document.

Description of Attached Document

Title or Type of Document: Document Date:

Number of Pages: Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:

Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s)

Signer’s Name: Signer’'s Name:

L] Corporate Officer — Title(s): [ Corporate Officer — Title(s):

U] Partner — [ Limited (] General J Partner — [ Limited [ General

[J Individual J Attorney in Fact [J Individual [ Attorney in Fact

{1 Trustee 00 Guardian or Conservator O Trustee O Guardian or Conservator
{1 Other: [J Other:

Signer Is Representing: Signer Is Representing:

©2014 Natlonal Notary Assomaﬂon * WWW. NatlonalNotary org ° 1 800 US NOTARY (1 800 876- 6827) Item #5907



Agenda Packet Page 73 of 238

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE

CERTIFICATE OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT
(CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE § 1189)

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the
truthfuiness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ’ )

COUNTYOF ___ S Dieco )

On efore me, ]///avm%cc\ ﬁllmmwo / 8/6104,9) Dob\\C\
(Date) (Here Insert Name and Title 6]‘ the Ojfflcer)

personally appeared Yane. B &llodn  and. Theesa L’l ;n\aam k(é.\
who proved to me on the basis of satusfa‘atory evidence to be the perso@Wh e nam
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he@hg@xecuted the same

in Nhuthorlzed capauand that by‘hu(h@@natur@n the instrument

the perso r the entity upon behalf of which the perso@cted executed the instrument.

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

FRANCESCA FALZARANO
Commission # 2067433
Notary Public - California
San Diego County
My Comm Expires May = -

WITNESS my hand and official seal. e

%

FRANCESCA FALZARANO
Commission # 2067433
Notary Public - California z

San Diego County =
My Comm. Expires May 8, 2018

Signature of Notar lic

ADDITIONAL OPTIONAL INFORMATION

Description of Attached Document

Title or Type of Document: Document Date: NV 17 2015 .
+6 WRBIC Wajor O‘de\l\S\O(\ Cax\'r § @ uTwci— ND. 5012 - {,

Number of Page¥* "4 Ben SERERE 0 k"mm“éﬂ%ﬁgﬂ) o465

Additional Information:

R o

revision date 01/01/2015



Agenda Packet Page 74 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 75 of 238

RECORDING REQUESTED BY
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

Tom Fink, Sr. Vice President

U.S. Trust, Bank of America PWM
450 B. Street, 20th Floor

San Diego, CA 92101

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER'’S USE

CONFIRMATION OF RELEASE OF DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS
UNDER JOINT LIEN CONTRACT AND HOLDING AGREEMENT

Each of the County of San Diego, a political subdivision of the State of California (the
“County”), Rainbow Municipal Water District (the “District”), G-Three LLC, a California
Limited Liability Company (“G-Three”) and Jane B. Gilligan, as the sole successor Trustee of
the John A. Gilligan Family Trust dated September 3, 1974 (the “Gilligan Trust”), hereby
releases each of (i) Bank of America, N.A. (the “Bank”), in its corporate capacity, and (ii) the
Bank in its capacity as “Holder” under that certain Holding Agreement No. 00 4625 entered into
on September 23, 1998 (collectively, the “Released Parties™), from any and all duties, liabilities,
claims and obligations of or under the following contracts, agreements or instruments:

1. The Joint Lien Contract entered into on September 23, 1998 by and between
County, District, Donald M. Hoffman as Trustee of the Jet Trust (i.e., G-Three’s predecessor-in-
interest) and the Gilligan Trust (by J. Phillip Gilliam, as the then acting Trustee), and recorded
on September 24, 1998 as Document No. 1998-0610549 in the Official Records of San Diego
County, California, and as thereafter amended from time to time(the “Joint Lien Contract”); and

2. The Holding Agreement No. 00 4625 dated and entered on September 23, 1998,
by and between Donald M. Hoffman as Trustee of the Jet Trust (i.e., G-Three’s predecessor-in-
interest), the Gilligan Trust (by J. Phillip Gilliam, as the then acting Trustee) and Security Trust
Company, as recorded on September 24, 1998 as Document No. 1998-0610550 in the Official
Records of San Diego County, California, and as thereafter amended from time to time (the
“Holding Agreement”).

The Bank is the successor-in-interest to Security Trust Company through a series of bank
mergers and/or acquisitions. Specifically, (i) Chicago Trust Company of California was the



Agenda Packet Page 76 of 238

successor-in-interest to Security Trust Company, (ii) LaSalle Bank N.A. was the successor-in-
interest to Chicago Trust Company of California, and (iii) Bank of America, N.A. is the
successor-in-interest to LaSalle Bank N.A.

The County and the District further confirm their authorization and approval for the Bank as
“Holder” under the Holding Agreement to transfer and convey title of the real property identified
in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein (i.e., the real property that was the subject
of the Holding Agreement and the Joint Lien Contract) to “G-Three LLC, a California Limited
Liability Company” and “Jane B. Gilligan, successor Trustee of the John A. Gilligan Family
Trust dated September 3, 1974,” as undivided fee owners, and such transfer has been and is
authorized and approved by the County and the District.

Dated: The County of San Diego, a political
Subdivision of the State of California:

[signature}

By:

[Insert Name]
(On behalf of its Board of Supervisors)

Its:
[Insert Title/Capacity]
Dated: Rainbow Municipal Water District:
[signature]
By:
[Insert Name]
Its:

[Insert Title/Capacity]

[signatures continued next page]



Dated: _ O\ - 29~ (o

Dated:

s 29 d0/c

Agenda Packet Page 77 of 238

G Three LLC a California Limited

By [ here=e H. &, H.acm Kool

[Insert Name]

Its: _Manaaiva_imemeey” C’):ﬂ)\\’w S

[Insert“[’itle/éapacity]

Q/Q w 135 s,
J ?ﬂz/ B. Gilligan, as the sole sucg’s(ssor
Trastee of the John A. Gilligan Family Trust
dated September 3, 1974

[A NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FOR EACH SIGNATORY IS TO FOLLOW]



Agenda Packet Page 78 of 238

Acknowledgment (G-Three LLC Representative)

A notary public or other officer
completing this certificate verifies only
the identity of the individual who signed
the document to which this certificate is
attached, and not the truthfulness,
accuracy, or validity of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
) ss:
COUNTY OF __ San Dje 40 )
On_ Yo 29 2016 before me, ___leSSa PQ*'@(—\T - Notan, PJ})[ ic
Notary Public (insert name and title of the officer),l

personally appeared —TL:OX esa M . C‘)T”\QOW‘\ P\‘ro( , who proved to me on the
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(sy whose name(s) is/are-subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they-executed the same in his/her/their—
authorized capacity(igs), and that by his/her/theirsignature(syon the instrument the person(s}, or
the entity upon behalf of which the person(s)acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the

foregoing paragraph is true and correct.
! e OFFICIAL SEAL l
B TESSA PATTI

e o) NOTARY PUBUC-CAUFORNIA?;
=8;// COMM, NO. 2092355 -
y SAN DIEGO COUNTY
MY COMM. EXP. DEC. 5, 2018

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature: %/}DO{ /%

[Seal]



Agenda Packet Page 79 of 238

Acknowledgment (Trustee of the Gilligan Trust)

A notary public or other officer
completing this certificate verifies only
the identity of the individual who signed
the document to which this certificate is
attached, and not the truthfulness,
accuracy, or validity of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
) ss:
COUNTY OF __Sen Dieoo )
J '\
On__{Jan 29 s, . 2006 before me, TlesSa Poﬂl"’v ) Ncﬁﬁ(\.;/ p\)b/ C
Notary Public (insert name and title of the officer),
personally appeared :3?%/) e E. Gilligan , who proved to me on the

basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person Hose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged to me that-kefshe/they-executed the same in histher/their—
authorized capacity(igs); and that by hisfher/theirsignature(s)on the instrument the person(sy, or
the entity upon behalf of which the person(sy4cted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature: U@{ %

[Seal]

OFFICIAL SEAL

v\  TESSAPATTI S

=" NOTARY PUBLIC-CALIFORNIAR

~ COMM. NO. 2092355 :
SAN DIEGO COUNTY

MY COMM. EXP. DEC. 5, 2018




Agenda Packet Page 80 of 238

Acknowledgment (District Representative)

A notary public or other officer
completing this certificate verifies only
the identity of the individual who signed
the document to which this certificate is
attached, and not the truthfulness,
accuracy, or validity of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO ; >

On , 2015 before me,

Notary Public (insert name and title of the officer),

personally appeared , who proved to me on the

basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or
the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature:

[Seal]



Agenda Packet Page 81 of 238

EXHIBIT “A” - LEGAL DESCRIPTION

059626\7299484v2



) [ -

[

)

Agenda Packet Page 82 of 238

EXHIBIT “A”

THAT PORTION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 24, TOWNSHIP 10
SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST, SAN BERNARDINO MERIDIAN, IN THE COUNTY OF SAN
DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO OFFICIAL PLAT THEREOF,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 24; THENCE NORTH
00° 36° 22” EAST, 1,311.40 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88° 50’ 57" EAST, 987.08 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 00° 29° 58” WEST, 1,314.49 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88° 40’ 17" WEST,
989.55 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.



Agenda Packet Page 83 of 238

AINBOW
6 Mumcnm WATER DISTRICT
Committed to Excellence B O AR D ACTI O N

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

SUBJECT

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT THE 2016 WATER AND WASTEWATER MASTER
PLAN UPDATE

BACKGROUND

On January 27, 2015 the Board approved the award of the update to the Water and Wastewater Master
Plans to Atkins. The purpose of the Master Plan Updates is to identify potential system deficiencies,
confirm transmission main sizing and identify future capital improvements projects based on updated
ultimate demand projections. The District's most recent water and wastewater master plans were prepared
by Dudek & Associates in 2006. There is the potential for a considerable amount of new development both
within and outside the current District boundaries in the near future. The water and wastewater master plans
serve as the basis for critical infrastructure decisions and capital fees. Any delays in the master plan
completion will delay the capacity fee analysis. With the rising cost of imported water it is important for the
District to develop local water sources to improve reliability and stabilize water rates. Most critical among the
infrastructure decisions is to build a District-owned wastewater reclamation plant and recycled distribution
system, or to continue to convey wastewater to Oceanside. The master plans will consider both existing and
ultimate, year 2030, conditions.

DESCRIPTION
Water Master Plan:

The scope of work for this study included tasks to document and analyze existing facilities, develop unit
water demands and peaking factors, project ultimate water demands, update the water system hydraulic
models and recommend facility and operational improvements based on the hydraulic analysis results.
General conclusions from the report include:

e Water demands have declined significantly since our peak in 1990. Transmission mains, pumps
are storage are sized to meet ultimate demands. No major CIP projects recommend in these
areas.

e Several areas of high pressure were identified (>200psi). Several zone boundary revisions were
recommended to reduce pressures and increase reliability with pressure reducing stations.

e The updated hydraulic model exhibited difficulty in meeting minimum fire flow requirements and
projects to increase fire flow were listed.

e Overall reservoir capacity for the District is 235 MG. There is an operational storage surplus of 88
MG and during a 10 day outage from SDCWA there is an overall water storage surplus of 39.4
MG. Beck reservoir is not required for potable water storage. The Beck Reservoir UV Project is
no longer on the CIP list and once this Master Plan is adopted the project will be officially ended.
SANDAG Series 13 Land Use was used for ultimate build-out demand projections.

e Ultimate system average day demand is projected to be 18.7 MGD.



Agenda Packet Page 84 of 238

Wastewater Master Plan:

The need for updating the wastewater master plan is similar in nature to that of the water master plan.
The purpose for the Master Plan is to identify capacity restrictions in the existing system, evaluate
potential additional flows associated with growth of the customer base, size the infrastructure needs to
accommodate the capacity for growth and overall plan improvements that minimize the risk of sanitary
sewer overflows. The scope of work for this study included tasks to document and analyze the existing
facilities, project the flows and impacts of additional flows into the system as new connections are made,
update the wastewater system hydraulic models and recommend facility and operational improvements
based on the hydraulic analysis results. General conclusions from the report include:

e To continue for to the City of Oceanside San Luis Rey Wastewater Treatment plant, interceptor
upgrades are required.
Inflow and Infiltration is contributing a substantial volume to overall system flows.
Treatment capacity at the City of Oceanside San Luis Rey WWTP is limited to 1.5 MGD.
Additional capacity of 0.14 MGD is required for buildout.
Existing average dry weather flows total 0.7 MGD, or 46% of available treatment capacity.
Sewer flows have dropped in response to the drought mandate.
Lift Station 1 and surrounding pipelines from Mission on SR 76 to Lift Station 2 have been verified
requiring upsize. District is currently designing this project.

The WRP project alternatives offer opportunities for the District to be independent of the City of
Oceanside, avoid costs to upsize pipelines to Oceanside for ultimate buildout and purchase additional
capacity at the San Luis Rey Wastewater Treatment plant. A WRP would provide a reliable, drought
proof local water supply for agricultural users. The WRP plant alternatives have been included in the CIP
along with a recycled water capital improvement projects. District is currently completing a predesign
report for this alternative.

There is a potential that we can identify solutions that would allow certain improvements, both physical
and contractual, to be made with the City of Oceanside that would provide a cost effective way to remain
with the City of Oceanside and receive recycled water. Part of the pre-design process that is underway
currently includes discussions with Oceanside that will settle this point. Two meetings have been held to
date and while this process shows promise, the details have not yet been settled. Should this process
bear fruit, a revision to the Master Plan will be made to adjust the CIP list related to how the wastewater
is reclaimed.

The Engineering Committee and the Board have had project updates from the Master Planning team. At
the March Engineering Committee, comments were given to the team to incorporate into the report and
the committee recommends the Board adopt the 2016 Master Plan Updates.

The Master Plan Update is provided under separate cover and available on our website.

POLICY

It is the policy of the District for the Board of Directors to adopt Master Plan documents to be utilized by
District staff for planning and execution of infrastructure projects.

8.38 — Water Master Plan
9.01.030 — Sewer Master Plan



Agenda Packet Page 85 of 238

BOARD OPTIONS/FISCAL IMPACTS

This project is included in the District's 2015/2016 CIP budget. The Master Plans CIP list will be used to
phase out and budget projects.

1) Adopt the 2016 Water and Wastewater Master Plan Update

2) Review the 2016 Water and Wastewater Master Plan Update and adopt at the next regular
meeting. Release the draft CIP list to the Finance Committee for their finance model projections
and budgetary purposes

3) Direct staff to recommend other options

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Option 1 or Option 2.

Sherry Kirkpatrick April 26, 2016
Engineering Manager



Agenda Packet Page 86 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 87 of 238

MunictPaL WATER DISTRICT

Committed to Excellence B O AR D ACTI O N

AINBOW
7

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

SUBJECT
DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION RELATED TO NORTH COUNTY IRRIGATED LANDS GROUP

DESCRIPTION

Background

Since the 1980s, the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board has regulated discharges from
agricultural and nursery operations (agricultural operations) to prevent or minimize the discharge of
pollutants that may adversely impact the quality or beneficial uses of the waters of the State. In the late
2000’s, The RWQCB issued Conditional Waiver No. 4 (Order No. R4-2007-0104) which required
agricultural operations to perform site specific monitoring on their own or join a regional monitoring group.

Starting in 2010, former RMWD General Manager Dave Seymour embarked on an effort to create a
monitoring group and received applications from about 200 RMWD customers to join the RMWD
monitoring group. After being informed by the RWQCB that there were some technical issues with the
documentation of the initial monitoring group, a revised effort was launched in 2013 to both correct the
administrative record and establish a separate Limited Liability Corporation (LLC) for the group. The
RMWD Board of Directors created the North County Irrigated Lands Group, LLC (NCILG) in January 2014.

After creating the NCILG, RMWD staff undertook a second registration process with agricultural customers.
During this process, a total of 98 customers representing 565 irrigated acres joined the NCILG. After
collecting the initial fees of $250/irrigated acre, a delay in the regulations from the RWQCB lead to a refund
of $100/irrigated acre to those who had paid a few months earlier. Refunds were mailed out in the spring
of 2014. A total of $41,000 remained in the NCILG fund after the refunds.

Over the next several months, RMWD staff, as well as Chuck Sneed working as a consultant, worked to
prepare for the monitoring requirements of Waiver 4. At the time, it was anticipated that additional
regulatory changes would be forthcoming, so a good deal of effort was in anticipation of the new
regulations, but the bulk of the work was in communicating with members about required inspections and
other activities.

Current Regulatory Environment

While it was anticipated that the RWQCB would enact a successor to Waiver 4 sometime in late 2014, that
never materialized. Waiver 4 had actually expired in early 2014 and early drafts of a successor starting
being published in late 2014. As the months went by, in August 2015 the RWQCB finally notified operators
of monitoring groups that there was no specific requirements to comply with Waiver 4. The RWQCB went
on to remind us that any discharges are still required to be in compliance with the general provisions of the
Water Code.



Agenda Packet Page 88 of 238

In recent communications with RWQCB staff, it appears that they are in a renewed effort to complete the
next version of the regulations prior to the end of calendar year 2016. A California Environmental Quality
Act process has been initiated as the first step in developing the new regulations. The staff at the San
Diego RWQCB is focusing on court cases from other areas of the State to provide clarity on how to develop
the revised regulations. At issue are changes that may require increased monitoring of nitrogen as well
as provisions for how small farmers are required to comply. At this point it is impossible to tell if the new
regulations will be more restrictive than the previous version or not, but some of the anti-backsliding
provisions of the statutes will pretty much ensure that the new regulations will have additional provisions
that are not included in the previous version.

Financial Viability of NCILG

The NCILG is a small group consisting of 565 irrigated acres of land. As a comparison, the Farm Bureau’s
monitoring group has over 35,000 acres of land under its program. Early estimates by RMWD staff
informed NCILG members that annual costs would be about $10/acre for the monitoring program. At the
current acreage count, this amounts to just $5,650 per year in revenue to support the program.

In its current form, the required monitoring and reporting required under Waiver 4 will cost a great deal. In
order to be in compliance, a monitoring plan must be prepared by a properly licensed engineering firm and
the monitoring itself must be completed by appropriately certified individuals. While no formal monitoring
has been performed by the NCILG, the Farm Bureau has performed this monitoring and the cost for their
program is in excess of $100,000 per year for the service. If we add RMWD staff time to handle
communications with members, collection of fees, and communications with regulators, the total annual
cost of the NCILG is expected to exceed $150,000.

It is important to note here that while these costs seem very high, the fact is that since the members of the
NCILG are spread all across the District’s large boundary, the monitoring program is nearly as extensive
as it would be for the Farm Bureau’s group since the monitoring areas are overlapping. We essentially
have two groups monitoring the same basic area.

No part of the NCILG’s costs may be subsidized by the RMWD general fund as this would be a violation
of Props 218 and 26. All costs must be recovered by the members of the NCILG on an annual basis. The
most viable way to recover costs is by dividing all of the expenses by the number of acres and charging
based on a per-acre fee. Based on the current projections of costs and the number of acres in the group,
the annual cost per acre for RMWD is expected to be approximately $265 per acre.

One of the reasons that the NCILG was formed was over concerns about the cost of membership in the
Farm Bureau. The Farm Bureau has an enroliment fee of $250 per acre up to a max of $1250 just to join
plus a fee of $250 per year to maintain membership. This is in addition to any specific costs related to the
monitoring program. The Farm Bureau has a strict policy about the requirement to be a member of the
Farm Bureau to participate in any of their programs.

The Farm Bureau cost structure is such that the monitoring costs are spread among a much larger group
of acreage than the NCILG, so that even if the costs for their program were double the NCILG cost
(unlikely) the total cost per acre per year would still be under $10/acre. This is a small fraction of the cost
per acre of the NCILG, but the question has been whether or not the membership dues from the Farm
Bureau would overwhelm the monitoring costs.

The following charts are designed to highlight the financial issues confronting the NCILG. In order to deal
with the impact of the first year fee from the Farm Bureau, these comparisons use a five year cost analysis.

The first chart shows the relative costs for parcels of various sizes between the Farm Bureau and the
NCILG.



Agenda Packet Page 89 of 238

B Farm Bureau E NCILG
300000 300000
Annual NCILG Monitoring Cost — $150000
230000 280000
All Members
250000 o 260000
248000 NCILG Monitoring Cost per acre $265 i 240000
1223
§ 220000 Tolal Acres in gioup  565.1 || 220000
O 80000 1§
2 ~oonae Member Count 98 00000
£ 180000 j 160000
S 160000 {| 160000
T 140000 || 140000
4]
— 120000 120000
&
¥ 100000 [| 100000
[0
2 80000 it 80000
L
50000 60000
40000 | 40000
20000 ] ] 20000
.......,‘----u.::--.:ﬂn-r:w:-:l.asﬂ-E]-J-'J-iJ--J"-}-]-Jd"’.]-]-]nl sl

o

011112223334445586778910111221223394
Acres lrrigated

As this chart shows, the higher the acreage the greater the cost for the NCILG program. While the majority
of the members of the NCILG group are small, one member has 194 acres under irrigation. As this chart
clearly shows, that one member will pay a huge percentage of the total cost ~ and much more than they
would in the Farm Bureau'’s group. The cost per acre here is $265 — a number that is certain to compel a
reaction by the larger members of the group. If only this one large member leaves the group, the numbers
shift dramatically:

M Farm Bureau HNCie
75000 75006
Annual NCILG Monitoning Cost $150000
70000 70000
All Members Except Largest Single Member

85000 £ < q 85900

0000 NCILG Menitoring Cost per acre  $404 1 so000
2] SEOMD
@ 95000 TotafAcresingroup 3711 85000
%]

A AM000
o 50000 Member Count 87 50509
45000 45000
& 40000 i 40000
T 35000 i 35000
G
30000 i 20000
a‘? i
L 25000 26000
T
G\: 20000 20809

15000 ‘ 16000

p | |
10000 ‘ il 10000
5900 = lq ]ll_H ] ]J i | J | 5000
0 l.lml‘lﬂl]ﬂljl] pinnlunnes o
0111122233344485677 8910112212232

Acres brigatad

Here, with just one member leaving due to the high cost of the NCILG, the per acre cost swells to over
$400 per acre and the five year costs to be in the NCILG are higher for nearly all members. In this scenario
we should expect additional membership losses. The following chart considers what the impact would be
if only the small members (2 acres or under) remain:



Agenda Packet Page 90 of 238

B Farm Bureau B NCILG
5 28000
5C0C
26000 Annuai NCILG Monitoring Cost $150000
4G 24400
24000 2 Acres and Under P
s
22000 22000
2000 NCILG Monitoring Cosi peracre $2322
» 20000 o | o000
z Total Acres ingroup  64.6 .
& 1scon _ 16200
jed Member Count 46 | -
=44 { Pty
5 16000 |
£ 14000 o | 14500
= | -
E 12600 [H . | 12060
Q Ten |
7 000 f | | 10000
@ |
kY a | A0
> 3000 ' ; 8000
@ | |
P | | -
U 5000 | | 6950
4600 | 5 4060
2000 }—I ; | ! ' ' 2000
.B8)8)8)8)8)8)8).
¢ 1 1 2 2 2

1 1
Acres Irrigated

Now the NCILG would be reduced to just 65 acres and this chart shows that operating a regional monitoring
program for such a small area is not practical. It must be stressed here that since these parcels are spread
all around the watershed, the level of effort for monitoring does not go down in a linear fashion with the
number of acres. However, even if it were possible to cut the cost of the program by 2/3rds (down to $50K
per year) the picture does not get much better:



42000

3000

Five Year T:

26000

10005

Any way you slice the data here, it is increasingly clear that many members will leave the NCILG for the
Farm Bureau's group for the simple reason that it is cheaper, and that as members leave it will get more
expensive for those left behind. As each wave of departures forces a recalculation of costs, more will
make the decision to seek a lower cost of compliance and will leave as well.

=
1mﬁ| I]III I\I
ey ,]
oot 11 3
Acres in

M Farm Boraai:. BNCHG

Arnust NOILG MonBoring Cost $50000
All Members
NGiLG Monitorng Cost per acrs $88
Totat Acres ingroup 565.1

Rernber Count 98

14

a LLL&??!—F?II”&J??PPB'J”“ []ﬂl}ﬂl]l‘ll‘ll]

T 6778 9101110210080

Acres mgared

B Form Burasu NCILG

Arnuai NCILG Momtoring Cost - $50000

Four Acres and Under

NCILG Monitonng Costper acre $209

Tulal Acres ngroup  167.35

Meraber Count 77

rl |
3
ed

2
C?

POLICY

136300

0080

i ao00s0

70080

EDBBA

BOCUD

209080

200G

10050

2
A

2400¢

22000

26ace

1806¢

G

Agenda Packet Page 91 of 238

W Faim Bursau NUILG

Annual NCILG Momslering Cost $50000

Ly

R

All Members Less Largest Single Mernber

NCILG Moniloring Cost peracrs. $135

Totai Acres ingmup 3711

Acres lrrigated

448556778 D1G11H2212232

it IIIIHIII

This item relates to the NCILG, LLC and thereby has no specific RMWD policy impacts.

BOARD OPTIONS/FISCAL IMPACTS

Since the NCILG is an LLC, the Board has several options:

1.

Dissolve the NCILG —in this process, the group would simply be dissolved. Staff would notify both

the members of the NCILG and the RWQCB of the dissolution.
to determine how to comply with upcoming regulations.

Members would be on their own



Agenda Packet Page 92 of 238

2. Transfer Responsibly of the NCILG to the members — in this process, we would solicit from within
the members of the group one or more individuals who are willing to register with the Secretary of
State as being in charge of the group and assuming legal control of the LLC. The LLC is a
corporation and requires certain actions to be taken in addition to the day to day management of
the group.

3. Transfer the LLC to the Farm Bureau — legal counsel has indicated that the Board could transfer
the entire LLC over to the Farm Bureau. This may allow for an easier transition for the members
and a more cost effective option for the long term. There will need to be a bit of coordination
between the current members and the Farm Bureau as each would need to join the Farm Bureau
in order to obtain coverage from their monitoring group. Initial discussions with the Farm Bureau
indicates that they are not interested in taking over the LLC, so this option may not be viable.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

It is abundantly clear that the continued viability of the NCILG is unlikely. For this reason, the Staff
recommendation is to take one of the three actions indicated above. Staff recommends that the Board
solicit input from the members of the NCILG in the form of a poll to determine whether or not there is a
strong preference of the members of the group as to which option is more desirable. Absent such a poll,
the staff recommendation would be to choose Option 3 as it is unlikely that either of the other options will
be anywhere close to being as cost effective.

Tom Kennedy April 26, 2016
General Manager



Agenda Packet Page 93 of 238

MuniciPAL WATER DISTRICT

Committed to Excellence B O AR D ACTI O N

AINBOW
7

'BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

SUBJECT

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE ORDINANCE NO. 16-07 AMENDING AND
UPDATING ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SECTION 8.12 — RENDERING AND PAYMENT OF BILLS

BACKGROUND

On November 1, 2000, the Board of Directors approved Resolution No. 00-22, Establishing a Waiver of
Charges Policy. The policy allowed certain fees such as late fees and unlock fee, to be waived upon
customer request if they have had no late charges over the preceding two years and have not been
granted a waiver within the two year period preceding the date of the late bill. Since the inclusion of
section 8 of the Administrative Code in 2014, the Waiver of Charges Policy has been superseded by the
new language pertaining to delinquent account fees in Administrative Code Section 8.12.020.6. The new
wording states that no fees related to delinquent accounts will be refunded except in the case of an error
made by the District.

‘The District has received numerous inquiries from Customers requesting a waiver of a penalty fee
incurred such as a late fee or a 48 hour notice fee, and some have referenced that in the past they were
allowed such adjustment on account. The Customer Service department has been adhering to the Code
and not allowing waiving of late fee and or 48 hour notice fee. Customers have asked if the District could
reconsider or revise the language, to allow for a waiver.

Staff has reached out to other surrounding Water districts on how they addressed consideration of
waiving a late fee, and we have received the following responses below:

Santa Fe Irrigation District (SFID) -generally forgive late fees only one time per customer for the
duration of their account with District. However, SFID will look at individual circumstances and if
the customer had something truly beyond their control, SFID will take that into account.

Valley Center Municipal Water District's Administrative Code -Delinquent interest may be waived
the first time incurred to recognize the customer's lack of knowledge of District policies.

Vallecitos Water District -waive one type of fee per account. Ex. Late fee, return check, lock
meter. At times, an exception may be made due to special circumstances and we will place an
alert on the account so we know an exception was made and no more fees will be waived.

Rincon del Diablo Water District - waive one late fee a year for an “account in good standing”.
Staff's preference is to allow a waiver of one late fee penalty per account within a two year period. This is

to extend a good faith courtesy to the customer in case a situation transpired that was beyond their
control.



Agenda Packet Page 94 of 238

Staff solicited the Budget and Finance Committee recommendation to determine what direction should
the District take on waiving of a late fee. The recommendation was to allow a waiver of one late fee
penalty per account within a two year period.

Staff recommends approving the revised Administrative Code Section 8.12.020.6 to allow for the one
time waiver of late fee in a two year period.

DESCRIPTION

Revise Administrative Code to include language giving the District authorization to waive a one-time
courtesy of a delinquent/late fee in a two year period, preceding the date of the late bill.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 00-22
2. Administrative Code Section 8.12.020.6
3. Redlined and Final Draft of Revised Administrative Code Section 8.12.020.6

POLICY

Administrative Code Section 8.12

BOARD OPTIONS/FISCAL IMPACTS

1. Approve Ordinance No. 16-07 Amending and Updating Administrative Code Section 8.12 —
Rendering and Payment of Bills.

2. Approve Ordinance No. 16-07 with revisions.

3. Deny approval of Ordinance No. 16-07.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Option 1.

.
Vanessa Martinez— - April 26, 2016
Finance Manager




Agenda Packet Page 95 of 238

RESOLUTION NO. 00-22

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
ESTABLISHING A WAIVER OF CHARGES POLICY

WHEREAS, customers of the District may request adjustment to bills received by them from the
District; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the District to provide uniformity in responding to customer
requests for adjustments;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by
the Board of Directors of Rainbow Municipal Water District as follows:

The General Manager is authorized to negotiate and compromise customer claims and
accounts receivable of the district and to direct the writing off of such items in order to adjust
district accounts provided that all items in excess of one thousand dollars shall be subject to
approval by the Board of Directors. The General Manager shall report all matters
compromised to the Board of Directors at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.

Nothing in this section is intended to prevent a customer or the General Manager from
appealing a claim to the Board.

Any amount to be waived or written off shall be documented and approved in writing
according to the following schedule:

Claims up to $250 Approval by the Utility Billing supervisor
Claims from $250 to $500  Approval by the Senior Accountant
Claims from $500 to $1,000 Approval by the General Manager
A request for waiver must be made in writing by the customer.
Consideration for waiver is limited to:
Late Charges. A customer will have a late charge waived upon request if they have had
no late charges over the preceding two years and have not been granted a waiver within

the two year period preceding the date of the late bill.

Unlock Fee. A customer will have an unlock fee waived upon request if they have not
been granted such a waiver in the immediate two years preceding their request.

€ Board Ord and Resolutions'R. 23 - fcharges doc




r\‘

F o
k) 4

Agenda Packet Page 96 of 238

PASSED, AND ADOPTED at a Regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Rainbow
Municipal Water District held on this 1st day of November, 2000, by the following vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS: Baughman, Christensen, Tomlinson, Sjursen,
and Hatfield.
NOES: DIRECTORS: None

ABSENT: DIRECTORS: None
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS: None

4 4o O .‘Jcm(mfa@)?

Joycg E. Tomlinson
President of the Board

ATTEST:

bl rep St ‘H yslre ne,
Board Secretary - 7

€ ‘Boad Ord and ResotuncesResoh 12 -wancrofeharget doc




Agenda Packet Page 97 of 238

Section 8.12.010
Rendering of Bills

Bills will be rendered once a month.

Section 8.12.020
Payment of Bills

All bills for water or for service or materials are due and payable upon receipt.
Failure to receive a bill does not relieve a customer of liability for payment.

8.12.020.1 Delinquent

8.12.020.2  Bills are issued to cover the preceding billing period. Payment is due and
payable upon receipt and delinquent thirty (30) days after the billing date. At that time, a
delinquent charge will be added to the unpaid balance. If said bills are not paid within
sixty-five (65) days of the billing date, the District may discontinue service until all
charges have been paid in full, provided that residential services may be discontinued
per Sections 8.13 and 8.14. An established turn-on charge will be made to restore
service following discontinuance.

If a payment made by check or credit card is not honored by the issuing bank for any
reason, the District will inform the Customer of the returned payment. The Customer
shall have five (5) business days to pay the full amount with cash or certified check only.
If the Customer does not pay in full within the allotted time, the District will discontinue
service, provided that residential services may be discontinued per Sections 8.13 and
8.14.

8.12.020.3 Any Customer desiring water service from the District who has had
service discontinued for non-payment of a bill at any time or whose check has been
returned by the Customer’s bank shall be required to post a security deposit equal to
twice the estimated average periodic bill.

8.12.020.3.1 This deposit is in addition to the payment of all charges due and any
applicable re-establishment of service charges

8.12.020.3.2 The General Manager may waive or adjust the security deposit
requirement with sufficient written justification.

8.12.020.3.3 The security deposit will be returned to the depositor two (2) years
after the last lock-off for non-payment, if the depositor has maintained a timely
paid, delinquent free account record during the two-year period, or when the
account is paid in full on termination of service, whichever occurs first.

8.12.020.3.4 The security deposit can be cash, a certificate of deposit, letter of
credit or bond, or any other comparable guarantees approved by the District’s
General Manager. No interest shall be paid on any deposit.

X: \ADMINISTRATIVE CODE\Drafts Not Approved\Rendermo and Payment of Bllls 8.12. docwm«»d—

Pehey&%eadem&g—and—?aymm—ef—&ﬂs%ﬂ—dee\\Approved Ordmance 05 07\\8 3- 05\\Approved by Ordmance 14-
07\\10-28-14\\Approved by Ordinance 16-03\\2-23-16\\DRAFT



Agenda Packet Page 98 of 238

8.12.020.4 Unreadable Water Meters — Estimated Water Bill

The District will make every attempt to read the meter monthly. However, when the
meter is broken or is determined to be unreadable, the amount to be billed will be
estimated. The estimated bill will be determined in the following manner:

8.12.020.4.1 Calculating the Estimated Bill

The Customer’'s water usage during a like month in the year immediately
preceding the billing cycle in which the meter became broken or was determined
to be unreadable shall be used in calculating the estimated bill. If this history is
not available, water usage during the month immediately preceding the billing
cycle shall be used in calculating the estimated bill.

When a meter malfunctions, the meter shall be repaired or replaced at the
District's expense. If a meter is abused or broken by Customer, the Customer
shall bear the cost involved repairing or replacing the meter. A bill describing the
material and labor involved in the project shall be presented to the Customer and
shall be paid in full.

8.12.020.5 Responsibility for Water Bill; Notices to Residential Occupants

Payment of the water bill shall be the responsibility of the Customer. The District
requires a signed application by both Tenant and Owner when the property is a rental.

An unpaid or delinquent bill is the responsibility of the person in whose name the water
service is held. If the Customer is the non-occupant owner, manager or operator of a
residence, District shall make every good faith effort to inform the residential occupants
by written notice when the account is delinquent that service will be terminated in 10
days, including an additional 5 days if notice is by mail. The notice shall inform the
residents that they have the right to become a customer of the District without being
required to pay the delinquent bill, provided it is feasible to provide separately metered
service to such residents.

Where services is provided through a master meter to a multi-unit residential structure or
structures, or mobile-home park, the District will comply with the additional requirements
of section 10009.1 of the Public Utilities Code for notice to residents and offering
residential reasonable conditions for service to the property prior to termination of
service. The General Manager shall issue guidelines for assistance to residential users
served by a master meter and a form for such notice and requirements for requesting
separate service. In the event the service is in the name of a renter or lessee, water
service will not be re-established in the name of such renter or lessee or any other
current or subsequent renter or lessee, but shall be established and held in the legal
(record) Owner’s name as shown on the San Diego County Assessor’s Tax Roll.

8.12.020.6 Delinquent Account Fees

The Board of Directors shall establish from time to time certain fees for delinquent
accounts and service fees for various actions related to delinquent accounts. The
District will have the ability to waive one late/delinquent fee upon request by customer

X: \ADM IN[STRATIVE CODE\Drafts Not Approved\Renderm(y and Payment of Bl]ls 8.12. dOC-HFB}-W-d—

Pehe%&eaéﬂmmaﬂépaymeﬂ%ﬂs%ﬁdee\\Approved Ordmancc 05- 07\\8 3- 05\\Approved by Ordmance 14-
07\\10-28-14\\Approved by Ordinance 16-03\\2-23-16\\DRAFT



Agenda Packet Page 99 of 238

W|th|n a two year period, precedlnq the date of the late bl” Ne—iees—m#a&ed—te»delma&em

8.12.020.7 Collection of Unpaid Bills by Lien

The following measures may be taken to make collection of any bill in excess of $20.00
which remains delinquent 63 days after the date of bill issue.

8.12.020.7.1 After the 63 day delinquent period, a written notice will be
sent to the legal Owner of the land or property, as shown in the San
Diego Assessor’s tax roll, notifying the legal Owner of the land or property
of accruing unpaid water and other service charges that may become a
lien on such property.

8.12.020.7.2 Five business days after the date of notification referenced
in Section 8.12.020.7.1 herein, The District may secure payment of
unpaid water bills and other service charges by filing for record (i.e., lien)
in the office of the San Diego County Recorder, a certificate specifying
the amount of such charges and the name and address of the person
liable there for.

8.12.020.7.3 In May of each calendar year, the legal Owner of the land or
property will be notified in writing any accrued unpaid water bills or other
service charges as well as a $45.00 service charge will be turned over to
the County Tax Assessor’s tax roll for that calendar year for collection. If
water bills and other service charges remain unpaid, a second written
notification will be sent to the legal Owners of the land or property in June
of same calendar year.

8.12.020.7.4 On August 1%t of each calendar year all unpaid water bills
and service charges for that calendar year will be sent to the San Diego
County Tax Assessor’s tax roll for collection.

8.12.020.7.5 From the time of recordation of the certificate, the amount
required to be paid, together with interest and penalties, constitutes a lien
upon all real property in the county owned by the person or afterwards
and, before the lien expires, acquired by him or her.

8.12.020.7.6 The lien has the force, priority, and effect of a judgment lien
and shall continue for 10 years from the date of the filing of the certificate
unless sooner released or otherwise discharged, and may be extended
by filing for record a new certificate.

X \ADMIN[STRAT]VE CODE\Drafts Not Approved\Rendermo and Payment of Bllls 8.12. docmwd—

PelﬁaReﬁéemg&ndﬁaymefm%Bm%%léee\\Approved Ordmance 05- 07\\8 3 05\\Approved by Ordmance 14-
07\\10-28-14\\Approved by Ordinance 16-03\\2-23-16\\DRAFT



Agenda Packet Page 100 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 101 of 238

Section 8.12.010
Rendering of Bills

Bills will be rendered once a month.

Section 8.12.020
Payment of Bills

All bills for water or for service or materials are due and payable upon receipt.
Failure to receive a bill does not relieve a customer of liability for payment.

8.12.020.1 Delinquent

8.12.020.2 Bills are issued to cover the preceding billing period. Payment is due and
payable upon receipt and delinquent thirty (30) days after the billing date. At that time, a
delinquent charge will be added to the unpaid balance. If said bills are not paid within
sixty-five (65) days of the billing date, the District may discontinue service until all
charges have been paid in full, provided that residential services may be discontinued
per Sections 8.13 and 8.14. An established turn-on charge will be made to restore
service following discontinuance.

If a payment made by check or credit card is not honored by the issuing bank for any
reason, the District will inform the Customer of the returned payment. The Customer
shall have five (5) business days to pay the full amount with cash or certified check only.
If the Customer does not pay in full within the allotted time, the District will discontinue
service, provided that residential services may be discontinued per Sections 8.13 and
8.14.

8.12.020.3 Any Customer desiring water service from the District who has had
service discontinued for non-payment of a bill at any time or whose check has been
returned by the Customer’s bank shall be required to post a security deposit equal to
twice the estimated average periodic bill.

8.12.020.3.1 This deposit is in addition to the payment of all charges due and any
applicable re-establishment of service charges

8.12.020.3.2 The General Manager may waive or adjust the security deposit
requirement with sufficient written justification.

8.12.020.3.3 The security deposit will be returned to the depositor two (2) years
after the last lock-off for non-payment, if the depositor has maintained a timely
paid, delinquent free account record during the two-year period, or when the
account is paid in full on termination of service, whichever occurs first.

8.12.020.3.4 The security deposit can be cash, a certificate of deposit, letter of
credit or bond, or any other comparable guarantees approved by the District's
General Manager. No interest shall be paid on any deposit.

X:\ADMINISTRATIVE CODE\Drafts Not Approved\Rendering and Payment of Bills 8.12.doc\\Approved
Ordinance 05-07\\8-3-05\\Approved by Ordinance 14-07\\10-28-14\\Approved by Ordinance 16-03\\2-23-
16\DRAFT



Agenda Packet Page 102 of 238

8.12.020.4 Unreadable Water Meters — Estimated Water Bill

The District will make every attempt to read the meter monthly. However, when the
meter is broken or is determined to be unreadable, the amount to be billed will be
estimated. The estimated bill will be determined in the following manner:

8.12.020.4.1 Calculating the Estimated Bill

The Customer’s water usage during a like month in the year immediately
preceding the billing cycle in which the meter became broken or was determined
to be unreadable shall be used in calculating the estimated bill. If this history is
not available, water usage during the month immediately preceding the billing
cycle shall be used in calculating the estimated bill.

When a meter malfunctions, the meter shall be repaired or replaced at the
District’'s expense. If a meter is abused or broken by Customer, the Customer
shall bear the cost involved repairing or replacing the meter. A bill describing the
material and labor involved in the project shall be presented to the Customer and
shall be paid in full.

8.12.020.5 Responsibility for Water Bill; Notices to Residential Occupants

Payment of the water bill shall be the responsibility of the Customer. The District
requires a signed application by both Tenant and Owner when the property is a rental.

An unpaid or delinquent bill is the responsibility of the person in whose name the water
service is held. If the Customer is the non-occupant owner, manager or operator of a
residence, District shall make every good faith effort to inform the residential occupants
by written notice when the account is delinquent that service will be terminated in 10
days, including an additional 5 days if notice is by mail. The notice shall inform the
residents that they have the right to become a customer of the District without being
required to pay the delinquent bill, provided it is feasible to provide separately metered
service to such residents.

Where services is provided through a master meter to a multi-unit residential structure or
structures, or mobile-home park, the District will comply with the additional requirements
of section 10009.1 of the Public Utilities Code for notice to residents and offering
residential reasonable conditions for service to the property prior to termination of
service. The General Manager shall issue guidelines for assistance to residential users
served by a master meter and a form for such notice and requirements for requesting
separate service. In the event the service is in the name of a renter or lessee, water
service will not be re-established in the name of such renter or lessee or any other
current or subsequent renter or lessee, but shall be established and held in the legal
(record) Owner's name as shown on the San Diego County Assessor’s Tax Roll.

8.12.020.6 Delinquent Account Fees

The Board of Directors shall establish from time to time certain fees for delinquent
accounts and service fees for various actions related to delinquent accounts. The
District will have the ability to waive one late/delinquent fee upon request by customer
within a two year period, preceding the date of the late bill.

XAADMINISTRATIVE CODE\Drafts Not Approved\Rendering and Payment of Bills 8.12.doc\\Approved

Ordinance 05-07\\8-3-05\\Approved by Ordinance 14-07\\10-28-14\\Approved by Ordinance 16-03\\2-23-
16\DRAFT



Agenda Packet Page 103 of 238

8.12.020.7 Collection of Unpaid Bills by Lien

The following measures may be taken to make collection of any bill in excess of $20.00
which remains delinquent 63 days after the date of bill issue.

8.12.020.7.1 After the 63 day delinquent period, a written notice will be
sent to the legal Owner of the land or property, as shown in the San
Diego Assessor’s tax roll, notifying the legal Owner of the land or property
of accruing unpaid water and other service charges that may become a
lien on such property.

8.12.020.7.2 Five business days after the date of notification referenced
in Section 8.12.020.7.1 herein, The District may secure payment of
unpaid water bills and other service charges by filing for record (i.e., lien)
in the office of the San Diego County Recorder, a certificate specifying
the amount of such charges and the name and address of the person
liable there for.

8.12.020.7.3 In May of each calendar year, the legal Owner of the land or
property will be notified in writing any accrued unpaid water bills or other
service charges as well as a $45.00 service charge will be turned over to
the County Tax Assessor’s tax roll for that calendar year for collection. If
water bills and other service charges remain unpaid, a second written
notification will be sent to the legal Owners of the land or property in June
of same calendar year.

8.12.020.7.4 On August 1%t of each calendar year all unpaid water bills
and service charges for that calendar year will be sent to the San Diego
County Tax Assessor's tax roll for collection.

8.12.020.7.5 From the time of recordation of the certificate, the amount
required to be paid, together with interest and penalties, constitutes a lien
upon all real property in the county owned by the person or afterwards
and, before the lien expires, acquired by him or her.

8.12.020.7.6 The lien has the force, priority, and effect of a judgment lien
and shall continue for 10 years from the date of the filing of the certificate
unless sooner released or otherwise discharged, and may be extended
by filing for record a new certificate.

X\ADMINISTRATIVE CODE\Drafts Not Approved\Rendering and Payment of Bills 8.12.doc\\Approved
Ordinance 05-07\\8-3-05\\Approved by Ordinance 14-07\\10-28-14\\Approved by Ordinance 16-03\\2-23-
16\DRAFT



Agenda Packet Page 104 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 105 of 238

Ordinance No. 16-07

Ordinance of the Board of Directors of the Rainbow Municipal Water District
Amending the Administrative Code Section 8.12 —
Rendering and Payment of Bills

WHEREAS, the Rainbow Municipal Water District has, from time to time, adopted
various rules and regulations for the operation of the District; and

WHEREAS, certain of those rules and regulations require updating to reflect best
practices, as well as changes in applicable laws; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has determined that changes in the rules or
regulations of the District shall occur solely by amendment to the Administrative Code;

NOW, THEREFORE,

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of Rainbow Municipal Water District
as follows:

1. The following rules and regulations of the District, collected and attached
are hereby adopted and shall be incorporated into the Administrative Code, consisting of:

8.12 Rendering and Payment of Bills

2. The General Manager is hereby directed to update the Administrative
Code to reflect the approval of these rules and regulations, and to assign or reassign the
numbering of the Administrative Code as necessary to codify these rules and regulations as
amended.

3. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption on this 26"
day of April, 2016.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Dennis Sanford, Board President
ATTEST:

Dawn Washburn, Board Secretary



Agenda Packet Page 106 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 107 of 238

MuniciPAL WATER DISTRICT

Committed to Ex.cellence B O AR D ACT I O N

AINBOW
7

.BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

SUBJECT

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION RELATED TO CONVERSION TO PAPERLESS BOARD
PACKETS

DESCRIPTION

In an effort to be as transparent as possible, RMWD Board packets include all information related to items
under discussion at the Board. While the Brown Act only requires a brief description of the matter under
consideration to be included in the Agenda, the practice at RMWD has been to provide all of the
information, including Action Letters, staff or consultant reports, contracts, and other information items in
the complete package. This package must be made available to the public upon request, but our practice
is to create a PDF from the paper board packet that is put on our website.

A key point here is that the current packet is developed in paper form, hand numbered, and then scanned
into digital form. This has been the practice for a number of years and while it works there are a number
of downsides:

Staff time to compile the paper version
o Compilation
o Numbering
o Collation
- Duplication costs to produce the versions for the Board and public
- Postage costs to mail packets to Board members
- Delivery costs in the form of staff to drive packets out to Board member homes when time
constraints prevent us from being able to mail them.

At the request of the Board, Staff has prepared a cost estimate for the process of transitioning from our
current practices (attached). Based on this estimate, the total cost, including staff time, to produce,
duplicate and deliver Board packets is about $10,900 per year. These projections were developed by
RMWD staff and are based on the labor rate of the Executive Secretary who performs these tasks.

If we were to shift to a paperless agenda system, the process of developing Board packets would shift
entirely to electronic documents in the PDF format. All agendas would be distributed to staff and Board
members digitally and will be made available to the public on our website. We would only produce print
versions for customers who requested print versions. State Law allows for us to recover the cost of such
printing and since board packets can be very large we would encourage interested parties to simply
download the information for themselves. If they are unable or unwilling to do so we will try to provide
*print versions of the items in question but the Board may want to determine what sort of de minimis printing
should be free of charge.



Agenda Packet Page 108 of 238

In this paperless agenda system, each Board member would have a special folder on their device that is
linked to a service called Dropbox. Dropbox is a file transfer service in which staff at RMWD would deposit
all agenda packets (regular board, committee, and even SDCWA) into the Dropbox folder at our offices
and it would automatically sync and download to the remote folder on the device of each Board member.
There is no action needed on the part of the Board member other than to have the device on and connected
to a network.

The cost to migrate to a paperless agenda will include a one-time cost to procure iPads, along with ongoing
costs to support the cellular service for the iPads, the file transfer software, and the remaining staff time to
develop the PDF versions of the Board packets. The total annual cost, which is still dominated by staff
time, is just over $4530 per year. One-time costs are expected to be about $3500 but there may be
options that could reduce this. Some of the memory requirements of the iPads could be reduced which
will lower costs.

The net annual savings (after one-time costs) is expected to be over $6000 per year. It should be noted
here that the labor costs involved will not disappear entirely as the person involved will be engaged in other
tasks. The purpose of this action is to try to free up staff time for more productive endeavors. If the staff
time costs of both options are removed, there is still a net savings (after one-time costs) each year of about
$80.00, but the more productive use of staff time is the overall goal.

‘This proposal includes the purchase of iPads for each Board member. The system that is envisioned
does not require a District owned iPad and Board members could choose to use their own device. Any
tablet or laptop would work as the Dropbox file transfer system will work with nearly any operating system.

Further, if Board members have reliable internet connections at their homes, we could avoid the cost of
the cellular service on the remote devices. Board members can connect to the District’s wifi network when
here, and connect to their home networks when at home. This would save a considerable amount of the
annual cost of this program. We can tailor the system to meet the needs of each Board member.

POLICY
N/A

BOARD OPTIONS/FISCAL IMPACTS

The fiscal impacts of this process are identified in the attached cost analysis and in either options will save
on staff time. There are several options for the Board to choose from here:

1. Develop a paperless agenda system using District owned iPads

2. Develop a paperless agenda system using devices owned by Directors or some combination of the
two

3. Direct staff to identify additional options

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff supports Board direction on this matter. /@‘/( W

Tom Kennedy | 04/26/2016
General Manager




Agenda Packet Page 109 of 238

Current Practice of Hard Copy Agenda Packets

TASK TASK BREAKDOWN ANNUAL COST ESTIMATE | DESCRIPTION/NOTES
$.05-$.11/Page - Average Size
Packet - 300 Pages =
Copying $15/Packet x 6 Packets $990.00 Average Per Year
(Board/Legal) x 11 Meetings
Per Year
»3.78/Ream -6 I'Reams of Using Hole Punched
Paper Paper x 11 Meetings = 66 $250.00
Paper
Reams/Year
Binder Clips 6 Packets x 11 Meetings Per $5.00 Average Per Year
Year
No Hard Costs.
. I ing Print
Xerox Use 240 Mln'utes x 11 Meetings Occupying Printer
2,640 Minutes/Year from Other Employee
Use
10 Hrs./Mtg. x 11 Mtgs. = 110} Average Per Year for
Staff Time Hours x Hourly Rate of $80.34 $8,837.40 Complete Agenda
(Includes Rate and Benefits) Preparation Process
Average Consisting of Hourly, For Use For Last
Delivery Rate, OT, Truck Use, Fuel, $482.40 Minute Packet
Other Tasks Being Abandoned| Distribution
$5.00/Packet x 6 Packets x 11
. A PerY
Postage Meetings Per Year $330.00 verage Per Year
Total $10,894.80

Annual Costs

Projected Costs for Electronic Board Packets

ltem Cost Breakdown Cost per year Description

Cell Service 5 Ipads $1,800.00 Per Year
Dropbox File transfer service $180.00 Per year

H Mtg. x 11 Migs. =
Staff Time 5 Hours/Mtg. x gs. =55 $2,552.00 Average Per Year
Hours Per Year
Total Annual Cost $4,532.00
One Time Cost
Esti Purch

Ipad Purchase |5 Ipads x $700/Ipad $3,500.00 Pi::;?ated urchase
|Total One Time Cost |$3,500.00 |

First Year Savings $2,862.80

Annual Savings after first year $6,362.80

Note that certain savings are from labor costs that will not disappear but will be put to use
performing other tasks instead of those itemized above




Agenda Packet Page 110 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 111 of 238
@ MuNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Committed to Excellence
BOARD ACTION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

"April 26, 2016

SUBJECT
DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION RELATED TO LAFCO RUNOFF ELECTION

DESCRIPTION

In March the District was notified that the recent election for the Special District Alternate seat for the Local
Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) required a runoff election. Of the four candidates, none received
a majority, so the two candidates who received the most votes have now been slated to run in a runoff
election. The runoff will be between Judy Hansen of Leucadia Wastewater and our own Dennis Sanford.
Ms. Hansen received 15 votes in the regular election while Mr. Sanford received 9 votes.

POLICY
N/A

BOARD OPTIONS/FISCAL IMPACTS

“There are no fiscal impacts of this agenda item although being more directly represented in LAFCO could
have positive fiscal impacts during any future LAFCO interactions.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the Board vote for Dennis Sagford for the Special District Alternate seat at LAFCO.

04/26/2016

General Manger



Agenda Packet Page 112 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 113 of 238

9335 Hazard Way e Suite 200 e San Diego, CA 92123
(858) 614-7755 « FAX (858) 614-7766

Website: www.sdlafco.org

LAFCO

San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission

Chairman

Bill Horn
County Board of
Supervisors

Vice Chairman

Sam Abed
Mayor
City of Escondido

Members

Dianne Jacob
County Board of
Supervisors

Andrew Vanderlaan
Public Member

Lorie Zapf
Councilmember
City of San Diego

Lorraine Wood
Councilmember
City of Carlsbad

Jo MacKenzie
Vista Irrigation District

Vacant
Special District

Alternate Members

Greg Cox
County Board of
Supervisors

Chris Cate
Councilmember
City of San Diego
Racquel Vasquez
Councilmember

City of Lemon Grove
Ed Sprague
Olivenhain Municipal
Water District

Harry Mathis
Public Member

Executive Officer

Michael D. Ott

Legal Counsel

Michael G. Colantuono

March 25, 2016

TO: Independent Special Districts of San Diego County

FROM; Executive Officer

Administrative Assistant

SUBJECT: 2015-2016 RUN-OFF Special Districts Election

On March 4, 2016, the independent special districts were notified by
letter that a run-off election would be required for the alternate special
district member position on the Local Agency Formation Commission
(LAFCO). A run-off election between the two top vote getters is
necessary per the election rules, because none of the four candidates
that participated in the recent election received a majority of the votes
cast. Judy Hanson of the Leucadia Wastewater District received 15
votes; Dennis Sanford of the Rainbow Municipal Water District received
9 votes; Mark Robak of the Otay Water District received 5 votes and Joel
Scalzitti of the Helix Water District received 4 votes.

An approximate ten week time period will be provided for the run-off
election for the two top vote getters (Judy Hanson and Dennis Sanford),
commencing on March 25, 2016. The run-off election will be held by
mailed ballot with a June 3, 2016 due date for the return of ballots. The
top vote getter must again receive a majority of the votes cast and the
installation is tentatively scheduled for the August 1, 2016 LAFCO
meeting.

Special District Election Ballots and Vote Certification forms on which to
record the votes are attached (Attachment 1). A list of the eligible
independent special districts is provided for your convenience in label
format (Attachment 2). A summary of the nominations and copies of
Nomination Forms are also attached (Attachment 3).

Ballots without a valid authorized signature, or ballots cast for more
than the indicated number of positions will be disregarded.



Agenda Packet Page 114 of 238

Independent Special Districts
Page 2
March 25, 2016

The ballots should be considered by your full district board. As stated in the previous
ballot materials, State Law and the Selection Committee Rules require a district’s vote
to be cast by its presiding officer, or an alternate member of the legislative body
appointed by the other members. Therefore, the certification form has been
incorporated with the ballot forms to be signed by the board member who has been
designated to cast your district's votes. A ballot received without a signed
certification form will not be counted.

Write-in candidates are permitted, and spaces have been provided for that purpose.
The deadline for receipt of the ballots by LAFCO is June 3, 2016. The Selection
Committee Rules require that marked ballots be returned by certified mail, return
receipt requested. Facsimile (FAX) ballots and certification forms will be accepted, if
necessary to meet the ballot deadline, but originals must be submitted as soon as
possible thereafter.

The Selection Committee Rules stipulate that a majority of the districts shall constitute a
quorum for the conduct of committee business. There are 61 independent special
districts in San Diego County; therefore, a minimum of 31 ballots must be received to
certify that a legal election was conducted. The ballots will be kept on file in this office,
and may be inspected, upon request.

Please contact me or Tamaron Luckett at (858) 614-7755 if you have any questions.

C et ki

MICHAEL D. OTT TAMARON R. LUCKETT
Executive Officer Administrative Assistant
MDO:TRL/rl
Attachments

(1) Special District Election Ballots and Vote Certification Run-Off Form

(2) Independent Special District List
(3) Independent Special District Summary of Nominations and Copies of Nomination Forms



Agenda Packet Page 115 of 238
Attachment 1

2015-2016 RUN-OFF SPECIAL DISTRICTS ELECTION
BALLOT and VOTE CERTIFICATION
FOR ALTERNATE LAFCO SPECIAL DISTRICT MEMBER

VOTE FOR ONLY ONE

Judy Hanson [
(Leucadia Wastewater District)

Dennis A. Sanford ]
(Rainbow Municipal Water District)

Write-In

(Print Name)

| hereby certify that | cast the votes of the

(Name of District)
at the 2015-2016 Special Districts Selection Committee Election as:
[ | the presiding officer, or**

[ ] the duly-appointed alternate board member.**

(Print Name)

(Signature)

(Title)

(Date)

**The ballot and vote certification form must be signed by the board member who has been
designated to cast your district’'s votes. A ballot received without a signed certification form
will not be counted.

* = Nominating Committee’s Recommendation

Return Ballot and Vote Certification Form to:
San Diego LAFCO
Tamaron Luckett
9335 Hazard Way, Suite 200
San Diego, CA 92123
(858) 614-7755 (office) - (858) 614-7766 (FAX)



LIST OF INDEPENDENT SPECIAL
DISTRICTS

FIRE CHIEF

BORREGO SPRINGS FPD

PO BOX 898

BORREGO SPRINGS CA 92004-0898

GENERAL MANAGER
CUYAMACA WATER DISTRICT
PO BOX 609

JULIAN CA 92036-0609

GENERAL MANAGER
FAIRBANKS RANCH CSD
C/O DUDEK & ASSOC

605 THIRD STREET
ESCINITAS CA 92024-3513

AMINISTRATIVE DIRECTOR
GROSSMONT HEALTHCARE DIST
9001 WAKARUSA STREET

LA MESA CA 91942-3300

GENERAL MANAGER
JULIAN CSD

PO BOX 681

JULIAN CA 92036-0681

FIRE CHIEF

LAKESIDE FPD

12216 LAKESIDE AVENUE
LAKESIDE CA 92040-1715

FIRE CHIEF

LOWER SWEETWATER FPD
2725-B GRANGER AVENUE
NATIONAL CITY CA 91950

GENERAL MANAGER
MOOTAMAI MWD

PO BOX 812

PAUMA VALLEY CA 92061-0812

Agenda Packet Page 116 of 238

FIRE CHIEF

ALPINE FPD

1364 TAVERN ROAD
ALPINE CA 91909-3831

GENERAL MANAGER

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT

PO BOX 1870

BORREGO SPRINGS CA 92004-1870

FIRE CHIEF

DEER SPRING FPD

8709 CIRCLE R DRIVE
ESCONDIDO CA 92026-5802

GENERAL MANAGER
FALLBROOK HEALTHCARE DIST
577 EAST ELDER STREET UNIT U
FALLBROOK CA 92028-3079

GENERAL MANAGER
HELIX WATER DISTRICT
7811 UNIVERSITY AVENUE
LA MESA CA 91941-0427

FIRE CHIEF

JULIAN — CUYAMACA FPD
PO BOX 33

JULIAN CA 92036-0033

GENERAL MANAGER
LAKESIDE WATER DISTRICT
10375 VINE STREET
LAKESIDE CA 92040-2440

GENERAL MANAGER
MAJESTIC PINES CSD
PO BOX 266

JULIAN CA 92036-0266

GENERAL MANAGER
MORRO HILLS CSD

PO BOX 161

FALLBROOK CA 92088-0161

Attachment 2

FIRE CHIEF
BONTIA-SUNNYSIDE FPD
4900 BONITA ROAD
BONITA CA 91902-1725

GENERAL MANAGER
CANEBRAKE CWD

140 SMOKETREE LANE
JULIAN CA 92036-9336

GENERAL MANAGER
DESCANSO CSD

C/O DAN DEMOSS

4131 NORTHGATE BLVD
SACRAMENTO CA 95834-1218

GENERAL MANAGER
FALLBROOK PUD

PO BOX 2290

FALLBROOK CA 92088-2290

GENERAL MANAGER
JACUMBA CSD

PO BOX 425

JACUMBA CA 91934-0425

GENERAL MANAGER

LAKE CUYAMACA REC & PARK DIST
15027 HIGHWAY 79

JULIAN CA 92036-9530

GENERAL MANAGER
LEUCADIA WASTEWATER DIST
1960 LA COSTA AVENUE
CARLSBAD CA 92009-6810

GENERAL MANAGER

MISSION RCD

1588 S MISSION ROAD SUITE 100
FALLBROOK CA 92028-4112

GENERAL MANAGER

NORTH COUNTY CEMETERY DIST
2640 GLEN RIDGE ROAD
ESCONDIDO CA 92027-4532



GENERAL MANAGER

OTAY WATER DISTRICT

2554 SWEETWATER SPRINGS BLVD
SPRING VALLEY CA 91978-2004

GENERAL MANAGER

PAUMA MWD

PO BOX 706

PAUMA VALLEY CA 92061-0706

GENERAL MANAGER

POMERADO CEMETERY DISTRICT
14361 TIERRA BONITA ROAD
POWAY CA 92064-3027

GENERAL MANAGER

RAMONA CEMETERY DISTRICT
532 ASH STREET

RAMONA CA 92065-1404

FIRE CHIEF

RANCHO SANTA FE FPD

PO BOX 410

RANCHO SANTA FE CA 92067-0410

GENERAL MANAGER

RINCON RANCH CSD

PO BOX 882

PAUMA VALLEY CA 92061-0882

FIRE CHIEF

SAN MIGUEL CONSOL FPD
2850 VIA ORANGE WAY
SPRING VALLEY CA 91978-1746

ADMINISTRATION

TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
4002 VISTA WAY

OCEANSIDE CA 92056-4506

Agenda Packet Page 117 of 238

FIRE CHIEF

NORTH COUNTY FPD

330 SOUTH MAIN AVENUE
FALLBROOK CA 92028-2938

GENERAL MANAGER
PADRE DAM MWD

PO BOX 719003
SANTEE CA 92072-9003

GENERAL MANAGER

PAUMA VALLEY CSD

33129 COLE GRADE ROAD
PAUMA VALLEY CA 92061-9518

GENERAL MANAGER
QUESTHAVEN MWD

20560 QUESTHAVEN ROAD
SAN MARCOS CA 92078-6810

GENERAL MANAGER
RAMONA MWD

105 EARLHAM STREET
RAMONA CA 92065-1558

GENERAL MANAGER

RESOURCE CONSERVATION DIST
OF GREATER SAN DIEGO COUNTY
11769 WATERHILL ROAD
LAKESIDE CA 92040-2905

FIRE CHIEF

SAN DIEGO RURAL FPD

14024 PEACEFUL VALLEY RANCH RD
JAMUL CA 91935-3202

GENERAL MANAGER

SANTA FE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
PO BOX 409

RANCHO SANTA FE CA 92067-0409

GENERAL MANAGER

UPPER SAN LUIS REY RCD

PO BOX 921

PAUMA VALLEY CA 92061-0921

GENERAL MANAGER
OLIVENHAIN MWD

1966 OLIVENHAIN ROAD
ENCINITAS CA 92024-5676

GENERAL MANAGER

PALOMAR HEALTH

975 SOUTH ANDREASEN DRIVE
ESCONDIDO CA 92029-1934

FIRE CHIEF

PINE VALLEY FPD

PO BOX 130

PINE VALLEY CA 91962-0130

GENERAL MANAGER
RAINBOW MWD

3707 OLD HIGHWAY 395
FALLBROOK CA 92028-9372

GENERAL MANAGER

C/O DUDEK & ASSOCIATES
605 THIRD STREET
ENCINITAS CA 92024-3513

GENERAL MANAGER
RINCON DEL DIABLO MWD
1920 NORTH IRIS LANE
ESCONDIDO CA 92026-1318

GENERAL MANAGER

SAN LUIS REY MWD

5328 HIGHWAY 76
FALLBROOK CA 92028-7806

GENERAL MANAGER

SOUTH BAY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
PO BOX 2328

CHULA VISTA CA 91912-2328

GENERAL MANAGER
VALLECITOS WATER DISTRICT
201 VALLECITOS DE ORO

SAN MARCOS CA 92069-1453



GENERAL MANAGER

VALLEY CENTER CEMETERY DIST
PO BOX 645

VALLEY CENTER CA 92082-0645

GENERAL MANAGER

VALLEY CENTER MWD

PO BOX 67

VALLEY CENTER CA 92082-0067

GENERAL MANAGER

WYNOLA WATER DISTRICT

PO BOX 193

SANTA YSABEL CA 92070-0193

Agenda Packet Page 118 of 238

GENERAL MANAGER

VALLEY CENTER PARKS AND REC DIST

PO BOX 141
VALLEY CENTER CA 92082-0141

FIRE CHIEF

VISTAFPD

955 VALE TERRACE DRIVE #A
VISTA CA 92084-5213

GENERAL MANAGER
WHISPERING PALMS CSD
C/O DUDEK & ASSOCIATES
605 THIRD STREET
ENCINITAS CA 92024-3513

FIRE CHIEF

VALLEY CENTER FPD

28234 LILAC ROAD

VALLEY CENTER CA 92082-5413

GENERAL MANAGER

VISTA IRRIGATION DISTRICT
1391 ENGINEER STREET
VISTA CA 92081-8840

GENERAL MANAGER

YUIMA MWD

PO BOX 177

PAUMA VALLEY CA 92061-0177



Agenda Packet Page 119 of 238
Attachment 3

SUMMARY OF NOMINATIONS

LAFCO Alternate Special District Member Nominees

Judy Hanson (Leucadia Wastewater District)

Dennis A. Sanford (Rainbow Municipal Water District)



o Agenda Packet Page 120 of 238

DATE RECEIVED

| CT =8 2085 2015 LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
BY LAFCO: 0CT -8 NOMINATION / RESUME
(Offe Use) SAN DIEGO LAFCO

NOMINATED BY:

-

District Name:

Leucadia Wastewater District

District Phone:

(760) 753-0155

NAME OF NOMINEE:

Name: Judy Hanson
Address: 1960 La Costa Avenue, Carlshad, CA 92009 ]
Phone: (760) 753-0155

NOMINATED FO

R:

Please check one box

LAFCO POSITION:
( ) Regular Special District Member (Term expires in 2017)

Refer to the List of
e,f,rc:mbznt’ss_ ° (V) Alternate Special District Member (Term expires in 2019)
SPECIAL DISTRICTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE POSITION: )
- | () Special Districts Advisory Committee (Term expires in 2019)
DISTRICT Ms. Hanson has served on Leucadia Wastewater District (LWD) Board of
EXPERIENCE: Directors since 1983 and was re-elected in 2012. She is also a member of

LWD's Human Resources, Investment & Finance, and Employee Recognition
Committees.

LAFCO EXPERIENCE:

Ms. Hanson has served on the Special Districts Advisory Committee since
1996 and has consistently attended LAFCO meetings.

ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION:

Ms. Hanson also serves as a Board member of the California Sanitation Risk
Management Authority (CSRMA). In addition, she has served on the San
Diego Chapter of California Special District Association (CSDA) for
approximately seven years, where she held various positions including the
Chapter President.

Print name: Paul J. Bushee, General Manager | Presiding Officer Authorized Signature: //ﬁ Q / [, ,/,Z

“In accordance with Government Code Section 56332, LAFCO Regular and AlterMate Speciafl Distne? Commissioners

must be members of the legislative body of an independent Special District who reside in San Diego County.

This form can be downloaded at the following link: http:/fwww.sdlafco. org/WhatsNew/2015Nomination.doc.

San Diego LAFCO

ATTACHMENT 2

9335 Hazard Way, Suite 200 San Diego, CA 92123



Agenda Packet Page 121 of 238
o LoD SEP 21 2015 2015 LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
' NOMINATION / RESUME
(Office Use) SAN DIEGO | AFCO

NOMINATED BY:

District Name: Rainbow Municipal Water District
District Phone: 760-728-1178

NAME OF NOMINEE:

Name: Dennis A. Sanford
Address: 3707 Old Highway 395 Rainbow CA 92028
Phone: 714-299-9865

NOMINATED FOR:

LAFCO POSITION:

Pleass checkanebox | (") Regular Special District Member (Term expires in 2017)
Incumbents. (x ) Alternate Special District Member (Term expires in
2019)
SPECIAL DISTRICTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE POSITION:
() Special Districts Advisory Committee (Term expires in 2019)
DISTRICT Served as Director for 5 years
EXPERIENCE: Served as President of the Board of Directors 1 year

Served as President of North County JPA 1 year
Served as Director San Diego County Water Authority 2 years
Served as RMWD Santa Margarita Watershed Representative 3 years

LAFCO EXPERIENCE:| As President and Director the RMWD Board of Directors during the FPUD/RMWD
situation, | have developed a very good working knowledge of the importance of LAFCO
and its functions over the past 2 years. | believe, due to my experience with various
public agencies in San Diego County, | could lend valuable insight and favorably
contribute to the LAFCO Commission. | have also served as the RMWD LAFCO
representative for the past 3 years.

Served at President of Rainbow Community Planning Group 2 years

ADDITIONAL Served a member of Rainbow Community Plannjrg Group 6 years
INFORMATION: / /
p)
Z
Print name: Dennis A. Sanford Presiding Officer Authdfizel{ SRgeff: / / /]

N 77
*In accordance with Government Code Section 56332, LAFCO Regular $hd Altkoiate atecld b istrict Commissioners
must be members of the legislative body of an independent Special District who resig in San Diego County.

D./fwww. sdlafco.ora/Whatsifew/2015Npmination.doc.

This form can be downloaded at the following link: h

ATTACHMENT 2

San Diego LAFCO 9335 Hazard Way, Suite 200 San Diego, CA 92123



Agenda Packet Page 122 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 123 of 238

AINBOW

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Committed to Excellence
April 14, 2016
«AddressBlock»

Subject:. LAFCO Runoff Election - Dennis Sanford for LAFCO Alternate Commissioner Seat
Dear «Greeting» «Last_Name_Only»,

As you may be aware, there is a runoff election for the Special District Alternate seat on the San Diego
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO). The Board of Directors of the Rainbow Municipal Water
District nominated me to run for this position and | was gratified to receive enough votes to be included
in the runoff election.

Over the last several years, | have been working closely with LAFCO staff and others related to a
number of topics. While the most publicized efforts were related to the Fallbrook PUD merger
application, at Rainbow we have also handled more routine annexations and other less controversial
LAFCO activities.

| realize that much has been made in the media about Rainbow and our opposition to the FPUD efforts,
but this does not mean that | do not value LAFCO and the important role it plays in our local
governments. | was one of the leaders who supported the formation of the Joint Powers Authority, and |
am in favor of consolidations under the right conditions. Unfortunately, the conditions present between
RMWD and FPUD were not amenable to a successful merger.

Over the last several years | have gained a great deal of experience and knowledge related to LAFCO
and the statutes that are the foundation of its actions. This experience is essential to being a successful
member of the Commission.

| would be honored to receive your vote to serve our region as an Alternate Member on the
Commission.

Sincerely,

%_— Q\
DennisNSanford

President, RMWD Board of Directors

3707 Old Highway 395 » Fallbrook, CA 92028
(760) 728-1178 « Fax (760) 728-2575 « www.rainbowmwd.com



Agenda Packet Page 124 of 238

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EUCADIA J LEADERS IN DONALD F. OMSTED, PRESIDENT
| JUDY K. HANSON, VICE PRESIDENT

WASTEWATER : EEX’;‘IECC)ﬁgAIEINTAL ALLAN JULIUSSEN, DIRECTOR

DAVID KULCHIN, DIRECTOR

I s T R I c T . ELAINE SULLIVAN, DIRECTOR

PAUL J. BUSHEE, GENERAL MANAGER

March 28, 2016

Ref: 16-4903

Re: LAFCO Run-Off Election — Request Your Vote for Ms. Judy Hanson
Dear LAFCO Members,

On behalf of the Leucadia Wastewater District (LWD) Board of Directors, | am writing to request
your vote for Ms. Judy Hanson for the Special District's Board Alternate position in the
upcoming LAFCO run-off election. The LWD Board nominated Ms. Hanson for the Board
position in September 2015. Please note that the LAFCO Special District's Nominating
Committee has also selected Ms. Hanson as its recommended candidate.

Ms. Hanson presently serves as the Vice Chair of the LAFCO Special District Advisory
Committee (SDAC) and has served on this committee since 1996. In addition to the SDAC, Ms.
Hanson has an extensive professional background with special districts that has spanned over
50 years. She has been on the LWD Board of Directors since 1983, serving on various Board
committees as well as Board president in 2003, 2007 and 2011.

Ms. Hanson has also held various officer positions on the Board of Directors of the San Diego
Chapter of the California Special Districts Association (CSDA), serving as Chapter President in
2004. Furthermore, Ms. Hanson was a special district employee for virtually her entire
professional career, which included over 33 years of service with the San Dieguito Water District
and later the City of Encinitas.

As can be seen, Ms. Hanson’s involvement with special districts has been extensive on a
personal, professional and political level. Throughout her career, Judy has been a long-time
and tireless advocate for special districts from the platform of local control and fiscal
conservatism. We are confident that, if elected, Ms. Hanson will continue to make many
valuable contributions to LAFCO and represent special districts in a very positive way.

For these reasons, we urge you to vote for Ms. Judy Hanson for the LAFCO Special Districts
Board Alternate in the upcoming run-off election. Your support is greatly appreciated.

Best regards,

L oitd T O,

Donald Omsted
President, Board of Directors

1960 LA COSTA AVENUE, CARLSBAD, CA 92009 - PHONE 760.753.0155 - FAX 760.753.3094 - LWWD.ORG - INFO@LWWD.ORG



Agenda Packet Page 125 of 238
- AINBOW
ﬁ MuniciPaL WATER DISTRICT
Committed to Excellence BOARD I N FO RMATl O N

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

SUBJECT
DISCUSSION REGARDING ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER

DESCRIPTION

At the March 22, 2016 Board meeting, Director Brazier suggested the current Board have an opportunity
to discuss in Open Session the current practices at RMWD as it pertains to the Robert’s Rules of Order
in Board and committee meetings, respectively.

‘Once the Board has had an opportunity to discuss this matter, Staff will review the Administrative Code
to determine if any amendments to the Administrative Code are necessary for Board approval at their
next meeting.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
This item is informational and for discussion purposes only.

Tom\ikénnedy, \General Mar’ager 4/26/16



Agenda Packet Page 126 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 127 of 238

MunNiciPAL WATER DISTRICT

Committed to Excellence B O AR D I N F O R M ATI O N

AINBOW
¢

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

SUBJECT

DISCUSSION REGARDING ADMINISTRATIVE CODE CHAPTER 2.03 REMUNERATION AND
REIMBURSEMENT AND CHAPTER 4.10 EMPLOYEE BUSINESS EXPENSE

DESCRIPTION

Discussion regarding Administrative Code Chapter 2.03 - Remuneration and Reimbursement and
Chapter 4.10 - Employee Business Expenses to determine if the language should be amended to set per
diem limits in conformity with Federal General Services Administration allowance.

BACKGROUND

The Administrative Code for Chapter 2.03 and Chapter 4.10 that address per diem allowance, has not
been updated since 2012 and 2007 respectively. It is prudent of the District to constantly review and
update any administrative code that needs to be updated or brought up to standards.

Presently, the District does not have per diem limits established in the Administrative Code for members
of the Board of Directors. Rainbow Municipal Water District takes it stewardship over the use of the
District’s limited public resources seriously; the public resources should only be used for business related
benefit for the District and within reasonable limits. Industry standards utilize the Federal General
Services Administration hereinafter “FGSA” per diem allowance as a guidance to set their own agency
per diem limits.

At present, the administrative code does not give direction for staff to determine what amount of
reimbursement is reasonable for members of the board for business incurred expense. Reasonable
amounts can vary from one person to another and are subjective. Allowing the District to adhere to the
FGSA will keep all board reimbursements within limits.

Additionally, in Chapter 4.10 Employee Business Expenses per diem limits are established in the code
for employee related business expenses, however, a recommendation would be to not set specific
amounts as with time cost tends to increase and does not allow flexibility. Setting the guidance to
reference the FGSA allowance amounts allows for flexibility, as those amounts are constantly changing
‘to adjust for inflation.

ATTACHMENTS

o FGSA Per Diem Rates for California
o FGSA Per Diem Rates for Meals and Incidental Expenses

POLICY
Administrative Code Chapters 2.03 and 4.10.




Agenda Packet Page 128 of 238
STAFF RECOMMENDATION

This item is informational and for discussion purposes only.

Vanessa éartinez, Finance Manager April 26, 2016



Per Diem Rates Look-Up Agenda Packet Page 129I%fg%3180f 2

FY 2016 Per Diem Rates for California

(October 2015 - September 2016)

Cities not appearing below may be located within a county for which rates are listed.
To determine what county a city is located in, visit the National Association of Counties (NACO) website (a non-federal website).

You searched for: California

Max lodging by Month (excluding taxes)

Primary Destination M&IE
County (3, 4) 2015 2016
(1,2) (5)
Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep
Applies for all locations
Standard Rate ) e $89 $89 $89 $89 589 %89 $89 $89 $89 489 $89 489 $51
without specified rates
Antioch / Brent d
ntioc C(l)nzzrr‘dwoo / Contra Costa $132 $132 $132 $132 $132 $132 $132 $132 $132 %132 $132 $132  $64
Bakersfield / Ridgecrest Kern $95 $95 $95 $95 $95 $95 1§95 $95 $95 495 $95 §95 $59
Barst Ontari
arstow / Ontario San Bernardino $96 $96 $96 $96 $96 $96 $96 496 $96 496 $96 96 54
Victorville
Death Valley Inyo $102 $102 $102 $102 $102 $102 $102 $102 $102 $102 $102 $102 $64
Eureka / Arcata /
. . Humboldt $94 $94 $94 $94 894 $94 $94 $94 $112 $112 $112 $94 $74
McKinleyville
Fresno Fresno $92 0§92 $92 0§92 92 $92 $92 %892 $92 %492 $92 492 464
Los Angeles / Orange /
Los Angeles Ventura / Edwards AFBless  $150 $150 $150 $157 $157 $157 $150 $150 $150 $150 8150 $150 %64
the city of Santa Monica
Mammoth Lakes Mono $116 $116 $159 $159 $159 $116 $116 $116 $116 S$116 $116 $116 $74
Mill Valley / San Rafael
e eI\To/va:Z afael/ Marin $146 $130 $130 $146 $146 $146 $146 $146 $146 $146 $146 $146  $74
Monterey Monterey $134 $134 $134 $134 $134 $134 S$134 $134 $134 $175 $175 $134  $74
Napa Napa $191 $149 $149 $149 $149 $149 $149 $191 $191 $191 $191 4191  $69
Oakhurst Madera $91 %91 $91 $91 $91 $91 $91 $91 $115 $115 $115 $o1 $64
Oakland Alameda $140 $140 $140 $140 $140 $140 $140 $140 $140 $140 $140 8140 $69
Palm Springs Riverside $123 $123 $123 $123 $123 $123 8123 $123 $92  $92  $92 $123 $64
Point Arena / Gualala Mendocino $106 $106 $106 $106 $106 $106 $106 $106 $106 $106 $106 $106 $69
Redding Shasta $90 %90 $90 $90 $90 $90 $90 $90 %90 490 $90  $90 $64
Sacramento Sacramento $112 $112 $112 $112 $112 $112 $112 $112 $112 $112 $112 8112 $64
http://www.gsa.gov/portal/category/100120 4/13/2016



Per Diem Rates Look-Up Agenda Packet Page 1 Sof%fg%%gof 2

Max lodging by Month (excluding taxes)
Primary Destination County (3, 4) 2015 2016 M&IE
(1,2) ’ (5)

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

San Diego San Diego $140 $140 $140 $153 $153 $153 $153 $153 $153 $153 $140 $140 $64
San Francisco San Francisco $250 $250 $250 $250 $250 $250 $250 $250 $250 $250 $250 $250 474
San Luis Obispo San Luis Obispo $112 $112 $112 $112 $112 $112 $112 $112 $133 $133 $133 8112  $64

San Mateo / Foster Ci
an B l/ t L San Mateo $178 $178 $178 $184 $184 $184 $178 $178 $178 $178 $178 $178  $69

elmon

Santa Barbara Santa Barbara $161 $161 $161 $161 $161 S$161 $161 $161 $161 $211 $211 $161  $74
Santa Cruz Santa Cruz $129 $129 $129 $129 $129 $129 $129 $129 $164 $164 $164 $129  $59
Santa Monica City limits of Santa Monica  $217 $217 $217 $217 $217 $217 $217 $217 $252 $252 $252 $217 $64
Santa Rosa Sonoma $134 $118 $118 $118 $118 $134 $134 $134 $134 $134 $134 $134  $64
South Lake Tahoe El Dorado $111 $111 $136 $136 $136 $136 $136 $136 $136 $162 $162 $111  $64
Stockton San Joaquin $97 $97 $97 $97 497 897 897 897 $97 $97 $97 $97 %64

Su ale/ Palo Alt
nnvaan{lose of Santa Clara $187 $187 $187 $187 $187 $187 $175 $175 $187 $187 $187 $187 $64
Tahoe City Placer $93 1§93 $93 893 493 $93 $93 $93 $93 $93 $93 $93  $64
Truckee Nevada $120 $120 $120 $120 $120 $120 $120 $120 $120 $120 $120 $120 474
Visalia / Lemoore Tulare / Kings $90 %90 $90 $90 $90 $90 $90 $90 %90 $90 %90 $90  $59

West Sacrament

Davis ento/ Yolo $113 $113 $113 4113 $113 $113 $113 $113 $113 $113 $113 $113  $64
Yosemite National Park Mariposa $118 $118 $118 8107 $107 $107 $107 $107 $132 $132 $132 $118  $69

Footnotes

1. Traveler reimbursementis based on the location of the work activities and not the accommodations, unless lodging is not available at the
work activity, then the agency may authorize the rate where lodging is obtained.

2. Unless otherwise specified, the per diem locality is defined as"all locations within, or entirely surrounded by, the corporate limits of the key
city, including independent entities located within those boundaries."

3. Perdiem localities with county definitions shall include"all locations within, or entirely surrounded by, the corporate limits of the key city as
well as the boundaries of the listed counties, including independent entities located within the boundaries of the key city and the listed
counties (unless otherwise listed separately)."

4. When a military installation or Government-related facility (whether or not specifically named) is located partially within more than one city or
county boundary, the applicable per diem rate for the entire installation or facility is the higher of the rates which apply to the cities and/or
counties, even though part(s) of such activities may be located outside the defined per diem locality.

5. Meals and Incidental Expenses, see Breakdown of M&IE Expenses for important information on first and last days of travel.

http://www.gsa.gov/portal/category/100120 4/13/2016



FY 2016 Meals and Incidental Expenses (M&IE) Breakdown Agenda Packet Page 131P%fgg?iSOf 2

FY 2016 Meals and Incidental Expenses (M&IE) Breakdown

The separate amounts for breakfast, lunch and dinner listed in the chart are provided should you need to deduct any of those
meals from your trip voucher. For example, if your trip includes meals that are already paid for by the government (such as
through a registration fee for a conference), you will need to deduct those meals from your voucher. Refer to Section 301-11.18
of the Federal Travel Regulation for specific guidance on deducting these amounts from your per diem reimbursement claims
for meals furnished to you by the government. Other organizations may have different rules that apply for their employees;
please check with your organization for more assistance.

The table lists the six M&IE tiers in the lower 48 continental United States {currently ranging from $51 to $74). If you need to
deduct a meal amount, first determine the location where you will be working while on official travel. You can look up the
location-specific information at www.gsa.gov/perdiem. The M&IE rate for your location will be one of the six tiers listed on this
table. Find the corresponding amount on the first line of the table (M&IE Total) and then look below for each specific meal
deduction amount.

The table also lists the portion of the M&IE rate that is provided for incidental expenses (currently $5 for all tiers).

Continental

Total Breakfast/ Lunch Dinner IE
Breakfast
$51 §11 $12 $23 $5
$54 $12 $13 $24 $5
$59 $13 $15 $26 $5
$64 $15 $16 $28 $5
$69 $16 $17 $31 $5
$74 $17 $18 $34 $5

This table lists the amount federal employees receive for the first and last calendar day of travel. The first and last calendar day
of travel is calculated at 75 percent.

Total First & Last Day of Travel
$51 $38.25
$54 $40.50
$59 $44.25

RATE THIS PAGE

http://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/101518 4/13/2016



FY 2016 Meals and Incidental Expenses (M&IE) Breakdown Agenda Packet Page 132}%%@%8& 2

Total First & Last Day of Travel
$64 $48.00
$69 $51.75
§74 $55.50

Looking for the foreign and outside the continental United States (OCONUS) breakdown chart? Visit FTR Appendix B.
(Note: Appendix B breakdowns do not apply to any locations in the continental United States; use the table listed above.)

The shortcut to this page is www.gsa.gov/mie.

QUESTIONS:
For all travel policy questions, email travelpolicy@gsa.gov.

Traveling?!g

Find Resources to Help

.

RELATED GSA TOPICS
+ FedRooms®

« Travel E-mail Notification

+ POV Mileage Reimbursement Rates

GOVERNMENT LINKS

« Fire Safety Information

RATE THIS PAGE

http://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/101518 4/13/2016



Agenda Packet Page 133 of 238

9Loz/cLiv

pasunouuy 9g 0], 4

V/N plojues 101ISIQ J8IBAA BILLIOMIED OYyouey jlounon paysiaiep) ellebliep eyues . Aepy
(Wo
V/N | Aq pssiapy sy) piojues WBQE:6 — 8GE WO0Y Iajuad uiwpy Aunod Bunss eroads 004V * Repy
V/IN 3] ‘wd 00:9 (peounouuy 8q 0} uoled0) Jaydey obaig ues - vasod . Rep
VIN WO YMOQs Buyes|y pJeog |eioads YAMOAS 4? Rep
1S0d S33AN3LLY NOILVYOO1 ONILIIN 9L02Z alva
ATdVIIVA

SAdOHSHMAUOM/STIONIFUIANOD/SHVNINIS/SONILITN




9Loz/eLiv

Agenda Packet Page 134 of 238

V/N labeuely |essuan ‘wrd g-¢ 'wooy pieog YMOAS Bunesy pieog In4 YMOAS 9¢ Repy
Jabeueyp [Bi1BUaD

V/N ‘a|npayog Bunejoy e uo s1008UIg [IY | "W'B 0/ OPIpU0dsS] ‘ojgelq [2Q uoduly dnoug Jajepn Ajuno) ypoN sz Rew
(paulwielaqg

61L/9 sJojoalIq IV ag 0} swi] Hejs) wooy preog AMINY pieogd |essusd AMINY 144 Rep

VIN Bep ‘wd 00:1 JoKIsIA ANlRN d1land oougjie llounoD paysiajep) Aay sin ueg €c Repy

V/N Jebeuepy [eiausn ‘we gy, 663 uspjon siabeuely ON 0z Aepy

VIN IEVENEITIEIENES) ‘we 06 ‘Aep piezieH Gee6 '004Y1 sepiwwo) KIosIApY 004V 0z Rep
Remod

ZLIS JoBeuepy |eiausg ‘s10302.1Q IV ‘we GL:/2 gn|o Aiuno) abpusuols SaIY|IIN JBJBAA 4O [IoUN0D n Repy

VIN laBeuep essusn ‘we 0g:6 0balq ues ‘'YMOdS Bunsspy sND YMOAS L1 ke

ez J18beue [BIBUSL) ‘10)0a11q pajuloddy ‘wd 0oL wooy pleog AMINY | BN eeniwwo) soueulH g 18bpng ol Repy

8Z/v Jabeueyy [elauan) ‘1010a.1q pauloddy ‘wd 00:¢ wooy pieog aMING Bunesy @sniwwio) buussuibug ¥ Aepy

gz/v | 1abeuepy |eisuaD ‘10)0al1q pajuloddy ‘wd 0g:¢ wooy pleog AMINY "By 99IWIWIOD SUOEDIUNWIWOD Z e
we

VN (WO Aq pasinpy sy) piojues 00:6 8G€ Wo0Y J8jua) “ulwpy Aunod 024V 4 Rep

1S0d S33AN3LLV NOILVOO1 ONIL33N 9L0¢ | A1vdad

DONTHINOHA

SdOHSHUOM/STONITUIANOI/SHVNINIS/SONILITN




WEST STATES PROPERBEE % Hatket Page 135 of 238
27461-A Diaz Rd

Temecula, CA 92590
951-296-9335 Fax 951-296-9339

March 29, 2016

Rainbow Municipal Water District

3707 Old Hwy. 395

Fallbrook CA 92028

760-728-1178 Fax 760-728-2575

Atten: Board of Directors / Tom Kennedy

Re: 20-6003-1

I received your letter regarding the illegal and excessive fee increase. You indicated that
there were numerous public meetings and a Protest Hearing on December 15, 2015. You also
indicated that notices were sent to all the property owners regarding these rate changes and
public hearings. I do not recall receiving a single notice regarding any rate changes or public
protest hearings. I followed the take over attempt by Fallbrook Water, but did not see any
notices regarding your attempt to Price Gouge your captive customer base.

Please provide the minutes, dates, sample ballot, and notices that were sent for these
meetings. Also provide the vote results. This evidence is needed to file a claim with the PUC
and or any subsequent Class Action Suit against RMWD.

Your letter also indicates that you were not aware were the quote that I provided for you
came from. For some reason you made the assumption that it came from Proposition 218.
This is incorrect.

In my letter to you dated March 14, 2016 I clearly stated that this was part of the decision in
the appeal from Paland vs Brooktrails. We looked at the decision in Paland vs Brooktrails
because this was the reasoning your customer service rep, Cindy Steward, indicated was your
basis for your Price Gouging and you newly imposed illegal fees.

Below is another copy of the part of the decision in the appeal that refers to price increases
and newly imposed fees

“If an agency seeks to impose a new or increased property-related fee, it must mail to affected property owners a detailed notice that
explains the proposed fee and announces a public hearing. However, no formal balloting is required at this stage in the process. Instead, the
agency must at the public hearing consider all protests against the fee or charge. “If written protests against the fee or charge are presented
by a majority of owners . . . the agency shall not impose the fee or charge.” Section 6, subdivision () of Article XIII D provides that if a
majority of the affected property owners protest a fee, “then, ‘[e]xcept for fees or charges for sewer, water, and refuse collection services,’
the fee still may not be imposed or increased ‘unless and until that fee or charge is submitted and approved by a majority vote of the
property owners of the property subject to the fee or charge or, at the option of the agency, by a two-thirds vote of the electorate residing in
the affected area.””

We have owned this lot for over 15 years and have not used a single drop of RMWD water
during this time. We agreed many years ago to pay $23.05 per month for Operations &
Maintenance. We will not pay any more !! This is an outrageous fee for someone that does
not use your service, and over the last 15 years you have done nothing to earn it except give
us access to your water if we decide to use it. However paying $23000.00 + for a water meter
should be enough to pay for that access.



You also indicated that we can downsize our meter to receiveAgémets RsskbtRagé 136 of 238
interested in downsizing our meter, and I think we have the smallest meter that you offer.

However I would be willing to sell your meter back to you for $23000.00.

In regards to your statement that under state law we must start any claim with the RMWD
Board of Directors. This is my second letter and protest that is directed to the

RMWD Board of Directors. You can consider my first letter as the starting point of this
claim. The desire of my neighbors and I are to resolve this matter quickly and without a
lawsuit, but we are willing to go as far as you make us to prevent these outrageous and
unjustified increases to a captive customer base.

RMWD needs to issue a credit for these outrageous increases within 14 days of date of this
letter.

Thank you

Dan Haahr



Agenda Packet Page 137 of 238

MuniciPAL WATER DISTRICT
Committed to Excellence

AINBOW
7

April 1, 2016

Mr. Dan Haahr

West States Properties
27461-A Diaz Rd
Temecula, CA 92590

Subject: Rate Changes at RMWD
Dear Mr. Haahr:

| have received your letter dated March 29, 2016 and wanted to respond to your concerns. |
understand that the changes in our fees for locked off meters is a challenge for customers who are in
this situation and your frustration is understandable. Please know that this action was not something
that the District wanted to take, but was compelled to do by changes in State Law.

| will address your concerns in the order in which they appear in your letter.

Notices to property owners

The District obtained a current list of all property owners within the District from the San Diego County
Assessor’s office and used this list to mail out notices. The notices were mailed on October 30, 2015
and the envelope had a special note on the exterior indicating that important information about water
rates was enclosed. We mailed over 8000 letters out — even though we only have about 7800 water
accounts. | am not sure how the property in question is listed on the County rolls or what address is
used, but | can assure you that we mailed notices to all of the property owners on the list we got from
the County. In addition, we put notices in our monthly newsletter and on our website. A copy of the
rate change notice is attached.

Meeting minutes and dates

The minutes of the various meetings are on our website. The Budget and Finance Committee began
discussions about the rate changes at the February 2015 meeting and continued discussions
throughout the year. In some months the agenda item is listed as “Raftelis Update” as this was the
firm that was doing the work. Here is the web address: http://www.rainbowmwd.com/budget-and-
finance-committee . The 2015 meetings are at the bottom part of the page.

Sample ballot and results

There was no “sample ballot” sent out to property owners. In the protest process under Prop 218,
property owners simply need to send in a written protest in the form of a letter, postcard, or even a
handwritten protest that is done on the fly at the protest hearing. Under Prop 218, if a majority (50%+1)
of the property owners submit a protest, the rates cannot be adopted. In our case, about 4000 protest
letters would have been required. The District received 9 protest letters in advance of the hearing and
another 8 at the hearing itself for a total of 17 protest letters.

Legal Quotes

In your letter you indicate that | made an incorrect assumption about a quote in your first letter. If that
is the case, | apologize. What | can say is that the District was very careful to follow the letter of the
law in the development and implementation of the new water rates.

Meter Downsizing
If you have a 1" or smaller meter, then you are correct, you would not be eligible for downsizing.

3707 Old Highway 395 « Fallbrook, CA 92028
(760) 728-1178  Fax (760) 728-2575 » www.rainbowmwd.com



Agenda Packet Page 138 of 238

Dan Haahr
April 1, 2016
Page 2

Claim against the District
Under State law, a public agency cannot be sued directly without the party that is seeking relief first
filing a claim with the agency. Government Code Section 910 contains the requirements for filing a
claim. Here is an excerpt:

910. A claim shall be presented by the claimant or by a person acting on his or her behalf and
shall show all of the following:

(a) The name and post office address of the claimant.

(b) The post office address to which the person presenting the claim desires notices to be
sent.

(c) The date, place and other circumstances of the occurrence or transaction which gave rise
fo the claim asserted.

(d) A general description of the indebtedness, obligation, injury, damage or loss incurred so
far as it may be known at the time of presentation of the claim.

(e) The name or names of the public employee or employees causing the injury, damage, or
loss, if known.

(f) The amount claimed if it totals less than ten thousand dollars ($10,000) as of the date of
presentation of the claim, including the estimated amount of any prospective injury, damage, or
loss, insofar as it may be known at the time of the presentation of the claim, together with the
basis of computation of the amount claimed. If the amount claimed exceeds ten thousand
dollars ($10,000), no dollar amount shall be included in the claim. However, it shall indicate
whether the claim would be a limited civil case.

In your situation | will consider the date of your first letter as the start date for the claim. As you can see
above, your claim needs to include a description of the damage or loss on your part and some
information about the total value of the claim. | am not sure what monetary amount you are claiming
here, but in order for us to process the claim, you need to specify what amount of money is included in
the claim. As subsection (f) above indicates, there is a threshold value of $10,000 below which you
need to provide an amount claimed with a description as to how you arrived at that amount.

Right now, your claim is incomplete and cannot be processed further. Please provide us with the
information required by Government Code Section 910 including the basis for, and amount of damages.
Once we receive that information, in accordance with our Administrative Code, your claim will either be
processed by me, or the Board of Directors depending on the monetary size of the claim.

Credit for rate increase
I apologize, but | am unable to provide a credit for the fees due on your service.

Again, | know that the changes in our rates has had a negative impact on your water bill and that this
appears to be unfair to you. | wish that there were other options that | could offer, but unfortunately we
are limited in what we can do by law.

Sincerely,

RAINB MUNIGHWAL WATER DISTRICT

Tom Kennegly
General Mahager
cc: Board of [t



Agenda Packet Page 139 of 238

MumCiPAL WATER DisTRICT
Commdiod o Excedence

AINBOW
14

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
CONCERNING PROPOSED
WATER RATE INCREASES
DECEMBER 15, 2015 AT 1:00 pm

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Board of Directors of Rainbow Municipal Water District (the “District”) will conduct a public
hearing on December 15, 2015, at 1:00 p.m. in the Boardroom of the District Headquarters at 3707 Old Highway 395, Fallbrook,
CA 92028, to consider adopting increases in the rates for its water service fees effective January 1, 2016 and an ordinance that
would authorize the District to pass through increased costs in Purchased Wholesale Water, increases in the cost of energy
necessary to move water, increases to the District’s Cost of Operations and Maintenance and Capital Facilities, and any reduction
in the allocation of ad valorem property tax revenues by the State of California {“Ad Valorem Pass Through”) pursuant to
Proposition 1A. Over the past five years (2011-2015) since the District last adjusted its water rates and charges, these rates and
charges have been subject to, and reflect, an adjustment to pass through charges by the District’'s wholesaler supplier, the San
Diego County Water Authority, as well as inflationary adjustments based on RMWD's internal operating costs.

REASONS FOR THE PROPOSED RATE INCREASES

The District’s Mission Statement is to provide our customers reliable, high quality water and water reclamation services in a
fiscally sustainable manner. While the District continually strives for cost reductions and efficient utilization of the assets it holds,
it also needs to keep pace with inflation and other increases in costs, including, among others, the cost to purchase water and to
comply with regulations. The District purchases its water from the San Diego County Water Authority (“SDCWA”). SDCWA in turn
purchases a substantial portion of its water supplies from the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (“MWD”). MWD
imports water from two sources: the Colorado River via the Colorado River Aqueduct and Northern California via the California
Aqueduct. On January 17, 2014, Governor Jerry Brown issued a drought state of emergency declaration in response to record-low
water levels in California’s rivers and reservoirs as well as an abnormally low snowpack. The drought has impacted the cost of
imported water the District purchases from SDCWA and the availability of local water supplies. On January 1, 2016, SDCWA will be
increasing the cost of wholesale water that it delivers to the District including a new Supply Reliability Charge. In addition to
increases in the costs of wholesale water, the District anticipates there will be future increases in the costs of operating and
maintaining the water system. Revenues collected from rates and charges are used to cover the cost of purchased water from
SDCWA and costs to operate and maintain the water system and to provide ongoing repairs, replacements, and upgrades to the

water system. As described below, the District is also proposing to adjust rates annually for a five-year period for any increases in
such costs.

Components of RMWD Water Bills

RMWD
{O&M) Fixed

SDCWA Fixe
Ch




Agenda Packet Page 140 of 238

HOW THE WATER RATES ARE CALCULATED

The District’s rate structure for monthly water service fees is comprised of four components: (1) a SOCWA Fixed Charge
(“SDCWA Fixed”), which is a fixed monthly charge established by SDCWA on the basis of the meter size of the parcel of property
receiving water service; (2) a Rainbow Municipal Water District Operations and Maintenance Charge (“RMWD O&M Charge”),
which also is a fixed monthly charge established on the basis of the meter size of the parcel of property receiving water service;
(3) a pumping charge that consists of both a fixed monthly charge and variable charges based on the pump zone of the
property; and (4) a Commodity Charge, which is determined on the basis of the amount of water served to a parcel of property
in units of water (one unit of water is equivalent to approximately 748 gallons of water).

The SDCWA Fixed Charge is imposed by SDCWA on the District for the purpose of recovering certain SDCWA infrastructure
costs. The SDCWA Fixed Charge is based on the size of the customer’s meter and is imposed on the District by SDCWA and
passed through to our customers. This fee also contains the new Supply Reliability Charge.

The RMWD 0&MC is calculated on the basis of recovering certain fixed costs of the District to operate, maintain, and deliver
water to its customers. These costs include, among others, meter reading, billings and collections, customer service, water
facilities repairs and maintenance, meter reading, and certain other costs imposed on the District by SDCWA.

The Commodity Charge is a variable charge and generally consists of tiers which impose different rates per unit of water as the
level of consumption increases. The rates for the variable Commaodity Charge are based on the number of units of water
delivered to a property and the water customer classification. These rates are calculated on the basis of the cost of providing
water and infrastructure, purchasing water from SDCWA, and managing the District’s water resources. The proposed rate
increases include pre-defined Demand Reduction Rates to offset loss of revenue should water sales fall below current forecasts.

The rates for all four components of the District’s water service fees are structured in such a way as to proportionately allocate
the costs of providing water to each customer class and to manage the District’s water resources.

The current and proposed rate increases are described in the tables below. If approved, the proposed rate increases will be
effective on and after January 1, 2016. In addition to the water service charges described to the right, the District also imposes a
fixed monthly fire meter service fee on certain properties as a condition of extending or initiating water service by (1) the
installation of a private fire suppression system, and {2) upon the request of the consumer or property owner for the delivery of
water to the property for the purpose of fire service protection.

To avoid operational deficits, depletion of reserves, an inability to address infrastructure and water quality improvements, and
to continue to provide a safe, reliable water supply, the District is also proposing to pass through to its customers: (1) any
increases in the rates of the SDCWA Fixed Charges imposed on the District by SDCWA (an “SDCWA Fixed Pass Through”); (2) any
future charges and any rate increases to any other existing charges, including imported water charges, that are imposed on the
District by SDCWA (a “SDCWA Pass Through”); (3) any increases in energy costs imposed on the District by San Diego Gas and
Electric (“an Energy Pass Through”); (4) future increases in the costs of operating and maintaining the water system, including
capital facilities, based on an annual inflationary adjustment in the San Diego Consumer Price Index, All ltems, 1982-1984=100
for All Urban Consumers (“CPI-U”) determined by the United States Department of Labor Statistics annually for the previous
calendar year (an “Inflationary Pass Through”); and (5) any reduction in the allocation of ad valorem property tax revenues by
the State of California (“Ad Valorem Pass Through”) pursuant to Proposition 1A. Proposition 1A was approved by the voters in
November 2004, with the intent of protecting the property tax revenues of local governments. Under Proposition 1A, the State
of California is allowed to borrow local government property taxes on the condition that they will be paid back within 3 years.
The foregoing are collectively referred to in this notice as “Pass Through increases.”

Any SDCWA Fixed Pass Through will only impact the rates of the SDCWA Fixed Charges. Any SDCWA Pass Through, any
Inflationary Pass Through, Energy Pass Through, and any Ad Valorem Pass Through will impact the rates of the Meter Charge,
Commodity Charge, and the Fire Meter Service Charge. If approved by the Board of Directors, the District may annually
implement the Pass Through Increases for a five-year period commencing January 1, 2016, through December 31, 2021,
provided, however, that (1) any increase to the rates described above as a result of any SDCWA Pass Through, Energy Pass
Through, Inflationary Pass Through, or Ad Valorem Pass Through shall not exceed 15% per year; and (2) in no event shall such
rates be increased by more than the cost of providing water service.



Agenda Packet Page 141 of 238
Proposed RMWD Fixed O&M Charges

SFR, MFR, Commerclal, and institutional Agriculture, TSAWR Domestic, and TSAWR Commercial

Current
Proposed RMWD RMWD
AG O8&M Fixed O&M Difference Difference
Meter Size Charge Charge {%)
s

Proposed
RMWD O&M Current RMWD Difference Difference
Meter Size Fixed Ch > O&M Charge {S) (%

s/g" | E2825]  ($4.53) 5/g" [ 5

3/4" ] 5354 ($11.63) -33% 3/4" $7.81 22%
1" {$8.90) -19% 1" $23.49 51%

1-1/2" ($0.26) 0% 1-1/2" $64.54 91%
2" ($13.27) -11% 2" $90.40 73%
3" $25.16 12% 3" $251.94 118%
4" $70.65 20% a4 $478.86 135%
6" $270.71 45% 6" $1,113.03 185%

Proposed SDCWA FlIxed Pass Through Charges

SFR, MFR, Commercial, Agriculture, Institutional

Pass-Through

Fixed Charge

{applicable to  Current CWA

all but TSAWR Fixed Difference Difference

Meter Size customers) {Non-TSAWR)
5/8" | $35.02 | $30.48 $4.54 14.9%
3/4" | $30.48 $4.54 14.9%
1" $48.77 $9.60 19.7%
1-1/2" $116 $91.44 $25.31 27.7%
2" 5$186.79 $158.49 $28.30 17.9%
3" $408.61 | $274.31 $134.30 49.0%
4" $735.50 $487.66 $247.84 50.8%
6" _ $1,517.71 $1,097.24 $420.47 38.3%

TSAWR Cust stic and TSAWR Commedial)

Pass-Through

Fixed Charge Current Current SDCWA  Difference Difference Difference Difference

(applicable to SDCWA Fixed Fixed TSAWR TSAWR TSAWR TSAWR
Meter Size {TSAWRDom) (TSAWR Com} Com ($) Dom (%) Com {$} Com (%)

s/g" | $17.05 30.48 16.17 -$13.43 44.1% $0.88 5.5%
3/a" $17.05 30.48 1617  $13.43 44.1% $0.88 5.5%
1" $28.42 48.77 2587 -$20.35 41.7% $2.55 9.9%
1-1/2" $56.84 91.44 485  -$34.60 -37.8% $834  17.2%
2" $90.94 91.44 8407  -50.50 0.5% $6.87 8.2%
3 198 92 91.44 1455 $107.49  117.6%  $5343  36.7%
4 { 18 91.44 25866 $266.64  291.6%  $99.42  38.4%
6 | $738 91.44 58199 $647.46  708.1%  $15691  27.0%

RMWD Proposed Pumping Charges

Fixed Pumping Charge

Current Proposed Difference Difference
Pump Zone Charge  Charge ($) (%)
All $ 877 § 951 § 0.74 8.4%

Variable Pumping Charge {$/Unit)

Proposed

Current Rate Difference Difference

Pump Zone __Charge _{$/Unit) ___ ($) {%) Important Notice: All rates and charges shown
Rainbow Heights ~ $0.43 = $0.77 $0.34 79% in these tables apply to the rate increases
ID U-1 $0.27 $0.48 $0.21 78% ffective January 1, 2016. Additional rate
Vallecitos $0.15  $50.27 $0.12 80% hanges will be made during the five year term of
Northside $0.05  $0.09 $0.04 80% his rate setting notice. Rate changes will be
Morro Tank $0.08 $0.14 $0.06 75% made in accordance with the methodologies
Huntley $0.31  $0.55 $0.24 7% escribed in this notice.
Magee Tank $1.42 $2.53 $1.11 78%



Agenda Packet Page 142 of 238

Proposed Demand Reduction Rates
Proposed Proposed Proposed

Proposed Proposed Rates Rates Rates Rates
Rates Current  Difference Difference {15% {25% {30% (35%

Customer Class (S/hcf) Rate {($) (%) Reduction) Reduction)  Reduction) Reduction)
Single Family Residential o 2.2% 4.8% 6.0% 7.6%

Tier1 10 a0 | $0.31 10% $3.39 $3.47 $3.51 $3.57

Tier 2 26 $0.33 10% $3.56 $3.65 $3.69 $3.75

Tier3 27+ $0.66 21% $3.90 $4.00 $4.04 $4.11
MFR $0.25 8% $3.48 $3.57 $3.61 $3.66
Commercial 3 $0.36 11% $3.59 $3.68 $3.72 $3.78
Agriculture with Residenca

Tier1 10 4 $0.31 10% $3.39 $3.47 $3.51 $3.57

Tier2 26 $0.33 10% $3.56 $3.65 $3.69 $3.75

Tier 3 27+ $0.09 3% $3.32 $3.40 $3.44 $3.49
Agriculture $0.09 3% $3.32 $3.40 $3.44 $3.49
TSAWR Domestic

Tier1 10 $0.31 10% $3.39 $3.47 $3.51 $3.57

Tier2 26 $0.33 10% $3.56 $3.65 $3.69 $3.75

Tier 3 27+ -$0.06 2% $2.84 $2.91 $2.94 $2.99
TSAWR Commercial -$0.06 -2% $2.84 $2.91 $2.94 $2.99
Institutional $0.43 14% $3.66 $3.76 $3.80 $3.86
Construction $1.15 37% $4.40 $4.51 $4.56 $4.63

lease note that the Demand Reduction Rates may apply to future rate increases in proportion to the percentages listed
t the top of each column. For example, if in a future year the demand reduction is 25% below the baseline demand, a
.8% increase will be applied to all variable rates

Protest Provisions

Any property owner or any tenant directly responsible for the payment of water service fees may submit a written protest to the
proposed water rate increases and Pass Through Increases, provided, however, only one protest will be counted per identified
parcel. To be used in determining whether there is a majority protest as set forth below, each protest must: (1) be in writing; (2)
state whether the protest is submitted in opposition to the water rate increases, and/or Pass Through Increases; (3) provide the
location of the identified parcel (by assessor’s parcel number or service address); and {4) inciude the name and signature of the
person submitting the written protest. Written protests may be submitted by mail to: Rainbow Municipal Water District at 3707
Old Highway 395, Fallbrook, CA 92028. Written protests may also be submitted in person at the District’s office, or at the public
hearing (see date, time and location above). All written protests must be received prior to the conclusion of the public input
portion of the Public Hearing. Any protest submitted via e-mail or other electronic means will not be accepted as a formal written
protest. Please identify on the front of the envelope for any protest, whether mailed or submitted in person, that the enclosed
letter is for the Public Hearing on the Proposed Rate Increases and Pass Through Increases.

The Board of Directors will consider all written protests timely submitted and hear and consider all public comments made at the
public hearing. Oral comments at the public hearing will not qualify as the written protests to be used in determining whether
there is a majority protest. At the conclusion of the public hearing, the Board of Directors will determine whether to adopt the
proposed water rate increases and Pass Through Increases described in this notice. If, after the close of the public hearing,
written protests against the proposed rate increases and Pass Through Increases as outlined above are not presented by a
majority of the owners of record and tenants directly responsible for the payment of water service fees for the identified parcels
upon which the increases are proposed to be imposed, the Board of Directors will be authorized to impose the rate increases and
Pass Through increases.

If you have any questions regarding the information provided in this notice, or the rates applicable to your property, please
contact Rainbow Municipal Water District at 760-728-1178. A copy of the District’'s 2015 Potable Water Cost of Service Study
Report will be available for review at www.rainbowmwd.com starting November 1, 2015.



B4/12/2016 ©7:18 . LEATHERBURXgenda Packet Page 143 04288 ©1/08

Lowell Ranch

April 11, 2016

Rainbow Municipal Water District

Board of Directors, Bill Stuart, & Tom Kennedy, GM

3707 Old Highway 395

Fallbrook, CA 92028

(Fax: 760.728.2575, 3/22/18; and emailed to Bill Stewart, Board Member)

Re: Parcels 124-1920-18 & 19
2 “Standby” meters —
v 3" meter account 28-0161-5
¥ 2" meter account 26-0161-5

Bill and Board of Directors,

Bill, thank you for speaking to my wife Ann and myself conceming the large increase in
our “inactive/standby” 3" and 2" water meters. | Jooked at FPUD and Valley Center
rates, as we discussed. (Our 3" locked-off meter went from $106.35 a month to $873.25
per month. The 2" meter went from $62.03 a month to $297.57 per month.)

FPUD has no charge for a locked-off meter and Valley Center has a flat $50 charge for
any size, locked-off meter. We next took the LAFCO list of water districts and called for
rates. I've done my best effort at capturing rates, but this information needs to be
verified. Please note the flat meter rates on average are about half of Rainbow Water. it
was very difficult to discuss the “SDCWA Fixed Pass Through” shown on the Rainbow
charges, as no one at the other water districts knew what | was talking about.

The other water districts said they charge the meter rate, plus water consumed. If
Rainbow has pulled SDCWA water charges out of the water rates and are showing it
separately, this would be against proposition 218 and other findings. It would mean the
group using water is being subsidized by the group with locked-off meters. Again, no
one can adequately explain the differences in Rainbow’s high rates, nor the combined
meter rate and SDCWA Fixed Pass Through.

We'd like to ask the Board to first have Rainbow verify the information in the two charts
below. And then, hold a public hearing with for all those with locked-off meters to
explain the enormous disparity. We understand that Eric Larson, with San Diego Farm
Bureau, recently met with the General Manager of Rainbow Water, representing several
members of the Bureau. His recommendation is to request a similar public meeting, a
reevaluation of the rates, and explanation for the difference with other water districts.

We are attaching a copy of our previous letter of March 22, 2016.

The attention of the Board to this matter is greatly appreciated. Thank you.



B4/12/2816 B7:18

LEATHERBURAgenda Packet Page 144 ofs288 v2/08

Lowell Ranch
“Water District *Meter Rate *SDCWA Fixed *Total Meter *Inactive /
Meter Size: 37 Pass Through” Rate + SDCWA | “Standby’/ Locked-
: Fixed Off
FPUD $214.60 $0 $214.60 $0
Valley Center $148.77 50 $148.77 $50
Vallecitos $356.20 $0 $356.20 $12.50
Carlsbad $237.76 $0 $237.76 $237.76
Qtay $132.02 $0 $132.02 $132.02
Qlivenhain $289.64 $0 $289.64 $289.64
Yuma $338.00 $26.50 $364.50 $0
Rincon _$201.08 $0 $201.08 $201.08 |
Average $239.76 $3.31 $243.07 $115.38
Rainbow — AG $464 .64 $408.61 $873.35 $873.25
% above avg. 194% 400% 360% 760%
Rainbow - $237.86 $408.61 $646.47 $646.67
Family &
Comm.
% above ava. 0% 400% 265% 560%
¢ *Information shown are from phone conversations and must be verified.
“Water District *Meter Rate **SDCWA Fixed *Total Meter *Inactive /
Meter Size: 2" Pass Through” Rate + SDCWA [ “Standby’/ Locked-
Fixed Off
FPUD $130.42 $0 $130.42 $0
Valley Center $148.77 $0 $148.77 $50
Vallecitos $178.11 $0 $178.11 $12.50
Carlsbad $129.78 $0 $120.78 $120.78
Qtay $69.61 $0 $69.61 $69.61
Qlivenhain $289.64 $0 $289.64 $289.64
Yuma $18315 $£0 $183.15 $0

Rincon

$26.50

Average

Rainbow ~ AG

2103.03
$154.08

"$1,232

$3.31

$408.61

129.53
$157.38

$873.35

103.03
$81.82

$873.25

% above avg, 194% 360% 760%
Rainbow — $237.86 $408.61 $646.47 $646.67
Family &

Comm.
% above avg. 155% 400% AN1% 787%

* Information shown are from phone conversations and must be verified.

LA, ﬁé‘;z/m/ﬁ—/

Ann & Chuck Leatherbury

Cc: Eric Larson, San Diego Farm Bureau
Attachments: Letier of March 22, 2016




B4/12/2016 ©7:18 LEATHERBURNgenda Packet Page 145 dTi288 ©3/@8

Lg)well Ranch

March 22, 2016

Rainbow Municipal Water District

Board of Directors, Bill Stuart, & Tom Kennedy, GM

3707 Old Highway 395

Fallbrook, CA 92028

(Fax: 760.728;?2'?5-?3 3/22/16; and emailed to Bill Stewart, Board Member)
5

Re: Parcels 124-190-18 & 19

4 Water Meter, but 3" meter account 268-0161-5 in particular

This is in response to my conversations yesterday with Tom Kennedy and the new Board
member for our district, Bill Stuart. This is not a request for an “exception”, but to advise the
Board that the over 800% increase violates the five requirements for Proposition 218 on which
the Capistrano case, they have quoted, is based.

Qur 3" meter rate was increased from $106.35 to $873.25 per month. This is a meter that does
not have a backflow device, as it has not been used for many years. It does not require the
annual inspection / maintenance of other meters in use with backflow devices. (The following
quotes highlighted in yellow and in italics are from Proposition 218.)

Total Cost Requirement: The first requirement is that the revenues derived from the property-
related fee or charge must not exceed the funds reguired to provide the property related
service.#2-_ This meter does not require the annual inspection / maintenance of other meters
in use with backflow devices.

Use Requirement: The second requirement is that revenues derived from the property-related
Jee or charge must not be used for any purpose other than that for which the property-related fee
or charge was imposed.“Z- We have been advised by the Board that goal of the new rate
system is to: (a) keep the rates low, for large agricultural users; (b) being large users the
maintenance and retated rate increases aren’t relatively substantial; and (c) during the
publicized battle to prevent the forced merger with FPUD, this was one of the primary
arguments made by Rainbow Water.

Proportional Cost of Service Required: The third requirement is that the amount of a property-
related fee or charge must not exceed the proportional cost of the property-related service
attributable to the parcel "2 This requirement is frequently referred to as the “cost of service”
requirement under Proposition 218, and generally receives the most attention in court cases.

Again, the proportional increase of over 800% cannot be rationalized as an over 800% increase
in “cost of the property-related service”.

A property-related fee or charge report prepared by a local agency is generally a “public
record”™ whereby a member of the public, including persons subject to a propused property-
velated fee or charge, may make a written request and receive a copy of the report pursuant fo
the California Public Records Act “2l- \We hereby request a copy of this property related report.



@4/12/2016 ©7:18 LEATHEREURgenda Packet Page 146 of&8 04/08

) Lowell Ranch

Actual Use or Immediate Availability Requirement: The fourth requirement is intended to add
a temporal component to the property-related fee or charge restrictions. Under the plain
language of this provision, property owners using an existing property-related service are not
supposed to be paying costs associated with future use of that service, including future service to
their own property. This is especially the case with respect to paying for the costs of expensive
public improvements for which property owners may not receive direct benefits from until years
later (if ever at all).

This section prevents Rainbow from justifying the 800%+ increase by stating it is charging
“costs associated with future use of the service.”

The jourth requirement is intended to add a temporal component to the property-related fee or
charge restrictions. Under the plain language of this provision, property owners using an
existing property-related service are not supposed to be paying costs associated with future use
of that service, including future service to their own property. This is especially the case with
respect 10 paying for the costs of expensive public improvements for which property owners may
not receive direct benefils from until years later (if ever at ali).

Nor can Rainbow Water justify the 800%+ increase by stating the meter is for “standby ... future
use”.

The Court of Appeal in the Capistrano decision did not hold that Proposition 218 invalidated all
tiered (conservation) water rates in California, The appellate court merely stated that “tiers
must still correspond to the actual cost of providing service at a given level of usage. The water
agency here did not try to calculate the cost of actually providing water at its various tier levels.
It merely allocated all its costs among the price tier levels, based not on costs, but on
predetermined usage budgets. %!

The “level of usage” of our shut-off meters is zero, yet we are being charged the same amount
as large usage customers in violation of the Court of Appeals finding in the Capistrano case.

The Court of Appeal in the Capistrano case having soundly rejected that argument, many local
government interests now want to amend the California Constitution to deprive voters of their
constitutional right to vote on water utility levies that exceed the cost of providing the service to
each parcel of property.

Rainbow Water has exceeded the cost of providing the service to our parcel. We request that
Rainbow insist on moving forward with this violation of Proposition 218, it is also subject a
requirement for a public vote, not a Board vote.

Thank you for your consideration.

)

Chuck Leatherbury, Representing Leatherbury Family Trust and Lowell Family Trust




P4/12/2016 ©7:18 = & LEATHERBURgenda Packet Page 147 074588 @5/883

Gl Prop [y 206 [§5) o > )

Requirements for Existing, New, or _I.n;creased Property-Related Fees and
Charges|edit] |

Subdivision (b) of Section 6 of Article XIIT Djsets forth five requirements that every property-
related fee or charge must satisfy. An agency may not extend, impose, or increase any property-
related fee or charge unless it meets all five requirements.2 The five requirements help ensure
that any property-related fee or charge levied by an agency is a legitimate fee or charge and not a
tax. All property-related fees and charges are subject to and must comply with the five
requirements.™ Property-related fees or charges existing when Proposition 218 became
effective (November 6, 1996) must be in compliance with the five requirements by July 1,

1997 2 :

If a property-related fee or charge is constitutionally prohibited under any of the five
requiremnents, Proposition 218 does not prohibit that levy from being imposed as a fax s0 long as
all other legal requirements are satisfied, including the applicable voter approval requirement. 8

Total Cost Requirement[edit] 1 '
Wa’c the revenues deri}/ed from the property-related fee or charge must
0ot exceed the funds required to provide the property related service. 2

This requirement is an aggregate cost requirement applicable to the combined cost from all
parcels while the “cost of service” requirement contains a similar requirement at the parcel

level .2 Use of the tenm “required” in the constitutional language is intended to preclude local
agencies from levying property-related fees or charges for costs that are excessive, unreasonable,
or unnecessary. If those assessed a property-related fee or charge believe the levy is excessive,
unreasonable or unnecessary, the exercise of the local initiative power under Proposition 218 to
reduce or repeal the property-related fee or charge is also an available remedy.

Use Requirement{edit]

Sl
The second requirement is that revenues derived from the property-related fee or charge must not

be used for any purpose other than that for which the property-related fee or charge was
imposed. Lzt :

Proportional Cost of Service Requirement[edit]

The thjf.d requirement is that the amount of a property-related fee or charge must not exceed the
roportional cost of the property-related service attributable to the parcel. 22 This tequitement is

frequently referred o as the “cost of Service™ T T PToposition 218, and geperally
receives the most attention in court cases.

Unlike with special assessments on real property, Proposition 218 does not expressly require an
agency to prepare a detailed report in support of a property-related fee or charge. However, as a
practical matter, in order to comply with the constitutional requirements applicable to property-
related fees and charges, particularly the “cost of service” requirement, a local agency must



P4/12/2016 ©7:18 LEATHEREURgenda Packet Page 148 o74%88 86/09

prepare a detailed supporting report. This is especially the case since under Proposition 218 ﬁl
any legal action contesting the validity of a property-related fee or cha-rge, the bw:dqn 1s on the
Iocal agency to demonstrate compliance with the procedures and requirements applicable to

property-related fees and charges 2= .

L} | . . .
property-related fee or charge report pmﬁa?gd by a loi agency is generally a “public
record” whereby a member of the public, ircluding persons subject to a proposed property-
related fee or charge, may make a written request and receive a copy of the report pursuant to the
California Public Records Act." Payment ofla fee covering the direct costs of duplicating any
requested pages from a property-related fee of ch: ay also be required by the lo
agency. ™ :

Actual Use or Immediate Availability Requirement{edit]

The fourth requirement is that no property-related fee or charge may be imposed for a property-
related service unless that service is actually used by, or immediately available to, the owner of
the property in quéstion. In addition, property-related fees or charges based on potefifial or future
perty-related service are not p?'mﬁtted.”ﬂl

s -

r:i‘.]t;e fourth requirement is intended to add a temporal component to the property-related fee or
charge restrictions. Under the plain language of this provision, property owners using an existng
property-related service are not supposed to be paying costs associated with future use of that
service, including future service to their own. property. This is especially the case with respect to
paying for the costs of expensive public improvements for which property owners may not
receive direct benefits from until years later (if ever at all).

The practical effect of the fourth requirement, if propetly interpreted, is to shift the financing of
future use public iraprovements from user based property-related fees or charges to other funding
mechanisms, including special assessments which contain stronger protections for property
owners such as the requirement of an assessment ballot proceeding. However, California coutts
to date have generally allowed local agencies greater than intended latitude in charging property
owners for potential or future use of a property-related service, P

Classification of Standby Charges[edit]

standby charge has historically been considered an assessment levied upon real pr
actording to the availability of water.22 Under Proposition 218, & standby charge, regardless o
whether characterized as a property-related charge or an assessment, is classified as an
assessment and may not be levied by a local agency without compliance with the generally more

restrictive procedures and requirements for assessments contained in Section 4 of Article XTI D
f the California Constitution.22!

General Governmental Services Prohibition[edit]

The fifth requirement is that no property~relatéd fee or charge may be levied for general
governmental services including, but not Limited to, police, fire, ambulance or library services,



P4/12/2016 87:18  LEATHERBURXgenda Packet Page 149 ¢7288 07/03

where the general governmental service is available to the public at large_in §ubstantially the
same manner as it is to property owners.22 The fifth requirement makes it difficult, but not
imopossible, for local agencies to lawfully impose property-_related fees or c@mges for general
governmental services. General governmental.services available to the public at large are
ordinarily financed from tax revenues.

Tiered (Conservation) Water Rates and thé 2015 Capistrano Decision[edit]

On Aprl 20, 2015, the California Court of Appeal in Qrange County in Capisirano Taxpayers
Association, Inc. v. City of San Juan Capistrano, 235 Cal. App. 4th 1493 (April 2015) cons!:rued
Proposition 218 as prohibiting local governménts from charging higher water rates on hea'\.qcr
watex users (tiered or "conservation” water rates) without complying with the "cost of service”
requirements®® under the measure. 425 The Capistrano decision received widespread
international coverage in the media because the decision came down during a severe drought in
California. The Capistrano decision was also heavily criticized by California Governor Jerry
Brown when the decision came down.2 On October 9, 2015, California Governor Jerry Brown
in a bill signing message further criticized the water copservation pricing aspect of the
Capistrano decision.22 '

Tiered (Conservation) Water Rates Not Prohibited Under Proposition 218]edit]

_The Court of Appeal in the Capistrgno decision did not LOpOSitiy invalidated all
“tiered (conservation) water rates in California, The appellate court merely stated that “tiers must

still Correspond to the actual cost of providing service at a given level of usage. The water
agenicy here did 1ot try to calculate the cost of actually providing water at its various tier levels.
It merely allocated all its costs among the price tier levels, based not on costs, but on

gr‘eiete_'n_rﬁn_eil_l_lsage budgets.”4

The Court of Appeal in the Capistrano decision further stated that “[tJhe way Proposition 218
operates, water rates that exceed the cost of service operate as a tax, similar to the way a ‘carbon
tax’ might be imposed on use of energy. But, we should emphasize: Just because such above-
cost rates are a tax does not mean they cannot be imposed—they just have to be submitted to the
relevant electorate and approved by the people in a vote. . .. However, if a local government
Mes to 1mpose tiered rates unilaterally without a vote, those fiers must be based on cost

of service for the incremental level of usage, not predetermined budgets.”28%
< ? e ——— e ———

Furthermore, in subsequently approving the résolution adopting the emergency regulation for
mandatory urban water conservation in California, the California State Water Resources Control
Board acknowledged that the Capistrano decision “does not foreclose the use of conservation-
oriented rate structures.”™® Subsequent enforcement and compliance data released by the
California State Water Resources Control Board reveal that the vast majority of local agencies in

Califomia are meeting their water couservatid;n mandates in the months following the Capistrano
decision.22! :

The gist of the Capistrano decision is that local agencies cannot act in an arbitrary manner and
must “show their work” if they want to levy tiered (conservation) water rates as a proper fee or
charge under Proposition 218 without approval by the voters in an election.




84/12/2016 ©7:18 LEATHERBURXgenda Packet Page 150 dfA288 @8/@8

As a matter of legislative policy, many local agenmes want to impose water utility fees and
charges in excess of the cost of prov1dmg the service to each parcel without voter approval. Priox
to the passage of Proposition 218 in 1996, local agencies were generally allowed to do this, and
frequently did so by transferring the “excess” water utility revenues to the general fund and then
spending the proceeds on purposes completely unrelated to the provision of water utility service
such as public employee salaries and benefits., |

Local government interests argued in the Capgstrano case that Proposition 218 should be
interpreied to allow the i water utility fees and charges in excess of the cost of
prowdm e Court of Appeal/in the Capistrany case having soundty ¢

<ﬂnﬁt afgument, many local government mteres,lts now want to amend the California Constitution

to deprive voters of their constitutional right to vote on water utility levies that exceed the cost of
roviding the service to each parcel of property.
| I

pr———




Agenda Packet Page 151 of 238
i MuNiciPAL WATER DISTRICT
’ Committed to Excellence

April 13, 2016

Ms. Felicia Marcus, Chair, and

Honorable Members of the State Water Resources Control Board
c/o Jeaning Townsend, Clerk of the Board

1001 “I” Street, 24™ Floor

Sacramento, CA 95814

Subject: Comment Letter — Urban Water Conservation Workshop 4/20/16
Dear Ms. Marcus and Honorable Members of the State Water Resources Control Board:

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Rainbow Municipal Water District, we thank you for
the opportunity to comment on possible revisions to the Extended Regulations for Urban
Water Conservation. It has been a challenging year for all water purveyors in California —
some due to drought and some due to new regulatory regimes that contradicted decades old
planning for drought periods. Working together in regional cooperation, the water agencies
of San Diego County have invested billions of dollars over the last few decades to prepare
ourselves for water supply conditions just like the ones we experienced in water years 2011
to 2014. As aresult, even though there have been several years of exceptionally poor
hydrological conditions, San Diego County had full supplies for all of our users. Once the
State issued mandatory cutbacks, we were challenged to find places to store all the extra
water that was made available as a result.

Based on the reality that water agencies across the State have very different supply
conditions, we urge the SWRCB to end the “one size fits all” statewide mandates to
conservation. Through the process of developing our Urban Water Management Plans (and
in our case an Agricultural Water Management Plan as well), we have accurate forecasts for
both supply and demand. As aregion, we have detailed conservation mechanisms that will
ensure that supplies will always meet demands. These mechanisms include regional
enforcement policies to ensure that member agencies meet their conservation targets.

We recommend that the SWRCB implement a supply based approach rather than a
conservation mandate approach. In such a program, individual agencies, or regional groups
of agencies would certify that the supply conditions for that agency or region are adequate to
meet demands. In areas where supply could be an issue, the agency or region would develop
regionally specific conservation mandates in order to balance supply and demand.
Certification of supplies would require agencies or regions to demonstrate that they have
supply reserves adequate to meet future droughts. Further, agencies or regions adopting this

3707 Old Highway 395 - Fallbrook, CA 92028
(760) 728-1178 « Fax (760) 728-2575 « www.rainbowmwd.com



Agenda Packet Page 152 of 238

SWRCB
April 13, 2016
Page 2

approach would need to have clearly defined demand management plans in place in order to
effectively reduce demand should it be necessary.

As it turns out, the member agencies of the San Diego County Water Authority have practiced
this exact form of water supply and demand management for many years and were in the
process of ramping up our regional water conservation standards when the Emergency
Regulations went into effect last year. With our long term conservation efforts having
reduced our water consumption while our population nearly doubled, the San Diego region is
a model of how water agencies should plan and prepare for water shortages.

We urge the SWRCB to adopt a reasonable, regional process of balancing supply and demand
rather than a statewide conservation mandate.

Thank you again for the opportunity to provide input on this important topic.

Sincerely,

RAIBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Tom Kenngdy
General Manager

cc: RMWD Board of Directors
RMWD General Counsel



MuniciPAL WATER DISTRICT

AINBOW
7

Committed to Excellence

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

Agenda Packet Page 153 of 238

BOARD INFORMATION

SUBJECT

Construction & Maintenance Report

DESCRIPTION

Activities for Construction & Maintenance Division

Occurrences for March: 22

Total for 2015-2016 fiscal YTD: 138

Main Line 7 Main Line 37
Air/Vac 2 Air/Vac 20
Blow-Off 1 Blow-Off 3
Wharfhead 0 Wharfhead 6
Valve 4 Valve 18
Fire Hydrant 2 Fire Hydrant 9
Meter Lateral 6 Meter Lateral 43
Damage Done by Individuals 0 Damage Done by Individuals 2
A. The locations of failures are as follows:
Main Line Repairs
Date
Job # Reported GPM Status Location Cause
Wear out
4268 2/6/16 500 Completed Fire Road 12” CMLC
Wear out
4275 2/9/16 3 Completed Los Alisos Drive 8” CMLC
Joint
4276 3/9/16 1 Completed Flowerwood Lane 8” Ductile
Control Valve Maintenance
Date
Job # Reported GPM Status Location Cause
Leaks through
21093 3/2/16 N/A Completed Esterlina Station (2) 8” Gate — (2) 4” Gate
Ops-C&M Page 1 of 4




Agenda Packet Page 154 of 238

SDCWA Shutdown
Date
Job # Reported GPM Status Location Cause
3/20 - Moosa Pump
18091 3/26/16 N/A Completed Station Routine Maintenance
Air Vac Repairs
Date
Job # Reported | GPM Status Location Cause
Update to standards
26387 3/2/16 N/A Completed Live Oak Park 1” Galvanized
New installation
26388 3/9/16 N/A Completed Fire Road 2" Brass
Update to standards
26389 3/24/16 N/A Completed Camino Alisos 1” Brass
Blow Off Repairs
Date
Job # Reported | GPM Status Location Cause
Wear out
27125 3/26/16 4 In progress Oak Cliff Drive 2” Brass
Wharfhead Repairs
Date
Job # Reported | GPM Status Location Cause
Completed as of Wear out
28137 3/28/16 N/A 4/1/16 Arroyo Pacifico 2" Brass
Meter Lateral Repairs
Date
Job # Reported | GPM Status Location Cause
Update to standards
3227 3/1/16 N/A Completed Crest Heights 1” Copper
Maintenance
3215 3/2/16 N/A Completed Via Inca 1" Copper
Wear out
3228 3/21/16 2 Completed Mt. Olympus 1” Copper
Wear out
3229 3/28/16 N/A Completed Pala Mesa Oaks 1" Copper
Meter Lateral Replacements
Date
Job # Reported | GPM Status Location Cause
Pol
2525 2/6/16 A Completed Fire Road 2’ Pgly
Valve Repairs
Date
Job # Reported | GPM Status Location Cause
Off-Track
5084 2/25/16 N/A In progress Spa Haven 6” Plug
Ops-C&M Page 2 of 4




Valve Repairs (Cont’d.

Agenda Packet Page 155 of 238

Date

Job# | Reported | GPM Status Location Cause
Maintenance
5085 3/9/16 N/A Completed Flowerwood Lane 8" Plug
Valve Replacements
Date
Job # Reported | GPM Status Location Cause
New installation
16133 3/9/16 N/A Completed Fire Road 12" Gate
Leaks through
16134 3/9/16 N/A Completed Fire Road 6" Gate
Leaks through
16135 3/23/16 N/A In progress Via Mariposa 6" Gate
Fire Hydrant Repairs
Date
Job # Reported | GPM Status Location Cause
Update to standards
8599 2/5/16 N/A Completed Spa Haven 6" CMLC
Wear out
8601 3/1/16 N/A Completed Via Monserate 6" CMLC
Wear out
8602 3/9/16 N/A Completed Triple Crown 6” CMLC
Maintenance
8603 3/17/16 N/A Completed Fire Road 6" CMLC
Damage Done by Individual
Date
Job# | Reported | GPM Status Location Cause
Hit by car
8586 5/14/15 2,070 On hold Reche Road 6" CMLC
B. After-Hours Standby Calls
Ops-C&M Page 3 of 4




Agenda Packet Page 156 of 238

Total Standby calls for March: 49 Total Standby calls for fiscal year-to-date: 443
Checked for Leaks 11 Checked for Leaks 84
Meter Leak Repairs 1 Meter Leak Repairs 32
Turned Water Off (Locked Meter) 0 Turned Water Off (Locked Meter) 14
Turned Water On (Unlock Meter) 8 Turned Water On (Unlock Meter) 57
Complaints of No Water 11 Complaints of No Water 47
High Pressure 4 High Pressure 53
Low Pressure 2 Low Pressure 11
Alarms at RMWD 1 Alarms at RMWD 13
Wastewater Calls 0 Wastewater Calls 1
Water Quality Calls 2 Water Quality Calls 15
Backflow Calls 2 Backflow Calls 25
Customer Leak Calls 3 Customer Leak Calls 45
Emergency Locates 0 Emergency Locates 3
Miscellaneous Calls 4 Miscellaneo 43

JohpAMaccarrone 4/26/16

uction & Maintenance Superintendent

A AP L

Darren Milner 4/26/16
Operations Manager

Ops-C&M Page 4 of 4



Agenda Packet Page 157 of 238

AINBOW

MunNiciPAL WATER DISTRICT
Committed to Excellence

14

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
April 26, 2016

BOARD INFORMATION

SUBJECT
Valve Maintenance Report

DESCRIPTION
Activities for Valve Maintenance Division

A. Total valves operated in March: 255 Total valves operated fiscal YTD: 2,856

DISTRIBUTION VALVES
Gate 10” & smaller 40 Gate 10” & smaller 464
Plug 10" & smaller 15 Plug 10” & smaller 213
Butterfly 10" & smaller 2 Butterfly 10” & smaller 4
Total Small: 57 Total Small: | 681
Gate 12" & larger 20 Gate 12" & larger 102
Plug 12” & larger 10 Plug 12" & larger 89
Butterfly 12" & larger 8 Butterfly 12” & larger 30
Total Large: | 38 Total Large: | 221
Total Dist. Valves: 95 Total FY Dist. Valves: 902
OTHER VALVES
Air Vacs — 17, 2", 4” 56 Air Vacs - 1", 2", 4" 702
Blow Offs — 2" 19 Blow Offs — 2" 335
Fire Hydrants — 6” 50 Hydrants & Hydrant Valves — 658
Wharfheads — 2" 35 Wharfheads — 2” 259
Total Other Valves: | 160 Total FY Other Valves: | 1,954
BROKEN VALVES
B. Total broken valves in March:6 Total broken valves for fiscal YTD: 53
2” and Under | Repaired 0 2" and Under Repaired 0
Replaced 2 Replaced 14
Discovered 0 Discovered 3
4" and Over Repaired 1 4” and Over Repaired 4
Replaced 3 Replaced 9
Discovered 0 Discovered 23

Ops-ValveMaintenance

Page 1 of 3




Agenda Packet Page 158 of 238

UNABLE TO LOCATE

C. Total UTL valves in March: 0

Total UTL valves for fiscal YTD: 5

Checked 0 Checked 0
Found / Operated 0 Found / Operated 1
Removed from Map Book 0 Removed from Map Book 4
D. Other maintenance:
March: 2015-2016 fiscal YTD:
Air Vacs 177 2 Air Vacs 171 12
Replaced 221 0 Replaced 27| 3
41 0 41 0
Air Vacs Serv. Stops Installed | 0 Air Vacs Serv. Stops Replaced | 0
Repaired | 0 Repaired | 0
Painted | 6 Painted | 26
Hydrants Repaired | 0 Hydrants Repaired | 0
Replaced | 0 Replaced | 5
Painted | 0 Painted | 7
Wharfheads Repaired | 0 Wharfheads Repaired | 2
Painted | 0 Painted | 3
Pressure Adjusted | 0 Pressure Adjusted | 3
Station Valves Rebuilt | 2 Station Valves Rebuilt | 15
Replaced | 0 Replaced | 0
Painted | 0 Painted | 0
E. Miscellaneous
March: 2015-2016 fiscal YTD:
Shutdowns 5 Shutdowns 43
New Valves 1 New Valves 32
Abandoned Valves 0 Abandoned Valves 0
Underground Service Alert Locates 0 AJnderground Service Alert Locates 699

Ops-ValveMaintenance

n Maccarrone 4/26/16
Construction & Maintenance Superintendent
Darren Miiner 4/26/16

Operations Manager

Page 2 of 3




Agenda Packet Page 159 of 238

MAINTENANCE PLAN 2015-2016

2015
Other
Planned Not Shut | System | Work, | Map

Month Operation | Operated | Operable | PRV | Downs | Repair | Yard Book
Average 303.1 339.4 | - [ | e | e | e | e
January 304 304 30 5 4 0 Yes Yes
February 304 381 45 0 3 0 Yes Yes
March 304 343 20 1 3 4 Yes No
April 304 340 23 1 3 0 Yes No
May 304 393 11 2 3 8 Yes No
June 304 382 4 3 2 4 Yes No
July 304 417 25 1 2 3 Yes No
August 304 317 46 2 3 10 Yes No
September 304 338 30 3 2 4 Yes No
October 304 429 15 1 3 4 Yes No
November 304 198 22 1 8 6 Yes No
December 304 231 32 0 13 4 Yes No
Totals 2015 3,648 4,073 303 20 49 47 e e

2016
Other
Planned Not Shut | System | Work, Map

Month Operation | Operated | Operable | PRV | Downs | Repair | Yard Book
January 304 413 35 1 3 10 Yes Yes
February 304 242 16 3 4 9 Yes Yes
March 304 255 17 2 5 7 Yes Yes
April 303
May 303
June 303
July 303
August 303
September 303
October 303
November 303
December 303
Totals 2016 3,639 910 68 6 12 26 -——-- -——--

Total Valves in System: 7,287

Valves Operated to Date: 4,983
Valves Inoperable: 371

Ops-ValveMaintenance Page 3 of 3



Agenda Packet Page 160 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 161 of 238

MuniCiPAL WATER DISTRICT

Committed to Excellence BOARD I N FO RMATI O N

AINBOW
(7,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

SUBJECT

Garage / Shop Report

DESCRIPTION

Activities for Garage/Shop Division — March 2016

A. Maintenance/Service: 37 2015-2016 Fiscal YTD: 324
Vehicles 21 Vehicles 223
Small Equipment 13 Small Equipment 41
Large Equipment 3 Large Equipment 60
B. Emergencies: 5 2015-2016 Fiscal YTD: 46
Vehicles 3 Vehicles 22
Equipment 2 Equipment 24

Joherfficcarrone 4/26/16
ﬁ ruction & Maintenance Superintendent

Darren Milner 4/26/16
Operations Manager

Ops-Garage



Agenda Packet Page 162 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 163 of 238

MuniciPAL WATER DISTRICT

Compmitted to Excellence B O ARD I N F O RM AT I O N

AINBOW
7

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
April 26, 2016

SUBJECT

Water Operations Report

DESCRIPTION
Activities for Water Operations Division
A. March: 2015-2016 Fiscal YTD:
Tanks/Reservoirs Maint. / Weeds | 1 Tan Maint. / Weeds | 23
Inspected | 13 .s/Reservoirs Inspected | 106
Painted (Contractor) | 0 Painted (Contractor) 7
Repairs (Contractor) | 1 Repairs (Contractor) 6
Repairs (RMWD) | 0 Repairs (RMWD) 4
Residuals | 336 Residuals | 3,269
Reservoir Covers Repaired | 0 Reservoir Covers Repaired 2
Inspected | 3 Inspected | 27
Washed/Cleaned | 0 Washed/Cleaned 3
Pump Stations Maint. / Weeds | 196 Pump Stations Maint. / Weeds | 1,915
Painted | 0 Painted 0
Repaired | 2 Repaired | 22
Chlorine Stations Maint. / Weeds | 112 Chlorine Stations Maint. / Weeds | 1,092
Painted | 0 Painted 0
Repaired | 3 Repaired | 20
Back-up Tested | 16 Back-up Tested | 158
Generators Maintenance | 0 Generators Maintenance 4
Connection Reads 32 Connection Reads 312
Morro PRVs 84 Morro PRVs 819
Flow Changes SDCWA | 80 Flow Changes SDCWA | 730
Patrol Calls 16 Patrol Calls 121
Marc Walker 4/26/16

Water Operations Superintendent

LA

Darren Milner 4/26/16
Operations Manager

Ops-Water



Agenda Packet Page 164 of 238



MuniciPAL WATER DISTRICT
Committed to Excelience

AINBOW
7

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
April 22, 2016

Agenda Packet Page 165 of 238

BOARD INFORMATION

SUBJECT

Electrical / Telemetry Report — March 2016

DESCRIPTION

Activities for Electrical & Telemetry

A. Electrical: 2015-2016 Fiscal YTD:

Maintenance Reservoirs & Tanks 0 Maintenance Reservoirs & Tanks 1
Pump Stations | 5 Pump Stations | 18
Lift Stations 1 Lift Stations | 18

CL2 Stations 0 CL2 Stations 2
District Offices 2 District Offices | 18

Repairs Reservoirs & Tanks | 0 Repairs Reservoirs & Tanks 0
Pump Stations 1 Pump Stations | 11

Lift Stations 1 Lift Stations 4

CL2 Stations 1 CL2 Stations 4

District Offices 1 District Offices 4

B. Telemetry: 2015-2016 Fiscal YTD:

Maintenance SDCWA Connection 1 Maintenance SDCWA Connection 1
Tanks 3 Tanks 3

Pump Stations | 0 Pump Stations | 0

Lift Stations (1] Lift Stations 7

CL2 Stations 0 CL2 Stations 0
District Offices 5 District Offices | 39

Repairs SDCWA Connection | 0 Repairs SDCWA Connection | 0
Tanks 1 Tanks 5

Pump Stations | 0 Pump Stations 0

Lift Stations 0 Lift Stations 3

CL2 Stations 0 CL2 Stations 2

District Offices 0 District Offices 0

Ops-Elec&Telemetry

Page 1 of 2




C. Special Projects:

Agenda Packet Page 166 of 238

DATE LOCATION DESCRIPTION
3/8/16 District Shop Maintenance on Shop antenna wire
3/9/16 Sumac Antenna New SCADA project; remove fallen tree
3/7 & 3/10/16 Huntley Pump Station | Maintenance: new light fixtures
3/11/16 “ “ “ Replace/repair wiring; damaged by theft
3/16/16 Various Areas Class given by Rain for Rent on shutdown pumps
3/21/16 Lift Station #3 Class given by Rain for Rent on new trash pump
3/22/16 All Lift Stations I/R survey on motor control centers
3/23/16 Building 1 Install new phone extension
3/28/16 Connection #9 Connection #9 project

Ops-Elec&Telemetry

e 2t

Marc Walker

4/26/16
Water Operations Superintendent
“Darren Milner 4/26/16

Operations Manager

Page 2 of 2



AINBOW

MuniciPAL WATER DISTRICT
Committed to Excellence

14

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
April 26, 2016

Agenda Packet Page 167 of 238

BOARD INFORMATION

SUBJECT

Wastewater Report
DESCRIPTION

Activities for Wastewater Division

A. March 2016:

2015-2016 fiscal YTD:

Lift Stations Maintenance 48 Lift Stations Maintenance 372
Pump/Dry Well Repairs 10 Dry Well Repairs 65
Wet Well Repairs 0 Wet Well Repairs 6
Elect. Controls 6 Elect. Controls 46
Generator Maint. 1 Generator Maint. 5
Load Test 1 Load Test 6
Samples 2 Samples 14
Cleaning & Line Cleaning | 21,509 ft. Cleaning & Line Cleaning | 59,319 ft.
Maintenance CCTV Inspection 0 Maintenance CCTV Inspection | 3,169 ft.
Easement Cleaning 1 Easement Cleaning 18
Customer Calls 1 Customer Calls 26
Wet Wells General Cleaning 15 Wet Wells General Cleaning 115
High High
Frequency Cleaning Areas | 2,551 ft Frequency Cleaning Areas | 22,116 ft.
Collection Sewer Line Repairs 0 Collection Sewer Line Repairs 0
Manholes Raised 0 Manholes Raised - 33
Inspections 116 Inspections 419
Repairs 1 Repairs 26
Clean Roots 1 Clean Roots 8
B. After-Hours Stand-by Calls:

Total Standby calls for March: 12 Total Standby calls 2015-2016 fiscal YTD: 120
Private Sewer Spills 0 Private Sewer Spills 1
RMWD Spills 0 RMWD Spills 0
Telemetry Alarms 0 Telemetry Alarms 23
Lift Station Alarms 0 Lift Station Alarms 11
High or Low Level Alarms 8 High or Low Level Alarms 55
SmartCover Manhole Alarms 4 SmartCover Manhole Alarms 18
Customer Calls 0 Customer Calls 12
Miscellaneous 0 Miscellaneous 0

C. Wastewater Training
e Rain for Rent: 6” sewage trash pump start-up & shutdown procedures and operational review
e RMWD / North County Fire: Beck Reservoir Confined Spac
Ramon Zuniga 7 4/26/16
Wastewater Superintendent
Darren Milner 4/26/16

Ops-Wastewater

Operations Manager




Agenda Packet Page 168 of 238



AINBOW

MuniciPAL WATER DiSTRICT
Committed to Excellence

7,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

Agenda Packet Page 169 of 238

BOARD INFORMATION

SUBJECT

Water Quality Report

DESCRIPTION

Activities for Water Quality Division — March 2016

A. Samples: 2015-2016 Fiscal YTD:
Inlet/Outlet - MPN / HPC Inlet/Outlet - MPN / HPC
Beck General Physicals | Beck is Beck General Physicals Beck is
Fluoride offline Fluoride offline
Open MPN / HPC Open MPN / HPC
Reservoir - General Physicals Reservoir - General Physicals
Beck Fluoride Beck is Beck Fluoride Beck is
Nitrification Testing offline Nitrification Testing offline
Dosing Copper Sulfate 0 Dosing Copper Sulfate 0
Sodium Hypochlorite 0 Sodium Hypochlorite 0
Tanks / Nitrification Testing 15 Tanks / Nitrification Testing 282
Covered Fluoride 0 Covered Fluoride 0
Reservoirs Specials 0 Reservoirs Specials 6
Morro Morro
Reservoir Ammonia / Reservoir Ammonia /
Zone Nitrification 0 Zone Nitrification 0
Routines 22 Routines 181
THM / HAA5 0 THM / HAAS 8
Specials 3 Specials 28
B. Water Quality: 2015-2016 Fiscal YTD:
Dead End Dead End
Flushing 0 Flushing 0
Calls Customer 3 Calls Customer 20
RMWD 0 . RMWD 0
Joseph Perreira 4/26/16
Water Quality Technician
Darren Milner 4/26/16

Ops-WQ

Operations Manager




Agenda Packet Page 170 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 171 of 238

MuniciPAL WATER DISTRICT
Committed to Excellence

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
April 26, 2016

BOARD INFORMATION

SUBJECT

Cross Connection Control Program — March 2016

DESCRIPTION

Activities for Cross Connection Control:

A. Currently, there are 4,950 backflow devices recorded in the system.

B. In March, the following was performed: 2015-2016 fiscal YTD:
Installation 15t Notices sent 0 Installation 1%t Notices sent 1
Installation 2" Notices sent 0 Installation 2™ Notices sent 0
Installation 3 Notices sent 0 Installation 3™ Notices sent 0
Customer complaints 0 Customer complaints 0
Services locked due to Services locked due to
noncompliance 0 noncompliance 0
New devices installed, inspected 7 New devices installed, inspected 20
Annual test notices sent 1,695 Annual test notices sent 4,143
Annual devices tested 0 Annual devices tested 3,647
Device failures & repairs 20 Device failures & repairs 195
Replaced devices 0 Replaced devices 8
Correction inspections 0 Correction inspections 0
Property inspections 1 Property inspections 1

C. Construction Meters - Backflow Tests: 0

D. Hangers for Blocked Access: 0

1

JosepH Pefreira 4/26/16
Water Quality Technician

L. DA

Darren Milner 4/26/16
Operations Manager

Ops-CrossConnection



Agenda Packet Page 172 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 173 of 238

MuNiciPAL WATER DISTRICT

AINBOW
7

Committed to Excellence BOARD IN FO RMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

SUBJECT

Engineering Report for March 2016

DESCRIPTION

CAPITAL PROJECTS:

Afton Farms Water Line Ext. (201449): Contractor completed the installation of the 8” pipeline. The
pipeline is currently in service and was online for the March 2016 SDCWA Shutdown. Staff
processing final contract requirements prior to issuing the notice of completion.

Gird to Monserate Hill (201045). Psomas is working on the preliminary design report. Staff is
working on pipeline alignment with property owners and alternatives to rehabilitate the existing
pipeline.

Horse Creek Lift Station (200555): Developer is working on obtaining the permit from Army Corps of
Engineers.

Highway 76 East Segment (201260):  Contractor has installed 7,610 feet of 18" sewerline out of
10,300 feet. All of the four casings have been installed.

Lift Station 1 (201040): Staff is working on location regarding the site for the lift station before the
siphon.

Water and Wastewater Asset Cost and Capacity Fee Study (201663): Board approved project award
to Willdan. Staff working on preparing the professional service agreement.

Water Reclamation Plant & Recycled Water Distribution System (201672): Staff met with Oceanside.
Dudek working on the preliminary design report.

Wastewater Outfall Replacement (201266): Project on hold until further evaluation from the Master
Plan and the WRP study.

OTHER PROJECTS:

Moosa Creek Mitigation Bank (201459): Staff working with Consultant on easements.

San Luis Rey Ground Water Sources (201446): Report finalized and being reviewed by staff and
consultant.



Agenda Packet Page 174 of 238

Valley Center Regional Infrastructure Coordination: Report finalized and submitted to Valley Center.

Water and Wastewater Master Plans (201337W/201571WW): Final report was submitted. Staff and
engineering reviewing the report.

DEVELOPER PROJECTS:

Golf Green Estates (90100): (near Lift Station 1): 94 SFR planned across from Bonsall Elementary
School. Offsite plans are approved and preconstruction meeting is scheduled on April 12, 2016.

Heling Hill Run (00000): 5 Lot Subdivision with 260 foot waterline extension. Plan check one
complete.

Horse Ranch Creek Ridge (D.R. Horton - formally Campus Park, Passerelle) (90096): 850 WMs / 850
EDUs — Off of Highway 76 and Horse Ranch Creek Road. Plan check for units 1-4, wastewater, and
water complete. Caltrans approved construction of forcemain and waterline in Highway 76. Project is
under review with the Army Corps of Engineers and Pala Indians.

Malabar Ranch (90061): 31 WMs / 29 EDUs — There are 17 out of 31 homes built. Contractor shall
complete waterline relocation and punch list items.

Nessy Burger (00000): Nessy Burger’s is proposing to install a permanent building. Plan check one
completed.

Olive Hill Estates (90066): 37 WMs / 59.2 EDUs — Contractor is working on completing above ground
appurtenances. Staff is installing meters.

Pala Mesa Highlands (90056): 124 Lots on Old Highway 395. Plan check three completed.

OTHER:
ITEMS NO# ITEMS NO#
Water Availability Letters 0 Water Meters Purchased 5
Sewer Availability Letters 0 Sewer EDUs Purchased 0
Water Commitment Letters 1 Scheduled/Emergency Shutdowns 1
Sewer Commitment Letters 0 Jobs Closed (Dai Dang) 1

Ugo Yt

Shefry Kirkbatrick 4/26/16
Engineering Manager




Agenda Packet Page 175 of 238

MunicipAL WATER DISTRICT

Committed to Excellence BOARD | N FOR MAT ION

AINBOW
7

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

SUBJECT

Field Customer Service Report — April, 2016

DESCRIPTION

Activities for Customer Services Section:

A. Customer service calls responded to: 185 2015-2016 fiscal YTD: 1,884

Read for Transfer 64 Read for Transfer 535
Locked Service 14 Locked Service 209
Unlocked Service 26 Unlocked Service 176
Checked for High Pressure 12 Checked for High Pressure 100
Checked for Low Pressure 9 Checked for Low Pressure 52
Reports of No Water 5 Report of No Water 31

Delivered 48-Hour Notices 54 Delivered 48-Hour Notices 717
Waste - Drought 1 Waste - Drought 64

Kenny Dl@ 3/22/16

Meter Services — Crew Leader

\//\/{MJ—

Vanessa Martinez 3/22/16
Finance Manager

Finance-CustomerService



Agenda Packet Page 176 of 238



14

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 26, 2016

AINBOW

MuniciPAL WATER DISTRICT

Committed to Excellence

Agenda Packet Page 177 of 238

BOARD INFORMATION

SUBJECT

Meters Report — March, 2016

DESCRIPTION

Activities for Meter Services Section:

A. Meter Replacement:

2015-2016 fiscal YTD:

Stuck / Itron New ltron Stuck / Itron New ltron
Damage Repairs Installations Damage Repairs Installations
5/8" 0 5/8" 0 5/8" 0 5/8” 0 5/8" 0 5/8" 0
3/4” 39 3/4" 1 3/4" 0 3/4” 109 3/4” 20 3/4” 0
1" 24 1" 5 1" 0 1" 119 1" 40 1" 0
112 | 0 112" | 0 11/2" 0 11/2 9 11/2" 4 11/27 | 0
2" 5 2" 0 2" 0 2" 21 2" 6 2" 0
3 0 3’ 0 3" 0 3’ 1 3" 0 3" 0
4" 0 4" 0 4" 0 4" 0 4" 0 4" 0
6" 0 6" 0 6" 0 6" 0 6" 0 6" 0
TOTAL: 9 5 0 200 69 0
B. Meter service calls responded to: 425 2015-2016 fiscal YTD: 4,286
Meter Leaks Reported 17 Meter Leaks Reported 237
Checked Meter Reads 302 Checked Meter Reads 3,616
Replaced Meter Heads 5 Replaced Meter Heads 52
Troubleshoot Meters 101 Troubleshoot Meters 381
Kenny Dlaz/ 4/26/16
Meter Services — Crew Leader
Vanessa Martinez 4/26/16

Finance-Meters

Finance Manager



Agenda Packet Page 178 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 179 of 238

MuniciPAL WATER DISTRICT

AINBOW
7

Committed to Excellence BO ARD INFORMATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
April 26, 2016
SUBJECT

Safety Report — March 2016

DESCRIPTION

Safety and Regulatory Update

A. Safety Training
e Confined Space Entry Class — 22 Employees

B. Tailgate Safety Meetings
e Backhoe Safety
e SCADA Training
e Emergency Preparedness
e Confined Space

C. Target Safety Online Training
e Advanced Construction Safety Mod 1
e Advanced Construction Safety Mod 2
e Water Industry Hydraulics
e Water Industry Disinfection Basics

$G

Jeff Staty 4/26/16
Safety Administrator
Darren Milner 4/26/16

Operations Manager

Ops-Safety



Agenda Packet Page 180 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 181 of 238

MunNICiPAL WATER DISTRICT

Committed to Excellence I N F O R M AT | O N

AINBOW
I4

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 7, 2016

SUBJECT

Changes in Personnel and Reporting

DESCRIPTION

Darren Milner joined the District’'s team effective March 28, 2016 as the new Operations Manager.

Rene Bush retired from the District effective April 2, 2016.

POLICY

N/A

FISCAL IMPACTS

N/A . .

\\q
“Jenn'\Wise 04/07/16

H Resouries TechLician



Agenda Packet Page 182 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 183 of 238

ROINZTO
wwned (1onuD) sapeys

D pe

S0K021HL
HuERyoe) AnenD smem | umRNy30) AN NS !

e

nLzl
Aopug p3
H UTIOUID] SOAIRINEINHINT

T T 050170
1060120 SOGLTE
wesy (Auer] TopurLIsy Ssar
wsereindg waisks msoyeindg waishs
saryiion YoisiioL
AsureH suud Kojio3 sruis ezl
il soyrisdg waiths  soitiedo washs
26181130 SOE0TO
eBpunz uowrey saEp e
wapusupedng Jojemaisem wapusiupadng suoprsdn JaiEm WBPUBULSING BIURUSKATH AIOHINASUED

S1IB0/0
osawo ) SO

a3jseg JeW0ISND

e

#opIsg sswioisnD ‘I

SLEOE0
orqny (osusylensg
1135m38ds Bununoasy

| soensiwpy Ajejeg

it

oLLm0
uesnyey Awwe]
1 1syeioads Bugunoday.

anozmzien
Jouy vaueg
saBeury suonesrdo

Sirzons Y0/L080

. |

saBruew jesausg

LYVHD TVNOILVZINVDYO
LOTYLSIA ALV TVAIDINNIN MOINIVY

OLOZILIY PRUPON 1587

VLOZ/L LR YeQ vonearD



Agenda Packet Page 184 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 185 of 238

£0/60/%0
Maysaq .ol
11 JUE}SISSY SAREHSIUILPY

S0/82/11
olgny eljsqg
11 ueidiuysa ) Buasuibugy

86/62/c)

IIIH PlreQg
| 1030adsu| Bupieauibug

SLvLicL
pesjswi|Q uepiop
Jojesysjuiwpy i

80/22/L0 L0/91/L0
13Y9S|ooH SuYyo JojAe] wajo
Il 4o AHnn 11 13310MA K38
80/£0/€0 L0/€1/80
19|pueyg upsnp a)eA SHYD
1 1310/ Ainn 1 4940/ AN
80/21/€0
zeiq Auuay
S92IAIDG ID)I\ - J9pea] mal)

§1/60/60

048UJ0] J0)9IA
| 9AREeIUaSaIdaYy 9I1AIBS JOWI0)SND

L0/€0/S0
s|oyoa3 malpuy
] UeIDIUYDD ] dsnoyalepy/Buiseyoind

juedRA
| 8AnRUasaiday 83IAIS 19WO0ISNY

51/60/60
oiqny (sauay) eleg
1 3sijeidadg Bununoosay

juedeAp
J9auibug ajeloossy

SL/0E/LL
3SIp\ uuap
| UBIDIUYDD] SD9IINOSIY UBWINH

80/L0/¥0

plemalg elyjuAo
|| @AneIUSSAIdDY 9IIALBS JoWOISND

0L/0¢/80
uesnyey Awwej

1 3sijedadg Buiunosay

90/90/L1

Sl-€C-L1

youpedsry Ausyg
Jabeuepy Hulrasuibug

jueoep

Jabeuepy s821n0say uewny

ZBUIJIB\ BSS3UBA
Jabeuey asueuly

SL/20/LL
Aeig enyyuin
1sAjeuy aajjensjuiwpy

K1e}2129g pieogaue)sISSY aAINIAXT

¥0/L0/90
uinqysepn umeg

v1/82/80
Apauudy sewoy |
Jabeuey jeisuan

¢ 40 1 39vd

L¥VHO TTVNOILVZINVONO
1OMM1SIA ¥3.LVM TVdIDINNIAN MOENIVY

910¢/L/y PSUIPOWN iseT

¥10¢/1¢/8 8yeq uoneaid



Agenda Packet Page 186 of 238

80/82/20 51/62/90 cHoLZL
1sned (4onyg) sapeyd | sowey soped Buniyos ajhy -
14aom Auinn 1 Jp0M Aninn 1 490M Aminn
20/20/L0 51/22/90 00/0€/¥0
80/82/¥0 oujoue) opaeIID - ezobesez opieapy uosaun(s (sewoy ) sawef |
PueH sUud 143310/ Ajinn 1435u0M AN 1l 4340M AN
11 J5u0M Annn
90/0Z/1L 68/12/60 88/gLIZL s0/vorzk 90/€0/50 80/92/20
£0/LEIEO eajauag 300 aulID wew As|pesg p3 uosdwis 33008 o Asewaq upsne 21431 §O3S B
©23sU04 Uepg 11 ueIUYD L AlenD) Jajem | uBfOIUYD3 | SjuondalF/iealyasid | || 11 ueiouyosay swondal/eoLOalg 11 Jay0Mm Aninn U 3uom Aynn li1axi0m Aninn
11 4930M Ajinn I T
£0/b2ZIE0 LO/ZLIZ0 16/90/0%
80/Z24/90 10/60/L0 so/6LiZL asoy uelug JineN aukepy zado1 opueuny
zado uagny H yeayt (Auap) 3y R ZapueuwlaH snsar JJUBUAJUIEY IAJRA - JOPRITT MBID UOJJONASUOD - 1opea] MaID UOONIISUOY - J3PeaT ML)
11 Jp0M Anmn 111 J0jesadQ wivysAs il Jojetado waysAs | | |
Lo/zLico 66/vLI0L voigLiol €0/10/50
BAJSUIIA JOJOIA = Aaupay spyo mE Kayoo anals o)y |2g auay m
1l J2xom Aninn 11 JojesadQ wiaysAs Il JoyesadQ waysAs ojueyaap
26/81/190 50/£0/€0 0/50/0
ebjunz uowey J19)|ep) DIBHY auouedde| uyor
Juapuajupadng 13jemajsepy ¥ uadng suopesadQ Jajepm p dng 1eW/UOJIONIISUOD
| | |
80/82/V0
H Koeys gpor
110jexsjujwpy Ajages
91/82/€0
Jauy uaueq
1abeuey suopesado
SLZoiLE $0/,0/90
Keig epyuin =11 wnqysep umeq
3sfjeuy aanessiujwpy A1e}a1098 pIEOGAUE)S|SSY AIINDBXT
v1182/80
Apauuay sewoyy 910y PRYIPON ISET
Jabeuep jesauan

LYVHD TYNOLLVZINVOIO

¢ 40 TdHvd

LOMYLSIA ¥FLVM TVIDINMA MOENIVY

10T 17/ |jeq uojeald




Agenda Packet Page 187 of 238

MuNiCIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Committed to Excellence BOARD IN FO RMATI O N

AINBOW
(7

April 26, 2016

SUBJECT

Interim Financial report for February, 2016: The information is compiled and presented on an unaudited
basis. The budget amounts for Water Sales, Cost of Water Sold, and Property Tax Revenues are
spread to the individual months based on historical monthly averages. All other budget categories are
spread over twelve equal months. This report represents eight months of the fiscal year so we can
compare actuals versus budgeted figures.

DESCRIPTION

Explanation of significant variances within the Financial Statements:

Water Revenues the FYTD 2016 units sold is 19.0% less than the units of sale for the same period one
year ago and 65% than the budgeted units.

Cost of Water Sold varies similarly with the water sales. However, water purchases contain both variable
costs and fixed costs.

Pumping expenses consist mostly of electricity and natural gas costs. Cost is somewhat in line to what
was budgeted a little under by 16% for the year to date.

Water Operations includes all water quality testing and SCADA monitoring. Cost is under budget for the
year to date..

Valve Maintenance maintains and repairs the thousands of valves contained within the infrastructure.
Cost is 5% over budget for the year to date.

Water Distribution consists of the water administration and construction/maintenance crews. Costis
below budget for the year to date by 15%.

Meter Services performs all meter reading and customer onsite response and repair. Cost is close to
what has been budgeted for the year to date.

Garage Services performs maintenance and repair of the district fleet vehicles and pumps. Cost is under
budget for the year to date due.

General & Administration/Human Resources is over the budget for the year to date, but that is due to
recognition of paid insurances at beginning of year and not spread throughout year.

Legal Services include general counsel as well as litigation activities. Cost is close to bring at budget for
the year to date.

Safety & Security performs all training and education to maintain a safe work environment. This includes
the cost of maintaining security at all RMWD sites. Cost is under budget for the fiscal year.




Agenda Packet Page 188 of 238

Finance provides all general accounting, payroll, disbursements, cash management and purchasing
services. Cost is below budget for the year.

Customer Service provides all billing, collections and related customer services. Cost is under budget for
the fiscal year.

Sewer Collection is responsible for all wastewater collection and maintenance. Wastewater treatment
provided by the City of Oceanside is the primary cost factor. Cost is under budget for the fiscal year.

Engineering provides in house general engineering and inspection services. A portion of the
Engineering department labor transfers to capital projects. Cost is under budget for the fiscal year.

Property Taxes; the majority of apportionments are paid in December, April, and May.

Capacity Fees represent water and sewer meters that have been connected and placed into service.
The budget does not account for capacity fees. All capacity fees are transferred directly to the Water or
Sewer CIP Funds.

Other Income consists of late fees on customer accounts, rents and leases, plan check fees and FEMA
grant payments.

POLICY
No specific policy referenced.

BOARD OPTIONS/FISCAL IMPACTS

N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
None

VanessalMartinez April 26, 2016
Finance Manager




Agenda Packet Page 189 of 238

007001

007001

8¢

78'€6

€8ty

000
000
968
000
£E°8L
0095
000
18°0¢
000
(4524
£8'L6
w6'1e
0s°0v
0070
8¢°C9
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
IvL

JqE[IBAY %

ey

ey

LEY'96T

LEY'96T

SL6‘VOV'ST

(808°97)
(ogt‘on)
129°1%
(0s9)
0S€T
00891
0s0°1)
£9v°L9
(0og‘e)
1€L°€81
206°SLY
eHT6EY']
919'6£1°T
9L0°L1T
8TS°119°9
LI0TI
(L80°189°7)
086°s
(9¥€‘01D)
885°LI
(L6L°6T8T)
P6E° 1P1
(099°519°1)
LLY'TEL
9%9°0L0°01

dqe[ieAy

- (4484
- EY
- L£8°96T

- LEB'96T

- SL6YOP'S]

= (808927)

- (ogt‘or)

- 129°t¥

= (0s9)

- 0S€°T

2 00891

- (0s0°1)

- £9%°L9

= (00g‘e)

- 1€L°€81

- T06°SLY

= £PT6EY 1
. 9196£1°C
= 9L0°LIT

- 8TS 1199
- LIF'0TI

- (L80°189°7)
= 056°S

- (9¥€‘011)

- 886°LI

- (L6L°6T8°T)
- P6E°1P1

- (099°519°1)
4 LLY'TEL

- 9%9°0L0°01

JUNOWY PAIdQUINIUT 1A LA

80UB|[8oX5 0] PORIULIOD
1O1HLSIQ HILVYAA TTVIDINNA

MOSENIV

g9l jo | abed

- - 8TTVEY
- : 8TTVE Y

9pS°61 9561 00°€8€°91€
99561 9b5‘61 00°€8€°91€
0LE'SELG1 0LE'BEL'GL 61 vreerI‘se
808°9C 808°9C 000

0£9°81 0£9°81 000058
6169 6L6°9 00°009°8%
050°¢ 050°¢ 00°00+C

0s9 059 00°000°c
00Z‘¢1 00Z°€1 00°000°0€
0ss°1 0SS‘1 00°00$
€1S161 €IS IS1 00'9L6°81T
008°‘s 008°‘s 00°00§°'T
12€°THT 12ETHT $£'TS0'9TY
6L5°01 6L5°01 00°18+°98%
LO1°690°€ LO1°690°€ 85°05£°80S Y
P10“PP1E PI0PPI°E LT6T9°¢8T'S
(9L0°L12) (920°L12) 000
851°L86°C 8S1°L86°C 00'989°865°01
Liv'ozn) (Liy'ozn) 000
L80°189°C L80°189°C 000
(0s6°9) (0s6°s) 000

9pE‘011 9pE011 000
(885°L1) (885°L1) 000

L6L'6T8 L6L'6T81 00°0
(73 t2))] p6s“1¥1) 00°0
099°619°1 099°S19°1 000
(LLy'Ten) (LL¥'TED) 000
£20°5SP'E £20°SSHE 00'699°STS €1

junowy (LA  junowly podd junowry 333png

7

pun, J9Jep\-SONUIAY ISIIU]
HWOONI LSTYFLNI

WaI0[BA PV - ‘A Xe], Atadoig
HASNHIXHT LSTIILNI
‘S|EIOL QNS 01

ANUOASY AIAT[d( 99UON

siie( [[eISuj/sa[es 129N MIN
snoaue|[2astA-ou] Junerado
PAH ‘S92 J[eIsu] ou] SunesadQ
soadg puy sueld ouf SuneradQ
suonoadsuy ouf SuneiadQ

99,] Jana] Jayepy ouf Sunerado
safiey) gy ouf Superado
$93,] JO/uQO wng, ouj Superado
sadsey) Suidwng

14PI A9Y 9AI9G-0 ] -SSaUIPeYy
a51ey) §5200Y 2IMONNSELU]
saB1eyd N % O A[uoN
PalIIquM) 4/3Y IMES SI[ES Jajepm
wo/3y Imes-sa[e§ 12jepm
Pa[[iqu() 3V IMeg-S3[ES Jajep
SUBY [N IMeg sajes Jajep
11qQU-UO1ONNSUO))-SI[ES JaJep
UONINIISUO)-SIJES 1B
Pal[1qu() SIPUON Fy-sa[es 1ojepm
Junodsi(g uopN ‘Sy-safes Iajem

9D UoN wog-Jy-sajes 1arem
PI[1qU[]-O1SIWO(J-SIES ISJB
S1ISAUIO(]-SA[ES JABM
HNANIATY ¥dLVM

ANNA FFILVM

Wd ¥1:C1 - 910T/Ci/y
ZOUnIeWA

910T ‘'8 0¥ |

1026+-00-10

0syd

10€6¥-00-10
ovd

LI1E¥-00-10

911€4-00-10
PI1EY-00-10
[11¢%-00-10
OITEP-00-10
601¢£4-00-10
901€-00-10
$01€¥-00-10
101€4-00-10
0¥12H-00-10
0£1TH-00-10
1T1Z-00-10
0TITH-00-10
S611¥-00-10
06114-00-10
S811+-00-10
0811+-00-10
SLIT1¥-00-10
0L11¥-00-10
S911¥-00-10
0911%-00-10

0TI1¥-00-10
SII1¥-00-10
OLTT1#-00-10

ord

10 pung

pousd

‘pajuLg
.Jasn)

snjels 193png
hoaﬁod [elauan)

sjuawale)s jeloueUl WILIB)U|



Agenda Packet Page 190 of 238

000
000

000

00°0

16791

000

000
000
000
000
000
000
00°0
000

TLeT

000
000
[4: 234
se
Seee
000
00°0
ee
£eee
000
00°0
1882

3247

ST'89

PE0L
0070

JlqepeAY %

(00
(2]

(oseD)

(0se'D

$69°109°¢

(L96'8¥1'1)

(ssz‘190°'1)
(€€¥°0S)
(LLY)
(£50°92)
(6¥L°€)
S6%0)
(9v8°182)

199050°S

(8£6901°1)
(96z'cTl)
1€ 146
67C61T
¥08°10%
(LsT'TER)
T5S'Spl
LS8SLL
¥89°¢S

S99°SLI‘S

TSELYL'ST

8611

8SH'TH
(09z‘'1)

dqeieAy

- (02)
. (¥8)

- (ose‘D

% (ose‘D

= (859°sy1°Z1)

= #69°109°¢

- (L96'8t¥°1)

B (ssz190°1)
“ (gev'0s)

= (LL9)

= (€50°92)

= (6¥L€)

C: (rS6'v0)

- (9t8°182)

- 199°050°S

- (8£6'901°1)
- (96z'cTl)

- €116

C 6¥T°61T

- $08°10

. (LsT‘TE)

- 435321

. LS8'SLI

= $89°¢S

- S99°SLI‘S

- TSELYL'ST

- 861°17

= 8SH Ty
- 091

JUNOWY PIIIqUINIUY awA QLA

0t
78

0S€‘1

0S€°1

(09%'€80°7)

LI9'E69°LL

L96'8YF 1

SST190°1
£E4°0S
LLY
£50°9C
6¥L'E
$S6'vC
918°18C

0S9v¥T 9t

8€6°901°1
96C'€TI
LTO'LOT'1
161°€0¥
1608
(86€°€LL)
$66°68T
€TL1SE
#89°¢S)

TTH'98LTI

LLOLLL 61

29161

T06°L1
092°1

junowry LA

91 jo g abed

0t
8

0s€‘l

0SE‘T

(09¥°€80°7)
L19°€69°L1
L96°8¥H'1

SSTI90°1
£€4°0S
LLY
£50°9C
6bLE
¥S6vC
918°18C

0S9'P¥T91

8£6°901°1
96T°¢T1
LTO'LOT'
161°€0¥
Tr1°€08
(86£°€LL)
$66°68T
€TLISE
(¥89°¢S)

TTrosLTL
LLOLLL'61

29161

206°L1
09Z°1

JUNOWy PoLIdJ

000
000

000

000

9¢'811°62C Y1~
11°11€°s62°1T
000

000
0070
000
0070
000
000
000
000

11e's6c’1c

000

000
0S°L9E‘8P1°T
00°0¥¥°2C9
0S°S¥6'70T' 1
000
78159°09°1-
00°9¥S‘SEY
00°085°LTS
000

000
£6°980°T96°L1

LY 6Ty YTS SE
00°09€°09

00°09€°09
000

jyunowy 338png

AVOSId
SHASNHdXH YH # NOLLVILSININAY

sasuadxs JoquIajA pieog

SHSNHdXH HHAOTdNY #® TIOUAVd

:s[elo], qng 00 3dag
:s[ejo, qng asuadxqg

‘S[BI0], qn§ SO

1A Ln)-sasuadxg uoneaidaqg

dxg 3jO aun, pred 2akojdwig
L'L'd ‘suf juswkojdwoun aye1g

di0D) A19g BMOY SUJ UOISIA

uag Y)ESH BMOY SUJ [EDIPAA]

pun,] usp O, 13JSuel], PEAYIIAQ

adrey) Anpqerjay Addng
a31ey) afe10)§ Aouaiowyg
ad1ey) uoneatesay Ayoede)
331eyD 901Alag JouI0ISNY)
11pa1)) a3ei0)g§ [euoseag
ames-npa1) Iy

af1ey) s5900Y 21njonyselyu]
a31eyD aA1ag 0] Apeay
23e101g Uf Jojep
dmer1pa1) 3y

saseyoInd Jojepm

PIOS 12)ep JO 150D

dXH/ATE LAN AVAA LNTIAND

SNOAUE[[RISIA-ou] JadQ UON

599, 309y JSN-ouf 1odQ uoN
ANANIATY ¥49HLO

910T ‘8 01 1

105950210
ord

20795-0T-10

sod

001£5-00-10

L1S95-00-10
91595-00-10

§0595-00-10

£0595-00-10

9L1TS-00-10

£1005-00-10
100S-00-10
11005-00-10
01005-00-10
60005-00-10
80005-00-10
90005-00-10
$0005-00-10
£0005-00-10
20005-00-10
10005-00-10

104

08d

60161-00-10

016¥-00-10
0Ld

:pouad



Agenda Packet Page 191 of 238

919
0S°SL
PE'ET
£0°L9
yI'LT
8Tt
8T°9¢
6L°1T
6¥°6¢

SOty

Loy

P9’y
007001
L98L
66°0¢
se6l
14833

81°l¢

007001
6116
6Ty
1044
66°S9
eyl
IeL
6£°69
res
Pe19
1e°Ly
66'69
LS9y

0070

000

JqB[IBAY %

81¥'%9
133 4
9vs
£L6°S
00L°6T
LE8T
1L0Y1
908°6
LSO'LYT

¥06°61€

ThS 1S

120°61C
000°1
006°S
6ILE
06T
119°1C

79£°89

4L
1LET
€8
8SH°1
1246
86V
91

$99
819
09L
80S‘C
0s€
€186

(€' D)

(c0D)
JqeqeAy

junowry paIdquInduy

81449
£69'
9vs
£L6°S
00L°6C
LE8T
1L0%1
9086
LSO'LYT

¥06°61¢€

¥06'61€

TS 1sT

120°61¢
000°1
006°S
61L€
06T
11912

79€°89

17
1LET
€8
8SH°1
12’6
861

91

¥99
8L9°6
09L
80ST
0S¢
£18°6€

(gs¥'D)

(€sy°D)

(g01)
1BA ALA

$90°0%
$0S‘1
€6L°1
8€6°C
12L6L
¥ET9
8IL'YT
¥61°SE
¥8S°8LE

[S9x44

SS1'eTy

856°LSE

6L690€
009°1
18T°8
01Tl
688°6€

L61°S9

6CC
L1l
98L°1
958‘y
TL1
L0T
£6T
(434
6Ly
€6L°T
0S1
789t

£5H°1

€511

€01
junowy @LA

91 Jo ¢ abed

$90°0¥
¥0S‘1
€6L°1
8€6°C
1TL6L
¥E€T9
8ILWT
P61°SE
P8S‘8LE

SSI'eTy
SS1'eTy

856°LSE

6L6'90€
009°1
182°8
0121
688°6€

L61°69

67T
L1l
98L°1
958't
TLl
L0T
£6C
[434]
6Ly
€6L°T
0S1
T89S

€511
£SH°1

€01
junowy PoLdg

10°T8%701
9€9¢1°9
P8'8E€°T
PI'116°8
TEITY'601
6L°1L0°6
£L'68L'8E
00°000°S¥
9L'0¥9°579

1L°850°EvL
1L°8S0‘EbL

00°005°609

00°000°9TS
00°000°1
00°005°L
00°000°C1
00°00S‘1
0000819

1L'8SS €T

LTIPL
00°009°C
00°00T
89°€VT'E
SLLLTY]
L0LY
00'€CT
8£°956
00°011°81
89°6£T°1
TL'00E"S
00008
15°S6¥°68

000
000

00°0
junowy 3a8png

suf Anpiqesia L/1L/S ‘Yr1

BMOY SUJ UOISIA

aoueInsyj [ejusq

uag YieaH eMOY SUJ [EDIPIN

21BDIPaJA BOI 2lByS SJokojdwyg

1SS BO1q areys SJakojdwy

‘wreg swdwio)) ‘pred SWLAAQ
saue[eg Jengday

SASNIIXT FHAOTdNA % TIOUAVd

's[ejof, qng 1¢ 1de@
:s[ejo, qng asuadxg

‘S[eloL qns 013

KoL - SOWIBN

sjuua  A10jeinday
s201A12G 79 saijddng

sjyauag Juswifodwiy 1504 12410

quuo) 1akojdwyg-duio) pausjeq
*L'L'd ‘suf juawikojdwiaun) ajels
su] uonesuadwio) SI9NI0M

suf ANpiqesta 1/10/S v

BMOY SUJ UOISIA

goueInsu] [gIuag

uag YIedaH BMOY SUj [BIIPIAl

21821pajA] BOL] 21eyS Stokojduyg

1SS ®21] 21BYS SJakojdwyg

‘wieyg awmdwo)) ‘pred swIAQ

sauejes Ienday

SISNAdXH FHAOTINL % TIOUAVd

s[elo], qng g idoa
:s[ejo L qng asuadxyg

S[eIoL qng ovda

AIgan

910z '8 01 I

90595-T€-10
§0596-T¢-10
Y0595-2¢-10
£0595-C¢-10
20895-T¢-10
10595-2€-10
£0195-Te-10
10195-TE-10

sod

0008L-1€-10

0SITL-1¢E-10
000TL-1€-10

YC69s-1¢-10

0T69s-1¢-10
91595-1¢€-10
S1695-1¢-10

90595-1¢-10
S0S9S-1¢€-10
$0S95-1¢-10
£0595-1€-10
°0595-1€-10
10595-1¢-10
€0195-1¢-10
10196-1¢€-10

s0d

<0S95-0C-10

:pouaq



Agenda Packet Page 192 of 238

000

0L'ST
$8°0¢
L9798
000

T9°ss
9v'vL
000

16'%9
£9°9¢
$8'ST
88°0¢
000

09°1€

66'CTY

9

000
2091
000
69°9L
00001
000
18708
1£92
crsL
$€°96
(AR 72
10'v¢
11°L6

1T6¢

00°001

1'98

€6°L1

000

8L9

66'S1

016

000
JqB[IBAY %

(oTp's)
65T
918°¢
0b0°1

(soL)
L16°LT
€5€T

((AR))]
8€6°T
668°ST
9T1°1
¥SL'S

(92w
LL6'Y6

891°€T6

£56°8TS

906°1
(zs8)
L9L
000°s
(€z1)
£60°6C
S90PLI
6L8°TET
¥96
SE1'6€E
TL6'9
LYL'8E

919°6€

Yev's

865Vl

$98°1
ey 01)

96

LLTE

788°1
(€gL)
aqe[ieAy

JUNOWY PAIIQUINIUY

(0zTr's)
65¢C
91§°c
0¥0°1

(soL)
LI6°LT
£5E°T

@i
8¢6°T
668°ST
9Z1°1
¥SLS

(9zv)
LLEYE

891°€T6

891°€T6

£65°8TS

906°1
(zs8)
L9L
000°S
(g21)
£60°6C
S90'PLI
6L8'TET
¥96
SE1°6E
TL6'9
LPL'8E

919p6€

¥Tr's
85SYI
#98°1
(e o)
9%
LLTE
T85°1
(g€L)
IBA ALA

ozy's
6vL
988°L
091
SOL
1LT'ce
LO8
800°1
68S°1
y08vt
1€T°¢
8.8°C1
9Z6‘v
6¥5°50T

1SYYTTl

1SYYTet

LY9T19

¥66°6
TSET
314
€Tl
L0690
SESL8Y
1TI°LL
9¢
$99°¢1
8TSEl
€S1°1

08119

TwWe'e

9£5'8

6701

SIEL

9IT'LI

81v

£EL
junowy LA

9l jo p abed

0Tr's
6¥L
988°L
091
SOL

| Vrarad
L08
800°1
685°1
¥08‘¥t
1€T°E
8L8°CI
926y
6¥5°50T

1SY' 9T
ISY'veT’l

L¥9T19

¥66°6
T8ET
€T
€Tl
L06°9
SES L8Y
1TI°LL
9¢
$99°¢1
8Tsel
€S1°1

08119

(424
9€5°8
¥6v°01
SIET
91Z'L1
184

€eL
junowy pordg

00°0
008001
98" 10¥°11
00°00T°1
000
$L°L81°0S
90°091°¢
88°068
17925y
08'zoL'0L
T9LSEY
86°7€9°81
00°00S‘y
1¥°STS 00€E

16'619°L¥1°C
16'619°L¥1°C
00°00T° 1¥1°1

000
00700611
00°00S°1
000001
00°000°S
000
00°000°9¢
00°009°199
00°000°01¢€
00°000°!
00°008°CS
00°005°0T
00°006°6€

16'61¥°900°1

8Y'YTH'S
00700691
00°00¥°01

000

050141
86'76V°0C
00000

000

junowry 338png

111 ‘suf juawfojdwiaup) ayelg
suf uonesuaduio) §Ia3I0M
wiay] uonin ] /Bururel], akojdwyg
sAepijoH 9akodwg
s1ad[e)-juawaInay

sup Ajiqesia 1/1'L/S ‘Jr1
BMOY SUJ UOISIA

aoueINSU [BIUA

uag y)eaH emoy suf [edIpaA
21e31PaJA] BIL] 2JeyS Sakodwyg
1SS ed1] ateys Sakojdwyg

‘uzeg awinduto)) ‘pred swiAQ
saue|es Jenday

SASNAIXH dHAOTdNA ¥ TIOUAVd

sjejo], qng z¢ idag
:s[ejo, qng asuadxg

‘S[el0L qng 19

juowdinbyg [ende)

SN
Suiures] juo)/[aAel],
yuswdinby puy sjoog, jjews

syua{ A1ojeinday
9OUBUSUIBIA] JUB],
5301A19§ puy saijddng

jornU0)) 2dueuUUIRA Juswdinby
sireday/aoueusjutey juswdinbg
SO1U01}99]7

sijauag juswkojdwyg 1504 Y0

quuo) 1akodg-duio) paugjaq
Ked Aing

dxg JjO swiy, pred 2Kojdwg
“1'L'g ‘su] juswiKo[dwoun) ajelg
su] uonesuadwio) §,19%10M

wiay uonmn]Burures ], sakojdwyg
sAepijoH 2aKojdwig
siad[e)-juawainey

910 ‘8 01 [

91696-€£-10
S1696-€€-10
CIS95-££-10
60595-£€-10
L0S95-£¢-10
90595-£€-10
60S95-€€-10
P0595-€€-10
£0696-E€-10
20595-€£-10
10596-£€-10
£0196-¢¢-10
10195-¢€-10

sod

000T8-¢E-10

0008L-TE-10
00€SL-Te-10
000€L-TE-10

0S1TL-TE-10
010TL-Te-10
000TL-TE-10

01€9-2€-10
001£9-2€-10
00009-2¢-10

YC696-TE-10

0Te95-2E-10
81696-¢-10
L1S96-TE-10
91696-2¢-10
S1595-2e-10
T1S96-7¢-10
60595-2¢-10
L0S9S-TE-10

:pouad



Agenda Packet Page 193 of 238

98'0%

89°Ly

69°18
00°001
€Ly

61°6¢

00°001
§T06
$£°0T
000
ja4 V4
iy
8668
000
1.9
0L’LL
wo
[4R 7
¥9°0v
§0'6T
I¥'se
LL'Th
65°€e

L¥'te
(A4
oY
00°001
IL°€8
e

LTSE

007001
8L798

dqe[IBAY %

89L°8YL

L61TLI

STT'l
00S‘1
TwLy691

1LS9LS

€SLL
762°CT
911°T
(gzz'on)
%S
9E'pl
66vy
081D
802°001
£86°S
ol
L
61€°0L
99L°€
1€9°1
P1TPE
$9£00€

TE0V61

06T°€T

£CET
000°1
LE8
0EI'61

THLOLL

909'C
$T0°6
aqe[lEAy

junowry paaqunduy

89L°8HL

89L8YL

L61°TLL

STl
00S°1
TLY'691

1LS'9LS

€SL°L
62T
91IT
(€z2'91)
%S
9Ev'yI
667
81D
80Z°001
£86°S
ol
TH8'L
61€°0L
99L‘€
1£9%1
P1TvE
$9€°00¢€

TEO'P61

TE0'P61

06T°€T

X404
0001
L8
0€161

[4Z7AVA

909°C
ST0°6
JEA ALA

65L°€80°1

6SL€80°1

L86°881

SLT

TIL'881

TLL'Y68

80t'C
S8T°‘8
€291
S01°T
LTH'0T
108
081°1
8116
LILT
62¢°C
S8I‘E
969201
661°6
LO8‘SE
98L'SH
S08°€6S

L9S'E0¥

L9S‘ €0V

012°06

LLY'LY

£91
0LE‘TY

LSEEIE

SLE
junowy LA

91 jo g abed

65L°€80°1
65L°€80°1
86881

SLT

T1L881

TLLY6S

80¥°C
68T°8
£2T91
s01°T
LTY'0T
108
081°1
8116V
LILT
67€T
[4: 4
969201
661°6
LO8'SE
98L'SH
S08°€6S

L9S*E0Y
LIS E0Y

01206

LLY'LY

£91
oLETy

LSEEIE

SLET
junowry porrdg

17'925 2€8°1
14'925°2E8‘1
00'¥81°19¢€

00°005°1
00°00S°1
00'¥81°85¢€

I The 1LYl

0LTSLL
00°00L¥C
00°00¥°01
000
00'9v9°C
61°€98'v€
00°000°S
000
S19ze‘erl
9°00L'L
¥8'8€€°T
SELTOLL
8TS10°€LI
¥¥'$96°C1
SY'8EVSS
00°000°08
$5°891%68

00'665°L6S

00°665°L6S

00°00S‘€11

00°000°0S
00°000°1
000001
0000519

00°660°781
¥9°09°C

00°00¥°01
junowry 398png

:s[e10], qng asuadxg

‘S[BI0L QNS STH

jue[d 9pisuead-Jeal], afemag
yuawdinbg puy sjoof jjews

siyauag juswikodwig 1504 12410

quyuo)) 1ahojdwrg-dwo)) pairajeq
Aed Aing

dxq J3O ], pred 22kojdwg
"1°Ld ‘su] ewkodwiaup) ajeig
suf uonesuaduwo)) S,19310M

wiay uonin /Buiutel], sakojduwg
sAepijol 2akojdwg
siad[e)-jusuaInay

suf Anpqesiq /1S ‘9T

BMDY SUJ UOISIA

JqueInsuj [ejud(

uag Yi[esH emdy suf [edIpaA
2182IPIA BOL] areyS S takorduwg
1SS ©o1 aIeyg SJekojdwg

‘ureg swmdwio)) ‘pred swWILAQ
saue[es Je[ngoy

SHSNAIXHT HIAOTdNH %@ TIOYAVd

s[e10] qng €€ 1da@
:s[ejo], qng asuadxq

SASNAIIXHT NOILNIRILSIA Y3LVM

uowdinbg piarg puy doys

Buiurel [ /S30U3IJUOD/[ARL],
juawdinbg puy sjoog, [[ews

sjyauag Juswikodwig 1504 Y10

quyuo)) 1akojdwg-duro) pausjaq
dxg 33O sui], pred 2akojdurg

9107801 |

00€SL-vE-10
000EL-¥E-10

PTS9S-¥E-10

0TS9s-vE-10
81596-¥£-10
L15S96-¥¢-10
91695-vE-10
S1695-vE-10
CTIS96-¥E-10
60595-¥£-10
L0OS9S-¥£-10
90595-v£-10
§0S95-ve-10
Y0S9S-¥€-10
£0S95-ve-10
20895-vE-10
10695-v¢-10
€0195-v¢-10
10196-vE-10

sod

scd

000Z8-£€-10

00€SL-€€-10
000€L-€€-10

PT69s-£¢-10

02695-£€-10
L1696-£€-10

pouad



Agenda Packet Page 194 of 238

000

000

19°L¢

65°SY

vL'LY
007001
00°001
LL'6T
000
000
000
£ToY
00001

STTE

8116
000
68°0T
w6’y
6L'8Y
000
000
60°LS
08°SL
000
S1°89
80°S¢
66°ST
L6'lE
000
L9°6T

dqereAy %

¥8

78

78

SLI'YTY

909°90T

990°C9
008
008
861°9C

PSTELL
88L‘E

0LS°L1T

TE9°€1
(£26°8)
0l¢
LI
9L6
(810)
(z9L)
1S9t
66LC
(6¥5)
L19°E
0S€‘8T
9%9°1
1998
(sze'e)
8¥9°6T1

aqupeAy

junoury paIaquinduy

78

v8

¥8

¥8

SLI'vTy

SLIYTY

909°90T

990°C9
008
008
861°9C

YSTEIL
88L'E

0LS‘LIT

TE9'El
(£26'8)
ol
95L'8
9L6
(810°)
(zoL)
1591+
66LT
(6¥5)
L19'€
05€‘8T
9b9°1
199°8
(szT'?)
8v9°6C1

18A ALA

#8)

()]

#8)

@8

6€9°€0L

6€9°€0L

£ES°9VT

PE6°LY

T08°19

96L°911

LOT'LSY

8I€1
£26°8
9LIl
y1e01
¥T0‘l
810
oL
(45483
£68
L09°]
169°1
894°TS
689
LTr'81
STl
65T°LOE

junowry LA

91 Jo g abeyd

¥8)
(#8)

(2]

#8)

6€9°€0L
6£9°€0L

££5°9KT

YE6°LY

20819

96L°911

LOI'LSY

8I€°1
£76°'8
9L1
p1£°01
¥20°1
810
L
TIE'IE
£68
L09°1
1691
89%°TS
6897
LTV 81
sTT'll
65T°LOE

junowy pordg

000
000
000

000

95 v18°LTI'l
9SPI8LTIl
[1°8E1°ESH

00°000°0¢ 1
00°00S
00°008
00°000°88
000

000

000
00°0S0°0€T
11°88L°€

SH9LIYLY

00°0S6%1
000
SL'S8YI
16'690°61
00°000°T
000

000
£5°€96'TL
$6'169°C
76°LSO0°1
£7°80¢°S
8€°818°08
91'GEE’9
97'880°LC
00°000°€
9€°L06°9EY

junowy )3gpng

:s[elog, qng 9¢ 1da@
:s[e10], qng asuadxy

‘S[eI0L Qng STq
$291A13G puy satjddng
SASNHdXH NOILNERRLLSIA Y9LVM

s[e1o], qus g¢ 1dag
:s[ejo, qng asuadxy

‘S[eI0L QNS 0¢H

wawdinbg piaty puy doys

apISuBad(-2AIasay Juswade(day
juswdinbg puy sjoo [jewsg

S20IAI9S 79 sarjddng

S901AIAS [eF9]

$201AI9S [BUOISSIJO1]

sasnlpy Surfig/dxg 192a ped

suire]) asueInsuj pred JoLIsIq

JINTE LINFWNAOTdNA LSOd YFHLO

quyuo)) 1akojdwig-dwo) pauajeq

dxg 130 swiiL, pred da4ojdwg
*L°L'g “‘suf juawAojdwau) 1)
su[ uonesuaduio) S,Jaiom
wiay uonin/Bututel ], sakojdwg
uoneoeA sakojduyg

sAep1joH 2akojdwig

s1ad[e)) - JuswaInay

sup Aupiqesta L1 “L/S ‘Ar]
d10D AJ9G BMOY SUJ UOISIA
aoueInSU] [RIUA

uag YijeaH emdy su[ [edIpIN
21e31poAl B9L] a1eyS §takojduy
1SS oL areys S Jekojdwy

‘uteqg swndwo)) ‘pred swIAQ
saue[es Jen3ay

SHSNAIXH FHAOTdAE % TIOUAVd

S|e1o, qn§ ¢ un—OQ

9108 03 |

000ZL-9¢-10

std

00028-5¢-10

00€SL-S€-10
000€L-S€-10
000TL-5¢-10
0000L-5¢-10
00199-6¢-10
00099-5¢-10
POPE9-SE-10
PT69S-GE-10

0Ts95-SE-10

L1596-6¢-10
91696-S€-10
S1596-6¢-10
C1696-6€-10
01596-S€-10
60596-S£-10
L0S9S-S£-10
90595-6¢-10
$0595-S¢-10
¥0596-6¢-10
£0595-5¢-10
20596-S¢-10
10595-S¢€-10
£0196-6¢-10
10195-S¢-10

sod

:pouad



Agenda Packet Page 195 of 238

81001

6£'t6

6£°€6

¥9°CE

000
$9°C¢

I8IL
000

000
10'vL

8¢°CC

X247

000

000

000

000

000

000

dquIeAY %

6L0°S8

8£5°8¢E

8£5°8€

T68°96L

T68°96L

¥79'85C

(008)
(oet D)
£5809C

¥08°60T°9

TSELYL'ST

(€1

(€0
(€D

(95¢5)

(959)

(959)

dqejlesy

JunowWy PaIaqunduy

6L0°S8

8£5°8€E

8€5°8€

T68°96L

T68°96L

¥79°85T

(008)
(oer'1)
£58°09¢

(6¥5°L£S°6)

¥08°60C‘9

TSELYL'ST

(€N

(€n

((30)

(€0

(959)

(95¢5)

(959)

(959)

1BA dLA

(ov)
STL'T
STLC
955 vb9‘1

955 ¥19°l

yIS‘101

008
6T1°6
$85°16

60°LSLT

9T1'PES 1T

LLO'LLL'61

£l

£l

€l

£l

9s¢

9s¢

9s¢

9s¢

junowry g.LA

9} Jo £ abed

(vov)
STL'T
STLT

9SS vp9°l

9SS HH9°l
vIS101

008
6216
$85°16

60°LSL
9TI'pES‘IT

LLO'LLL'61

£l
£l

€l

£l

9sS
9ss

9ss

9¢s

junowy porag

00°5L9%8
00°€9T°1¥
00°€9Z°1¥
88LyY 1¥v'T

000
88 LYY 1T

61°LE1°09€

000
00669°L
61°8EH°TSE

LL'66Y°08L L-
0L'6T6'EVL LT
LY 6TV YTS SE
000
000
000

00°0

000
000
000

000

junoury 338png

HNODNI LSTIH.LNI

WwaIo[eA PV - A9Y Xe] Auadoid

HSNHdXH LSHAALNI
ANNTATI ONILVYTIdO NON
199y paysl{qeisg-sadiey) 1omag

HNNIATE Y3 LVMELSYVM

99,] Jana] Jomag-ou[ uneladQ
sag1ey)) 901AI3G 159103BO-10MIS
5100y Surdojaas(g-sadiey)) 1omag
HNNIATE YLVM

ANNA JIMES

‘S[BI0L QNS [0 pung
:sjejo], qng asuadxyq pung

'S[BIOL, QNS ANUIARY pun,f
s[ejog, qng 16 1dag

:s[ejo, qng asuadxg

‘S[eI0L, qns 0¢d

juswdinbg patg puy doyg
SHSNIdXH STOIAYES YILIN
ALFAVS

s[ejo qns [ 1deq

:s[ejo, qng asuadxyg

‘S[eI0], qn§ STH
Sumystungpurey Suiping

SHSNAIIXHT NOILNELSIA YALVM
SASNAdXT NOLLVIIdO YdLvm

910T ‘8 01 [

0y
10£6+-00-20
ovd
6016t-00-20
0111+-00-C0
0gd
901€-00-20
101€4-00-20
01214-00-20
ond

20 pung
00028-16-10
oed

€410 daqg
10¥€9-1%-10
[y

S1d

‘pouad



Agenda Packet Page 196 of 238

00°SL
00°08
000
L9'T6
SL'TE
00001
000
£6°1T
000
00°001
$0°08
y6°SS

L9ty

007001
6768
LT81
0070
8591
8S°Sy
LTYY
000
00°'19
68'18
000
6L'8L
§:24%
SElE
[48°1%
LTEL
96'8¢

000

000

000
000

8T 0¥

8Y°001
dAquEpEAY %

0051
000°1
085°0¢
79T
00€
(008)
0£6°SI1
(91L'01)
00S
80T'S1
8€L°9T

988°11€

18%°¢
L0911
006°1
6¥1°L)
60T
8758
8761
(906)
9060
3€8°¢
(€€0)
S84'9
€L9'1€
ST8°1
7668
796°€h
8PS 1

(v95°L8€)

(#95°L8€)

(508‘v12)
(6sLTL1)

€E1°6L1°1

6L0°S8
alqepeay

junowy paIIqUINIUY

005°1
0001
085°0€
9t
00€
(008)
0€6°S1
(g1L'01)
00§
80T'S1
8€L9T

988°11€

185°€
L0911
006°1
(6v1°L)
60T
8758
876°1
(906)
906°0F
8£8°¢
(££2)
S8+‘9
£LY'1E
ST8°1
2668
796°cY
198951

(L69°995°1)

(#95°L8€)

(#95°L8€)

(508v12)
(6sLzL1)

€E1%6L1°T

6L0°S8
TBA ALA

00¢
000°1
(174 414
8¢S
00v°S
0L0°8S
91L'01
T6L'E
790°1T

€LTTOV

£6€°1
00S°8
6¥1°L
150°1
£81°01
TLO'T
906
L¥1°9T
6+8
LbE‘1
ShL1
12£'6S
L66'E
206°S1
8€0'91
£L9°9%T

(928°09¢°1)

$95°L8€

¥95°L8E

S08¥IT
6SLTLY

16€°8¥L1

#0v)
e==OE< ﬁ—h. >

91 jo g obed

00S
000°1
0TH'T
8¢S
00v's
0L0‘8S
91L'01
T6L'E
79012

£LTTOY

£6€°1
0058
6v1°L
150°1
£81°01
TLo'l
906
L¥1'9T
6¥8
LYE‘L
SPL'T
12€'6S
L66°E
T06°S1
8€091
£L9°9%T

(928°09¢°1)
$95°L8€

$95°L8E

S08°vIT
6SL°TLL

16€°8YL 1

(vov)
junomly pornJj

00°000°C
00000°C
000
00°000°€€
00°008
00°00€
00°009‘t
00°000'%L
000
00°00§
0000061
00°008‘L¥

90°6S1VIL

YT 18%'€
000001
00°00¥°01
000
0009C°1
1711481
00°000°¢
000
06°2S0°L9
SE989°y
09°€E11°l
00°0€Z°8
9£'¢66°06
96°178°S
68°€68°PT
00°000°09
SEVIS 107

LO'€TS LT6'T-
000
000

000
000

LO€TSLT6T

00°SL9V8
junowry 3a8png

juawidinbg puy s[oo, [[ews
BuisiueApy sadnoN d1qnd
Sutuea[) aury 19mag
suondusqng puy san(g

spuLa A10)8[n3oy
I9MaG-530IAIaS puy saiddng

juawdimbyg

siyouag Juswkorduwig 1504 12410

quuo) 12kojdwg-duro) pausjaq
Aed Ana

dxq JJO awny, pred 2akojdwyg
L'L'g ‘suf juawikojdwau() ajeis
su] uonesuaduio) §Ia3I10M

unay uoning Aururel], sakojdwg
sAepijoH 224ojdwg
s1adje)-juatuainay

sup Aj[iqestq 1/1°L/S ‘JrT

BMOY SUJ UOISIA

aoueINSUJ [IUD(]

uog YI[eaH BMOY SUJ [BIIPIA
21831paJA BOL] 21eyS Stokojdwyg
1SS BoLf a1eys S Jakojdwg

‘ueqg aw], duio) ‘pred suwieAQ
sauejes 1enday

SHSNHdXH HHAOTINH 2 TIOUAVd

:s[ejo, qng 0o 1dag
s[ejo] qng asuadxg

‘S[e10L, qn§ 094

[A AND-SASNAIXH NOILVIOTAJIA

\Nd NFD OL YFASNVIL AVAHIIAO

dXH/ATE LAN dVHA LNTHIND

pun,f Jomag-SanuaAdy 1S2I2)u]

000€L-19-T0
TOLTL-19-T0
0092L-19-20
00¥CL-19-20

0S12L-19-20
000TL-19-C0

00009-19-20

T§95-19-20

0T695-19-20
81696-19-20
L169S-19-T0
91695-19-20
S1595-19-20
C1596-19-20
60595-19-20
L0S9S5-19-20
90595-19-20
§0596-19-20
0595-19-20
£0595-19-20
20595-19-20
10695-19-20
£0196-19-20
10196-19-20

sod

001LS-00-20

9L12S-00-20

08d

10T6¥-00-20

910T '8 01 1 ‘pouad



Agenda Packet Page 197 of 238

007001
000
68'8Y

000
000
000
000

000
000

000

¥y'oT

0S°IS
09'61

£6°LE

8T0¥

06'vS

10°09

000
0L0
STIs
S6°L1
00°001
61°¢S

dqE[IRAY Y%

00¢

0099

(6L8°TIED)

(iLzosen
(0s0'1)
(z£0'6%)

(Tet08)
(Le9‘6LT'1)

(Lev'D

(LEV'D)

0£8°8€

SLST
$ST9E

L£6°S98

[XANTAN

105°€ST°1

SI9°I¥6

(960°1)
2!
0S1°9
€L6°8
001°1€€
1L6°S18
dqeqieAy

JunowWy PadquInduy

00t

0099

6L8°TIE]

(6L8°TIE'D)

(1Lz'osen)
(0s0°1)
(z€0%6E)

(T6¥°0€)
(L69°6LT°T)

(Ley'n

Ler'n

0£8°8€

SLST
6ST9€

(961°€1€)
L£6°S98
EET6LIT
10S€ST1
10S°€ST°1
SI9°1¥6

(960°1)

14!
0519
£L6'8
001°1€€

1L6°S1S
1BA dLA

0069

(6LE°9LS‘T)

6LEOLS ]
1LL'ETY ]
0501
TES'LY
76156
L696LT1
LEV'L
LEVL
oL1‘Is1

ST
SPL'8YI

(890°1€€)
€TELIF
16£°8PL°1
85L°6T0°1
85L°6T0°1
S8Y°LT9
960°1T
986°1
058°S

LTOIY

620°vSY
junowy LA

9} Jo 6 abed

0069

(6LE'9LS T)

6LE‘9LS
ILLETY'1
0501
TES'LY
T6v'S6
L69°6LT 1
LEV'L
LEVT
0LI‘1S1

STHT
SPL'8YI

(890°1€€)
£TELIL
16£°8PL 1
8SL6T0°1
85L°6T0°1
S8¥°LT9
960°1C
986°1
058°S

LT0'1Y

620°vSY
junowy poridg

00°00¢
000
00°00S°€1

00°005°€9Z-

00°00S°€9T
00°00S°€L
000
000058
00700059
000

000

000
00°000°061

00°000°s
00°000°s81

10'49T v¥9-
90'657°€8C°C
LO€TSLT6'T
90°'65C'€8C°C
90°65C°€8C°T
00°001°695°1
00°000°0C
00°000°C
00°000°T1
00°000°0§
00°001°1€€

00'0000L6
junowy 338png

S9I1AIOS [BUOISSAJOI]
sosuadxy JoquIdJA pleog

SASNAdXH FIAOTINEG % TIOHAVd
:selol, gng 00 1do

SASNAIXA FHAOTdNE % TIOUAVd
dXF/ATI LAN AVAA INTHAND

$201A19§ “Suq - anUdANY DSIA

ANUAASY SNOSUB[[AISIA

sas897 puy sjuay-ouf 1odQ uoN
I9MIS ‘I9)JeA\ WIOL] S1], PeaylanQ
HNANTATE YHIHLO

S3NUIASY 1S2I0)U]
HWODNI LSHIH.LNI
‘A }99YD ueld duf Sunerado

sSyD up/Keuad ouj Junesadp
ANNIATY YLV M

ANNA TVIENID
s[e10, qng 70 pund
:s[e10], qng asuadxg pung

'S[BJOL QNS SNUIAY punyg

sjeol, qns 19 HQOQ

:s[ejo L, qng asuadxyg

sjeo], qus 093

uawdinby piayy puy doys
auedoig-sannn

dsi(] euaiely J9Isep| snopiezeH
soning

apISUBII()-9A195Y Jusuade[day]
jue[d SpIsSuBad-1BaL], 9Temag
Suluie1] /SeouUI U0 /[AARL],

910T '8 01 |

0000L-0T-£0
20795-0T-¢0
sod

s0d

084

P116%-00-€0

6016¥-00-€0
8016%-00-€0
002TH-00-¢0

oLd

1026%-00-€0

0sd

801€¥-00-€0

201£4-00-€0
ord

£0 pund

00028-19-20
00L8L-19-20
00€8L-19-20
0008L-19-T0
001LL-19-20
0004L-19-T0
00€SL-19-T0

:pouad



Agenda Packet Page 198 of 238

SUSl
000
00°001
19°€9
€188
000
0¥°08
vrLE
[4: R 44
0c'6¥
00°001
00°¢y

000

000

000
000

000

0T'C9
000
00001
000
000
00'%9

8L°68
SqTIEAY %

LE
(or1)
00S
80£°6
SLIY
(9]
10€°1
9969
0LS
6L9°C
000
989°LE

09)

09)

09)

(81)

(8t)

(8%)

96T°€1

(ree)
08

(82)
(seg)

6791

6TL9
dqeieAy

juNoWy PAIdquINdUY

LE
(o¥1)
00S
80€°6
SLI‘I
(%)
10€°1
9%69
0LS
6L9°C
0001
989°LE

(09

09)

09)

(09)

(8t)

(8t)

(81)

(8%)

96T°€1

96T°c1

(ree)
08

(8L)
(sgg)

629°¢1

6TL‘9
18A dLA

90¢
L¥0'T

LAY
861
99¢
Lig
L0911
10L
SsL't

9v6°6Y

0S

0s

0s

0s

8y

8y

8

14

6L0°8

6L0°8

1347

8L
323

999°L

99L
junowy QLA

91 Jo 01 abed

90T
LY0'T

9ze's
861
99T
Llg
L0911
10L
SSLT

946°6Y

0S
0S

0s

0s

8y
8y

8y

14

6L0°8
6L0'8

1284

8L
1933

999°L

99L
junowry poridd

85°THT
69'906°1
00°00$
0S'¥E9'P1
TLEEE’]
STYIT
P1°819°1
TL'TSS 81
99°0LT'1
LI'EEY'S
00°000°1
€L1£9°L8

000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000

000

S9YLE T
S9OVLE'IT
S9°6L
S9'6L
000

000
00°S6Z°1T

00°S6v°L
junowy 3a3png

su] uonesuadwo)) §IO3I0M
wiey uonin [ /Bumurel], sakodwy

sup Aiqesia 1/1L/S ‘9r1
BMOY SUJ UOISIA

QoueInsu| [eJua
uag Y)[eoH eMIY SuJ [eSIPIN

21BDIPIJA BOL 21ByS SJakojdwg

1s§ ©14 aleyg §akopdurg

‘wreq auit], duio)) ‘pred sunuaAQ
saue[es Jenday

SSNAdXd JHAOTING % TIOUAVd
:s[ejo qng asuadxq

‘S[e10L qns G4

Fuurely guo)/jeaes],

uonesuadio)) §,100311q

SYOLOMUIA 40 UV Od

:s[ejo, qng asuadxs
S[eI0L qns .9

Juurel] juo)/eAel],
SYOLOMIIA 40 UVOod

s[ejo], qng 0z 1dag
:s[ejo, qng asuadxg

‘S[eI0L, qns OvH

‘su] uonesuadwo)) SINMUOM
YIaIN

AVOIL

SHASNIdXT YH % NOILVILSININGY

Jururel [ /530U2J9JU0)/[OABL],

sao1Alag puy sarddng

910T ‘'8 01 |

S1696-9¢-£0
T1695-9¢-¢0

90695-9¢-¢0
§0595-9¢-¢0
+0S95-9¢-€0
£0595-9¢-€£0
20595-9¢-¢0
10595-9¢-€0
£0196-9¢-€0
10195-9¢-€0

S04

00€SL-6T-£0

0T95-6T-£0
SLd

00€SL-TT-£0

SLd

$1696-02-¢0
0595-0T-€0

10595-02-€0
ovd

00£5L-0T-¢0

000TL-0T-€0

pouad



Agenda Packet Page 199 of 238

Yove
000
vTee
000

1ces

00001
€076
86T
ovLT
007001
96'0%
000
90°€EL
w06
91'9%
99°98
Sy'es
8T8y
6£'89
8561
60°9%

oS’y

00°0v

£TSY
00°001
0070
£6°TY
6T'8C
1240
1T°s9
000
000
000

414
007001

81°06
dqerEAyY %

T1€°56
(6£s°s)
0L6'1
(0LT61)

185°LLS

€149
6¥8°61
119
66L'T
0s6
£55‘9
(se1)
8€T°06
6L1°01
Se8
9€8°11
T8¢€°6
8LI‘S
09€°1€
L09
976°0F€

659°8¥T

LT9P81

YET'L6
000°1
(zsn
651°1
955°[
LOE'SE
¥S1v6
(569°Th)
(s0e'1)
(430

TE0%9

09L
€92
aqejieAy

junowy paIdquINdUY

TIE'S6
(6£5°s)
0L6°1
(oLT'61)

185°LLS

£1%°9
6v8°61
9
66LT
06
€559
(sen)
8€C°06
6L1°01
ce8
9€8°l1
T8¢€'6Y
8LI'S
09€°1€
L09
9T6°0¥€

65984
659'84C

LT9'P81

YET'L6
000°1
(zsn)
651°1
955°1
LOE'SE
YS1%6
(s69°ch)
(soe‘1)
(Te9'D

TE0Y9

09L
£92°C
18A ALA

8¥8°6L1
6€S°S
$0S‘9
0LT'61

LTL'8TS

0921
LEV'L
£6T°€l
L¥Y'6
Sel
6LT'EE
8LO°I
vL6
781
9L v
LYS'S
LeY'pl
£6¥°C
TOL86€

SIs‘0se

SIs‘ose

8¥6'9LT

99L'L11
TSI°1
%51
PP6's
£69VE
12208
$69°C9
SOg'e
T€9°1

L9S'EL

8¢T
junowry (LA

9l jo || abed

8+8°6L1
6£5°S
S05‘9
0LT'61

LTL'8TS

09T°1
LEV']
€6Tcl
Ly¥'6
el
6LT'EE
8LO°1
¥L6
T8l
YL v
LYS'S
L6V P1
£6¥°C
TOL'86€

SIs‘0se
SIs‘0se

8¥6°9LT

99L°LIL
TSIl
1pS°1
Yi6°€
£69°vE
12208
$69°T9
sog‘e
TE9°1

L9S‘EL

8¢T
junowy porIdg

00091°6LT
00°0
00°SL¥'8
0070

TYLOE901°]

8LTI¥9
SL'801°IT
6£°LV0T
8L°T60°91
007056
00700091
00°0
T8LISET]
08'9ST11
0€'808°1
1¥°'LS9€E1
Y16
09'¥ZL01
16'958°sy
00°001°¢
$9'LTY6EL

£6°EL1 665
£6°€L166S

00°SLS‘19%

00°000°S1T
00°000°1
00°000°1
00°00L'T
00°00S°S
00°000°0L
00°SLEPPL
00°000°0T
00°000C
000

£6'865°LEL
6L°6SL

86°00SC
junowry 328png

dXH 440 FNIL dlVd FFAOTdNA
suone[ay aakojdwg

SHSNAJdXH ¥H % NOLLVYLSININAY
sjjouag yuawkojdury 1504 1BYI0

quyuo)) 1akojdurg-duto) pausjaq
L1 ‘suj yuawiojdwaupn) ajeis
suf uonesuaduro)) S19I0M
wiay uonin] Auiuter] sakodwg
asuemo|[y uuojiuf) sakojdwsg
skepijoH 2akojdwuyg
s1adjeD-juowainay

su Ajiqesta 1/10/S ‘PrT

BMOY SUJ UOISIA

soueInsuj [ejuaq

uag Y)[eaH eMOY Suj [BIIPIA
31821p3JA] BOL] 21eyS S takodwyg
1SG ©oL] 21eyg Sakojdwg

‘ureq awi], duwo) ‘pred awniaAQ
sauefes Jenday
AH/NOILVILSININQY

's[ejol, qns 9¢ idoq
:s[ejo], qng asuadxg

S[eJoL qng ceH

SOPIYAA

juawdinbg puy s[oo], [[ews

oy ‘sarjddng ‘nedoy

'O puy [Pnd

soueuouiely Juawdinby

juowdinbyg

dXd 440 FNIL AIVd JTAO0TdNA

sjyauag Jusuwikojduwig 1504 J2Yi0

quyuo)) 1akojdwg-duio) pauajaq
“L'L'g ‘suf yuswkojduiaun) ajerg

910T ‘801 |

L1696-1¥-€0
£1696-1¥-€0

ord

PTS9S-1¥-€0

0TS9s-17-¢0
91896-1¥-€0
S1S96-1-€0
CTIS96-11-€0
11596-14-¢£0
60S9S-1-€0
L0OS9S-11-¢0
9059S-11-¢0
S0S9S-11-€0
P0S9S-1¥-¢0
£0595-11-€0
20595-1-€0
10S95-11-¢0
€0195-11-¢0
10196-1¥-¢0
Iv-€0 dag

000£8-9¢-€0

000€L-9¢-£0

TTPE9-9¢-£0
1Tv£9-9¢-¢0
001€9-9¢-€0
000€9-9¢-£0
L1695-9¢-€0

C695-9¢-£0

0T695-9¢-£0
91695-9¢-£0

pound



Agenda Packet Page 200 of 238

000

60°LE

007001
88'YL
00°0
000
V19
¥8°9%
86'¢8
000
1£°09
000
Iele
8T'LT
000
08Iy

098¢

£e'9

18°8¢
007001
8T'tC
68'9¢
000
000
000
00001
Iv'9
007001
£e81
LLLT
000
OL'EL
000
000
66T
erle
00001
000
dqelreAyY %

(9¥5°p)

8S1°6€

¥29
LEST
(n
(120)
SiT
979°S
616
(zD
108
(roz'n)
(444
LIT1
(z1s)
$90°0¢€

LS8°159

9LTYL

681°C
SIL'E
8758
0rs‘s
(T29'D)
69)
(165%)
0001
6LY'E
0sT
6567
8£5°SS
(9+T'60)
ObL'p1
(TL1'99)
(so9‘cn)
0SL
9111
005‘C
(9£2)
sqeieAy

JUNOWY PIIIQIUINIUY

(O¥sp)

8S1°6¢

¥79
LEST
an
(1z2)
ST
979°S
616
wel)
108
(toT'n)
T
LIT1
(T19)
$90°0€

LS8159

LS8°159

9LT'PL

681°C
SILE
87S‘8
0rs‘s
(€290
(69)
(165
000°1
6LY'E
0s¢T
6567
8€6°6S
(9¥2'67)
0vLpl
(TL1'99)
(509°C)
0SL
9111
005T
(9£0)
d8A ALA

Sy

Th'99

91¢
01z
98L°
el
98¢‘9
SLI
00€
LTS
1596
128
37403
zI8
7981

T8€°LTYl

T8€°LTYl

$59°860°1

1St'e
TsL'6T
019%1
860°0€
65S°L
165°61

9LL'0S
160CT
(A1 47 41
9vT'681
09T'S
TLITST
S8T'16
0sT'T
¥S9vT
9¢T
junowy LA

9l Jo z| abed

9y

TTr'99

91¢
0I¢
98L°1
sel
98€‘9
SL1
00¢
LTS
1596
178
1374
(4t
7981y

T8E°LTYl
T8E°LTYl
$59°860°1

1St'E
TSL6T
019%1
860°0€
65S°L
16S°61

9LL0S
160°CT
[£iaqdl
9T 681
09T'S
TLITST
S8T'16
0ST'C
¥59%T
9¢C
junowy pound

000
10°085°501

£9°€79
8L°TS0T
01661
867951
00°0S€
18°110°CI
0L'%60°1
68°6LI
SI'8TEl
96°6tH°8
$6'THO'1
865"y
00°00€
£0°LT6IL

Tr'8ET'6LTT
TH8ET'6LTT
00°1€6°TLL

00°0¥9°S
00°S1LE
00°08Z°8¢
00°0S1°€T
00'9LY'LT
00°005°L
0000051
00°000°1
00°SSTYS
00°0S¢T
00°0S0°LT
00°000°00T
00°000°091
00°000°0C
00°000°981
00°089°8L
00°000°€
00°008°S€E
00°00§T
000
junowy 338png

sjyouag yuawkojduiy 1504 12410

quuo) 1ekordwig-dwo) paugjaq
1L ‘su] juawkolduwaup) ajel§
su[ uonesuaduio)) IO

wiay uoning Bururel], sako(dwyg

suj Anpiqestq L/1'0/S ‘4T

BMOY SUJ UOISIA

JourRINSU] [RIUS

uag yi[eaH BMOY SUJ [edIPIN

21e01PaIA 891 2reys SJekojdwig

1SS ©oLf areyg §Jakojdwyg

‘ureq aunt], dwo)) ‘pred SWIAQ
sauejes 1enay

SHSNAdXH HHAOTdNL % TIOUAVd

:s[eog, qng [ 1daQg
:s[ejo, qng asuadxy

S[eI0L, QNS OpH

dn-3pd1d ysel],

suedoid- saninn
Ayoaarg-saninn
Juiurel ] /SeOUIUOD/[IARI],

s|[ig 2uoyJ 79 SUOJEdIUNUILIOD)

$901N0S9Y puy syoog
$201A108 puy sanddng

SIDIAILS [BUOISSIJOI]
SuIe[D) 2dUBINSU] pred 1oMSIq
soueinsu] Ayiqery/Aadold

sarddng uayo)ry

fejuay juawdinbyg

1oR1U0D sduBUIUIE]A Juawdinbg
2oueuuIRly Juswdinbyg
s1ondwo)

9107’8 01 [

PTS9S-ev-€0

0T595-£-£0
91696-£1-€0
S1696-€-€0
TIS9S-£1-¢0

90596-¢1-¢0
S0S9S-€1-€0
$0595-¢¥-€0
£0695-€1-€0
20595-£v-£0
10$95-€v-€0
€0195-€4-€0
10195-¢¥-€0

sod

0068L-11-€0

00L8L-1%-£0
0008L-1-€0
00€SL-1¥-¢0

000¥L-1-£0

00TTL- 1170
000TL-1¥-£0

0000L-1%-£0
00159-1¥-£0
00059-1-£0

00P£9-1-£0
00TE9-1¥-¢0
201€9-11-¢0
001€9-1¥-¢0
00109-1t-€0

:pouad



Agenda Packet Page 201 of 238

L00T

LO'1E
1£°8¢
000
[A%A%
000
0£°8¢
000

§9'8¢

007001
9¢'68
000
LO'8Y
L9796
000
YT'S9
8¢°L9
SS'L
6£°6S
IS°L1
Pe0e
w've
000
Stpe

8Ly

cro9

68¢8
00°001
SI'¥9
£1°89
00°001
S¥'98
Y9'v¥
007001
000
000
dqepreay %

8£5°CC

LLL
069
(9¥€°9)
19291
(058°¢)
65991
(€59D)

1LL°20T

891°¢
£62°6
(801)
£TL9
0TET
(65L)
118°€
96€°1
L9
TS6°1
6SL'S
LO9T
TI6'L
(652°0)
8885zl

L9V'v6

60€°sS

LIST
00€
LSOYT
SHS
00T
SLL'ST
7959
0008
(¥06°S)
(961)

aqenEAy

junoury paJaquinduy

8€5°TT

LLL
069
(9vg‘s)
19291
(058°¢)
65991
(€590

1LL°T0T

891°¢
£67°6
(801)
£TL9
02ET
(65L)
118°6€
96€°1
L9
T66°1
65L'S
L09°1
TI6'L
(652D
888°ST1

L9Y'Y6

LIV'V6

60£°SS

LIS'T
00€
LSOYT
SpS
002
SLL'ST
7959
0008
(#06°S)
961)

1BA ALA

78L°68

€TLl
oL
'S
6EL'EE
0LT'81
1¥8°9T
£59°C

LTE'ITE

LOT°1
911l
yoT'L
08

6SL
€1T1T
9L9
T8
SeE’l
1€1°LT
169°¢
PrLY1
65Y°C
8TS6€T

£11°€01

£11°¢01

169°9¢

€8y

Evpel
974

sTL'e

8€1°8

¥06°S

961

junowry (LA

91 Jo g abed

78L68

€TLl
or1‘t
'S
6£L'EE
0LZ'81
1¥8°9C
£69°C

LT6'1TE

LOT°T
911°1
y9T'L
08
6SL
£1T°1T
9.9
¥T8
SEEl
I€1°LT
169°¢
LYl
65+°T
8TS6€T

€11°c01

£11°€01

169°9€

€8

EPPEl
SsT

STLE

3¢1°8

$06°S

961

junowy pordd

00°0Z€‘Cl1

0000§°T
00°008°[
007001
00°000°0S
00°0THY1
00°00S°c
000

£V'869°%CS

97'891°¢
00°00t°01
00°800°1
6+'986°¢€1
00°00+°T
000
0S'¥20°19
0S'CLOC
88°068
00°L8TE
TE068°TE
£5°86T°S
08'659°TC
00°00T
SI'91¥69¢

10°085°L61

10°085°L61

00°000°26

00°000°¢
00°00¢
00°00S°LE
00008
0000T
00°00S°LT
00°00LY1
000008
000

000
junowy 338png

Furures ] /Sa0ua1oJuo))/[9ARI],
suononpoiday] puy Sunyurd

sa1ey)) 201A10§ Jueg
S92IAIAG JIpNY [enuuy
a3ejsod

siyauag Juswikojdwy 1504 1OYI0

quuo) 1a£ojdug-duwio) paurjeq
*L'Ld ‘suf juowkodutaun) ajei§
suj uonesuadwio) §Ia3I0M

wiay uonmng/Buures], sakodwyg
sAepijoH 2aKkodwrg
siad[e)-juatainay

su Aupiqesta L/1'L/S ‘9T

BMOY SUJ UOISIA

9oueInsuj [elusq

uag Y[esH emoy suj [edIpIAl
21e31paJA BOL 21ByS Stakojdury
1SS 8oL aIeys StoAodwyg

‘ureq awi], duio) ‘pied SWINIGAQ
saure|es Jemniay

SASNAdXT FHAOTdNG %@ TIOUAVd

s[ejol, qns £ 1o
:s[ejo], qng asuadxyg

SHSNHIXH HOIAYES YHNOLSND

Juiures ] /Sa0uUaIajU0)/[PARLY,

juawdinbyg puy sjoo], jjews
sarddng Kjojes
suondiasqng puy san(g
$20IN0S3Y puy syoog
s991A19G puy saiddng

aoueuajurely juswdinbg

SNOILVTHY JHAOTdNA
NOILVOVA ddA0TdNA

910Z ‘8 01 |

00€5L-16-¢0

00LTL-16-¢€0

00¥0L-16-€0
0010L-16-€0
00069-15-€0

PTe9S-16-¢0

0T59¢-16-€0
91696-16-€0
S1596-16-€0
T1S96-16-¢0
60595-15-€0
L0S9S-15-€0
90595-15-€0
S0595-15-€0
$0595-16-€0
£0S95-15-€0
T0596-16-¢0
10695-15-€0
€0196-15-€0
10196-16-€0

sod

sed

00€SL-£v-¢€0

000€L-¢¥-£0
00STL-€v-€0
00¥TL-ev-£0
00TTL-eV-20
000TL-€t-€0

001€9-€v-£0

£1596-Eb-£0
01595-¢¥-€0

:pousd



Agenda Packet Page 202 of 238

TLoL
§S°16
§9°0C
£Te8
68'¢s
61°%S
6L'LS
1TeEL
97’68

w'Ly
06°L1

007001
000
L9Vl
$£°99
007001
00°0

¥1°09

00°001
10°16
000
SIS
00001
000
6LYL
ov'v6
Ieve
€TS8
S6'LY
SYvs
96'¢S
coel
05°6S

LESE

dqe[IeAY 9%

7€0°SS
649
%4
T91°L
£55°Sy
199°¢
$69°91
626°C
9€1°9LT

¥9€£20T

49944

000°1
(¥65)
$1291
T96°L
00€
(LzeD

608°6L1

£89°1
To's
(oL¥)
LLIT
000°1
(802)
¥HTHe
68L°T
£91
$S0'€
15€91
£€5°1
¥6v°9
95
T0S'STI

01€'sTT
slqeieay

junowy paLaqunduy

TEO'SS
T6¥°9
314
T91°L
£65'SY
199°¢
$69°91
676°C
9€1°9LT

¥9€°20T
$9€£°20T

(49944

0001
(¥65)
PIT91
796°L
00¢
(Lze'd)

608°6L1

£89°1
'S
(oLv)
LLIT
0001
(802)
PrTvT
68L°C
€91
$S0°E
15£91
£ES°l
¥6v'9
95t
T0S°S11

01€‘sTT

01€'sTT
18A dLA

¥8L'TT
665
06
3441
8£0°6€
S60°¢
S61°Cl
1L0°1
T€8°681

s19'zee

S19'Tee

SHH'E01

¥6LT
98Z°%6
8€0Y

LTET

oL1'611

861
LOO1
LY0T
80¢C
€L1°S
$91
zig
0€S
0SL'LI
(474
1¥5°s
¥r0'E
T19°8L

60L°11¥

60L°11¥
junowy LA

91 jo 7| abed

$8LTT
665
$06
evv'l
8£0°6€
S60°€
S61°T1
1L0°1
7€8°681

S19°CTT
s19‘cee

SHpe0l

Y6LT
98Z'%6
8€0y

LTET

oLI'611

86t
L0
LY0T
30T
€L1°8
S91
Tig
0€S
0SL'LI
78T°1
1¥5°S
¥10'c
T19°8L

60L°11¥

60L'11¥
junowy pordg

65°918°LL
78'160°L
ETBEIT
174098
811658
£5°96L°9
66'688°8C
007000t
19°L96°S9%

£€6'8L6' VT
£6'8L6'VTY

00000921

00°000°1
00°00Z°T
00°005°011
00°000°T1
00°00€
000

£6'8L6°86T

T0'€89°1
S6°6€5°S
€E°LES
TSETT'Y
00°000°1
000
00°L1+°TE
£EVS6T
8SvLY
9€'¥8S°E
9¢° 101°vE
S9pI8T
S0°S€0°TI
00°005°€
8L €161

£V'810°LEY

£5'810°LE9
junowry 398png

sup Aniqestq 1/1L/S ‘YT

BMIY SUJ UOISIA

aoueINSU] [BJua(

uag Yi[edaH emOY Suj [BOIPIJA

21e21paJA BOL] 21ByS S Jakojduy

1SS Bo1] a1eyg SJokojdwg

‘ureq aunt], dwop ‘pred swnIoAQ
sauefes JenJay

SASNAIXH HIAOTdNL 2 TIOUAVd

:s[ejo], qng g6 ideg
:s|ejo], qng asuadxyg

S[eI0L Qn§ S6H
Suiuiel ] /S90UIJUOD/[PABL],

suonanpoxday puy Junurd
s291A13G puy satddng
Sasnlpy Sunng/dxg 192 ped

dX4 440 FNIL AIVd JHAOTdNA

sijauag JuswiKordwiyg 350 JPYIQ

quyuo)) 1oho[dwrg-dwo) pausjaq
*1'L'd ‘suf juawikojdwaup) ajelg
suf uopesuadwio)) §,1aI10M

wnay uoningBururer], sekojdwyg
sAepijoH 9akojdurg
s1ad[e)-juswainay

suf Aijiqesiq 1/1°/S ‘I

BMOY SUJ UOISIA

soueInsuj [RIUa

uag )[eal] emoy suf [edIpay
a1ed1pajA] BOL 2Ieys §Jakoduwryg
1SS el areys SJakojdwyg

‘wieg suil], duio)) ‘pred dWIOAQ
saue[es Jenday

SASNHdXH HHAOTdNE % TIOYAVd

sfeo], qng 16 1dag
:s[ejo L, qng asuadxg

‘S[ejoL qng 0sH

910 ‘'8 01 |

90695-16-¢0
60596-16-¢0
$0595-16-€0
£0595-16-€0
20595-16-€0
10596-16-€0
€0195-16-€0
10195-16-€0

sod

00€SL-7S5-€0

00LTL-TS-£0
000TL-TS-£0
01169-T5-£0

L1S96-TS-£0

YTS96-T6-¢0

0T695-7S-€0
91695-75-¢£0
S1696-76-€0
C1695-T6-€0
60595-25-£0
L0§95-TS-£0
90595-TS-€0
S0595-7S-€0
0595-2S-€0
£0596-75-£0
20595-75-€0
10696-25-€0
£0195-75-€0
10195-T5-€0

soq

:pouad



Agenda Packet Page 203 of 238

TTsT

£E°0Y

L8'VE

000

1€°9¢

000

01°96
000
LY'€6
007001
000
15°6¢
9L61
00°001
00°0

68709

00°001
£0°06
90°8C
£0°0¥
007001
000

dqe[ieAY %

8T1°8L8°8

909°€19°S1

L8ETO8°1

(6L8°T1ED)

PES99€

(60L°89)

S08%
(€49

SIL

008
(86L°LS1)
020°1L
01gCl
000°s
(82T'S)

Twesey

0¥0y

€L6°TT

9¢

650

002°1
(L82)
dqeleAy

junowry paIaquInouy

(8LY¥'SEL'9)

871°8L8°8

909°€19°S1

99T'S11°E

L8ETO8‘1

(6L8°TIET)

$£5°99€

$£5°99¢

(60L°89)

S08‘y
(ze)

SIL

00S
(86L°LST)
020°1L
01£°Cl
000°S
(82z'9)

TwTsey

00y
£L6°11
79¢

650y
002°1
(L82)
1BA ALA

TI9IT'e

6S6°LIE'9T

9p8°101°€T

1E1°06L°1

015'99¢‘¢

6LEILS T

000°€¥9

000°€Y9

814°€9€

S61

[43

0s
TEG'SLI
086°8T1
000°0S

87C's

78S°6LT

sTel

876

0809

L8T
junowy (LA

91 Jo G| abed

TII9ITE
656°L1£°9T
9¥8°101°€T
IE106L°1
01599¢‘¢
6LEILS
000°¢¥9
000°c9

814°€9¢

S61

43

0S
TE6°8L1
086°8C1
000°0§

8TT's

T85°6LT

SzTe'l
826
080°9

L8T
junowy porad

ST99€°616°€-

67°980°961°SE

¥S'TSY'SILRE

£5°L6£°S06'Y

£5°L68°891°C

00°005°€92

91°'€£5°600°1

91'€E€S°600°1

00'60L¥6T

00°000°S
000
00°59L
00°00S
00¥E1°1T
00°000°00T
00°01€29
00°000°S
000

91I'vT8YIL

LO0V0'Y
LS'86TE1
98°68C°1
05°8€1°01

00°00T‘1

000

junowy 338png

:sjejo, asuadxqg

'S[B10], AaNUAADY

‘S[eJ0L qng £0 pung

:s[ejo, qng asuadxg puny
:S[BJO], qNS ONUdASY pun,
s[elo. qns 16 3daq

's[ejo, qng asuadxyg

‘S[eI0L qns S97

Jurure [ /S90UIIUO/[PABIL,
suononpoiday puy Sunuid
suonduosqng puy sang
S22IN0S3Y puy sjoog

SIOIAIOG [BUOISSIJO0I

dXd 440 GNILL dIVd JHAOTdNA

sjyauag juauKojduwiy 1504 12410

quuo) 12£ojdwg-duio) pargjaq
“L°LA ‘su juowko(dwiaup) el
su] uonesuadwio) §I9NIOM

wiay uonin ] /Sumutel], sakojdwyg
sAepijoH 93ko]dwg
s1ad[BD)-Juawamay

9107 ‘'8 01 |

00€SL-16-€0

00LTL-167€0
00¥TL-16-¢0
00CTL-167€0

0000L-16-€0

L1696-167€0

T695-16-¢0

02$95-16-€0
91696-16-¢0
S1596-16-¢0
C1696-16-¢0
60595-16-¢0
L0S9S-167€0

:pouad



Agenda Packet Page 204 of 238

dqejieAy %

JqeieAy

junowy paaqunouy

18A dALA

junowy @LA

9l Jo 9| 8bey

junowy pordgd junowy 3d8png

(Ad 121 - 910T/T1/4) smess 193png-10D

:sjeio], moday

910Z '8 01 | ‘potiad



Agenda Packet Page 205 of 238

NOJIHONNT AVAHLYIE - SNOILVTIY F9A0TdINA

NOFHONNT AVAHLYIE - SNOILLVTAY d9A0TdNY

dOHSXIOM FIAOTdAE - SNOILV T3 ddAO0TdINA
NOFHONNT AVAHLYIE - SNOILVTId F4AO0TdNA

13SAvdH HLOOLANTL - ANg LSdd

AVIIL AAVSYIAINNY - SNOLLVTTY JdAO0TdNG

dSOddNd

INNOJDV MEAN
910T ‘AYvNIddd

NAMO@AVAIL VSIA AAVIIANVYH LSl

0s°1C1

91816

029

w6e
12444
9L’01
LTL]
'S¢

INNONWV

$

B B BB

INNONV

# 2DHHO

910z/01/T
9102/01/C
910T/6/T
910¢/6/T
9102/8¢/1
9102/0¢/1

HDOYVHO 40 4Lvd



Agenda Packet Page 206 of 238

yES6l1

148189

WH/M HONN'T - INVINVLSTY SAVO MOINIVY 80°S¢
SHOIAYHES ONILSOH NIVINOH HNA 88°L01
J4LIINNOD DNINNVTd SNOILVTIY ddAO0TdNG - VZZId HOVTIIA 8¢°CS

d4SOddfd INNONV
LINNODOOV MAN

9102 ‘AdvVNIgdd
NAOAAVAEL VSIA AIVOIANVE LSYUIA

$

$

INNONV

# JDdHD

910¢/8/C
910Z/LT/1
9102/0T/1

HOYVHO 40 d1vd



Agenda Packet Page 207 of 238

6T’L $ LINNONV
S181¢ # 210dHO
SdI'IS HSVO ALLAd - NOZVINY 6CL $ 910z/¢/C
d4S0ddNd LNNONV dDYVHO 40 d1vd

LNNODOV MIN
910Z ‘AdvNIgdd
NMO@IVHYd VSIA @IVOINVE LSl



Agenda Packet Page 208 of 238

00911 $
L181S
SH44 J3AIO0TY ALNNOD ODIIA NVS 05°9L $
SH4d Y4AIOOTd ALNNOD ODIIA NVS 05°6¢ $
4S0ddNd LNNONWV

LNNODOV MIN
910T ‘AdvNydgdad
NAOAVAIL VSIA AIVOIANVE LSUId

INNONV

# 20dHO

910Z/01/¢
9102/127/1

HOYVHD 40 41vd



Agenda Packet Page 209 of 238

SNAFIDS FATVA IV ‘FATYA IV ‘SIVALS LLNG ‘SLINM L7109 DNV ‘SLAN TIVTd LYOHS ‘ONITdN0D - SYHOM YILVM NIILSIM
VIdOLTOOL

OSIN % SLYW - TIVYIAO TVILNIANYd

SIWIOLINN ATHLNOW - TTVIIAO TYILNAANYd

SINYOAINN ATHLNOW - TIVYIAO TVILNIANAd

JSIN % SLYI - TIVYIAO TVLLNIANYd

SIIOAINN ATHLNOW - TTVYFAO TVLLNAANdd

SIIOAINN ATHLNOW - TTVYFAO TYLLNIANId

TVYANID - STOIAYES TVOIT - dTTHOLIAVS % STIAVIIDYVH ‘A0D ‘01d0D0Ud

TVYANAD - SHOIAYES TVDAT - dTTHOLIAVS % STAVIIDYVH ‘AY0D ‘01d0D0Ud

INFWAOTANE % JOLVT - SADIAYIS TVOTT - d'1T HOLIAVS % STAVIUDUVH ‘AY0D ‘01d0D0Ud

AALYM - SADIAYAS TVDTT - dT7T HOLIAVS % STAVIADAVH ‘AU0D ‘01d0D0Ud

INOLSTIVD AUV 404 SYIMOTA - SYIMOTI0¥d

SNOILLYDIALLYED MOTINOVE - MOTINOVE AVINOTVd

JAVIO TVES Y3MOd ‘FATVA ALVD - ANITdId DI4I0Vd

ANA LIATID - LOdHd ADI440

SAVYL ONIMOV.LS HSIW ‘SALON LI-LSOd ‘LYIWNIVHD "YAA'TOH ¥AdVd “¥IATOH dND TIONEd “YITdVLS - LOdAA 401410
SYIVHO MSAA - LOdAd ADI440

SYVNIWES TYNOILLYN

L3 LLYMOO0I - NOYLY/M YALIN .1 - YTLIW TYNOLLYN

OO OVAOUIIN

LHOI'T QOO - NOILV.LS dWNd ATTLNNH - JAONIVID "M"M

ONIENL YALYM TI0D 1408 - YIONIVID "M'M

SAAVTE MVS MOVH ‘4dOd ddld NOT44L ‘LHOIT ALRNOAS “ONIENL YALVM TIOD 140S “LNN TV ‘STIAOHS - YFONIVID ‘MM
1OM4LSIA TOULNOD NOLLNTIOd ¥IV ODAIA NVS 40 ALNNOD

AVNIWAS ZANLLIVIN VSSANVA - NOLLYIOOSSY LOILSIA TVIOAdS VINYOAITYD

4Svd 11 SSV10 - ANVS Advydd

TV.LNZY NI ATHLNOW - ONIdWNd SVILY

F4LINOTHOOdAH - SANLSNANI YNYOIVY

WANLAOS YALYM - NVOITINO

AYVNYEE - VLVA VLA ALYEd0O¥d ANV V.LVA ADVOLION ‘HOUVAS dYW LSANDO TV - DIDOTII0D

dS0ddNd % JOANIA
SINNODOV H1Ood

910T ‘AdvNagdd
NAMOMAVIIL SSTIIXH NVOIIINY

y0'vLO'S6

cI81¢

£9°LL9'91
66°L9L
0L'SLI
90'€LT
81°TLE
89°'L6T
TY'SLT
y1ese
00'86L
05°661
£b1TS
00°SLTY
68
00'920°TT
88'796°C
€Ly
TOPOP‘1
SL'859
00'661
60'15€°8CT
66°€98
SE'E9IL
TsTYl
1S°1vL
89'985°C
00°0S1
¥9'520°S
00012
0L°861°1
00°€L
6v'T61

INNONWYV

$

LI A A A A - A A A AR A B B A B B S R R R B B T - B B S A<

INNONWV

#2103HD

910z/81/C
910T/9t/T
910T/5T/T
910z/sT/T
910T/5T/T
910T/9¢/1
910T/9¢/1
9102/9T/1
910Z/L1/T
910T/L1/T
9loc/Ll/C
910Z/L1/C
9loT/ic

910z/81/C
9102/01/T
910T/L1/T
910T/L1/T
910Z/L1/T
910¢/e/T

910T/L1/T
9102/9T/C
9102/81/C
910T/81/C
910T/81/C
910T/sT/T
910T/6T/1
910T/L1/T
9107/81/C
910z/1/C

910T/L1/T
910T/€/T

dDYVHD 40 4Lvd



Agenda Packet Page 210 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 211 of 238

00€SL-1¥-€0
00€SL-1¥-£0
00€SL-1¥-€0
00€SL-11-€0
00€SL-1¥-€0
00€SL-1¥-€0
00€SL-1¥-€0
00€SL-1¥-€0
00€SL-1¥-€0
00€SL-T¥-€0
000ZL-1%-€0

£1596-14-€0
000ZL-1%-€0
000TL-T1¥-£0
000ZL-14-€0

#1D

ZVIA ANNAY - HLVdTTIAS

ADV1S 444 - HLVdTIIS

YIATVAM DIVIN - HLVATIDIS

VOINNZ NOWVY - HLVdTIAS

ANOWIVIIVIN NHOI - HLVd TS

ZVIA ANNIY - HLVdTIIAS

ADVIS 444f - HLVdTIIS

ATV DAV - HLVA TS

VDINNZ NOWVY - HLVdTIIS

ANOWIVOIVIN NHOI - HLVATIIAS

LSI'TVIOAdS

ONILNNODJIV - TANVd MHIAYALNI - VZZId 9OV TTIA
NOFHONNT AVAHLYIL - SNOILVTIY A0 TdNA

YIDVNVIA SdO - TANVI MIIAYILNI - VZZId GDVTIA
av LNIFWAOTdNE - LSI'ISOIVID

av INGWAOTING -~ LSI'ISDIVID

dSOddNd

INNOJOV MEAN
910Z ‘HOIVIN

NAO@AVIYL VSIA MAVOIINVE LSUId

€E66L°T

els

06°€E
06'¢t
06°¢ce
06'¢e
06'¢te
00°69¢
00°69C
00°69¢
00°69¢
00°69¢
9TLE

¥6'88
€981
00°0L
000L

LNNONWV

€ 2 B A A A

& A

INNONV

# 210dHO

9102/8/€
910T/8/¢
910¢/8/¢
9102/8/¢
9102/8/¢
910¢/8/¢
910¢/8/¢
910T/8/¢
9107/8/¢
9107/8/€
910T/L/E

910T/¥/t
9102/Tt/T
9102/0¢/C
9102/02/C

dDYVHO 40 41vd



Agenda Packet Page 212 of 238

S$21004 - NOZVINV

$210049 - NOZVINV

INFWHSINATdTYE AVILLSVA S11

YTANIONT "D0SSV - MHIAYALNI T# - INVINVLSTA SAVO MOINIVYI
YOLVNINITA TIVING ALVIITdNA - TAVMLIOS AdddS

dS0ddNd

INNOJDY MAN
910Z ‘HOUVIN

SLY8I

1615

(444
[A44
00°0v
91°0L
$6'6C

INNONWYV

NAOOAVAIEL VSIA MIVIIINVE LSHIA

& H H N

LNNONWYV

# 2I0dHO

910T/5/€
910T/5/¢€
9102/L2/C
910¢/¥T/T
910¢/61/C

HOYVHO 40 41vd



Agenda Packet Page 213 of 238

#1D

- $ LNNONV

# J1DdHO

dSoddnd LNNONWV HDUVHO 40 41vd

LNNODOV MIN
910 ‘HOYVIN
NAOOIVAYL VSIA MIVOIINVI LSUId



Agenda Packet Page 214 of 238

S@MIVI ALINIXOYd - NOZVINV

YHATOH 49Advd dI 1998 41dVIOVILIY - NOZVINV
SYJA'TOH 4DAavd ALIAIXOY - NOZVINV
HOANLYVSD NOddld - NOZVINV

STIIIVE NIVY - SNOILNTOS ¥dLvVM NIV

YIAVd O1dNYV TVI1IOIA - DOIMEN

HOLIMS LANYFHLE LIGVOID LY0d-§ - 3OT-IdONON

H4S0ddNd

LNNODOV MAN
910Z ‘HOIVIN

88'891°1

EV6IS

6T8LY
0T°sT
€SIl
00v¢
§T06T
[4x44!
6998

LNNONWV

& B K B B

NAOQAVIIL VSIA AIVOIINVE LSl

LNNONYV

# 2IDHHO

9102/91/¢
910Z/91/¢
910T/V1/E
910T/v1/E
910¢/11/¢
910T/11/€
9102/22/T

HOYVHO 40 41vd



Agenda Packet Page 215 of 238

019%1-00-10
01¢¥91-00-10
0t9vi-00-10
TTre9-9¢-£0
000ZL-1¥-€0
000£9-9¢-£0
00€SL-1¥-€£0
00€SL-ST-€0
0002L-S€-10
000TL-S€-10
10v€9-11-€0
11595-14-€0
11596-11-€0
10v€9-11-€0
11595-14-€0
11595-1+-€0
11595-11-£0
€1595-11-£0
8S111-00-09/6¥¥10CI
00€0L-1¥-€0
00€0L-1t-€0
POvE9-s€-10
YOve9-s¢-10
019¥1-00-10
006ZL-1¥-€0
006ZL-1¥-€0
006ZL-1¥-€0
006ZL-1¥-€0
000TL-SE-10
019%1-00-10
000ZL-S€-10
000ZL-SE-10
001£9-€¥-€0
12v€9-9¢-€0
000ZL-vE-10
001£9-9¢-€0
000ZL-vE-10
019%1-00-10
10vE9-1¢-£0
10V£9-1¥-€0
000ZL-167€0
000ZL-16-€0
000ZL-16°€0
C169S-1¥-¢0
00£SL-ST-£0
00ESL-1¥-£0
000ZL-vE-10
000TL-vE-10
0002L-19-20
00ESL-1¥-€0
00€8L-19-20
00ESL-1¥-£0
00£SL-02-€0
000ZL-TE-10

#10

FONVD FANSSTU 'dVI INTFA WOOYHSNN AIZINVATYD ‘SdVDI GIZINVATVD ‘SONITANO0D TIILS - STHOM JALVM NYALSAM
‘SLT0€ 40-MVIud ‘Adld SSY¥E AT ‘STONV1d NO ATIM ‘dVD INIA IZINVATYD - SYHOM YALVM NIILSAM
FNA LIATED - SRIOM ALY M NYFLSIM

SLYW 40014 ALNA AAVEH - 2€# 1INN - HOALIFHLYIM

TANVd MTTAYILNI YFANIONT FLVIDOSSV Y04 HONNT - VZZId 3DVTTA

YDIVIIE INTWIAVA ILLYANINA 04 1D SONIRIAS INTWIOVTITY - ONI ‘GIMINTY ST00L

SAVA FALLVISIOFT VASD 9107 - AGINNTN WOL - SANITIIV LSIMHLNOS

SAVQ FALLYVISIOFTT VASD 9102 - MYOANVS YOLOHHIC - SANITIIV LSIMHINOS

MTYD YILIN - YFdVHOS LDISVD T00L - SYVAS

MTED ZLIN - 13S TOO0L SOINVHITW FO1d 85 NVINSLIVHD - SYVIS

OSIA % SLYI - TIVI3AO TYLLNIANYd

SIAHOAINN ATHLINOW - TTVHHAO TYLLNAANYd

SIWHOLINN ATHLNOW - TTVYIAO TYLINIANYd

JSIA % SLYW - TTVIIAO TVLINIANYd

SIWIOLINN ATHINOW - TIVHIAO TVLINIANAd

SWOAINN ATHINOW - TIVYIAO TYLINIANd

JNA LD - TIVIFAO TYLLNIANAd

VOHDO0 VNVRIQV YO SYIMOTA - SYIMO0TI0Nd

YALVM - SFOIANES TVOTT - dTTHOLIAVS 2 STAVIIOYVH ‘AY0D ‘01d0D0¥d

INSWAOTINE ¥ YOEVT - STOIAYES TVDIT - dTTHOLIAVS % STAVIIOUVH ‘A¥0D ‘01d0J0dd

WALVM - STOIAYIS TVDIT- dTTHILIAVS # STIAVIIOUVH ‘AY0D ‘01d000Ud

SNOLLVIILLEID MOTINOVE - MOTDAOVE YIVINOTVd

SNOILLVIIJLLYAD MOTDADVE - MOTDIOVE IVINO'TVd

FATVA MV OGN0 41 “STT4dIN SSVHH - ANITdId JLIIJVd

SNIGHSNd “YANNV1d ATIVA ‘AVIL YEL19T YEINOL ‘HdV.L ALIHM NO MOVT1d NI - 1043d 01410
D010 WANOL ‘QIVOLIAT ‘LSTALOO ‘LSTIOVE ‘SNId “YIAOWHY H1dVLS ‘STIEVTONIAIIHS “IZINVOEO - LOdId AD1340
SYIATOA T4 ANV STIOTIANT ‘NOGEN YAINNd ¥AdVd ‘SHIA0D LHOdTd - LOdAd FDI440

4Na LA - L0d3d 01110

14T 1LLYM00! - NOUL/M ¥FLTN .1 - Y319 TYNOLLYN

WOLVINOTA NOULYVM YIALTW o€ ¥ 14T LLVMO00! - NOULVM HILIN WZI/1 W1 “Wb/€ u8/5 - YALIN TYNOLLVN
TAMOUL GNVH dRID T3 ‘MVS gV DNIATOA "LIS IAVTE TIVZMVS - 10ddd INOH

SWOOYE HSNd ANV VY INLL - SYDNUL YALIN - L0dId TNOH

HOLVYANAD - LOdIA INOH

TdNA ITOAD ¥ - 1LO0dad FINOH

$J001AVd TTIVATITY - SNOLLONA0Yd 3DA0H

YIANTAD ANVAOUd LA TR0 - TAVM@IVH SINVH

SYFAAVT NOLLOMNAULSNOD 40 INFWNHIVTdTY - YIDONIVIO ‘M'M

SINIVd AVYdS ATLIIVS VHSO ANV SINIVd ONDRIVIN - YIONIVID 'M'M

SLIHOITQOOTd GAT- YAONIVID ‘MM

YANLJOS 43LVAM - NVOITIND

AdVNAEdd - VIVA TV.19a ALY3d0¥d ANV VLVA 3DVOLIOW ‘HOUVES dVIN LSANO TV - JID0TIH0D
A¥VNNEHA - VIVA TV13d ALNEd0dd ANV VIVA 3OVOLIOW ‘HOUVES dVIN 1SANO TV - DID0TII0D
1JO4TI TIV13d ALYIdOUd - JID0TTI0D

JOHSYOM ADNIDIAAT SN YALVM | IAVID - AVED VIHINAD - NOLLOFS VAVAIN-VINYOIITVO
@IOANVS YOLOTIIA - FIINTITINOD - NOLLVIDOSSY LOMLLSIA TVIDAdS VINIOATVD

AQANNTY WOL - FONTYFINOD - NOLLVIDOSSY LORILSIA TVIOAdS VINIOATTYD

4SVd I SSV1D - ANVS AQvid

4SVE I SSV1D - ANVS Aavid

SAXVL ASN STTVS $10Z - NOLVZITVNOL 40 auvod

AGINNTY WOL - NOLLISOdXT ANV FONTIFINOD TVINNV VMMV

TVINTY NI ATHLNOW - DNIJNNd SVLLY

AGQENNT WOL ‘W'D - SONTHFINOD ¥ TALOH ‘TAVAAIV - NOLLIGIHXE ¥ SONTIIINOD ONIIAS VMOV
LIVMALS JOLOTAIA - IONTHTINOD 2 TALOH ‘TAVIAIV - NOLLIGIHXH % FONTITINOD DNIYAS VMOV
F1NOTHOOdAH - SHRLLSNANI VNVOEV

dSOANd #? JOANTA
LNNOJDV MIAN

910 ‘HOYVIN
NMO@AVIYL SSTAIXT NVORIANY

9L'88Y'L6

ov6l1s

¥TLI0L
LUISI6
(1v6st)
$6'69
9T'LE
S0°L8
96187
96'18Z
80°09¢€
1349
0£'9
y1'26
65271
91182
T6'0LE
8¥'50S
(ve'Ls)
L¥'S9
0S°L66
05°0v6
06'688°€
00'vbL'9
00°820°Y1
9€'8€6'1
LTLIE]
98'9t9
88'€SE'T
(9g'L91)
00°S9€'Y
19°SLS 1€
€0°ZEl
ELYEL
Z6'3L0°1
$0'LST
rI'zs
66191
19°58%
L8'T0€
16'€8Y
00'SL
0002
05261
68T
000SS
00°SLL
00'sLL
77969
LO'S8Y'S
SEV01
00°S6L
00012
9S'€T1‘l
9G€TI‘l
TETIUY'T

INNOWV

$

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R B B A B T I O I e B A I I e I I I A B I I I I B L BB BB I ]

INNOWYV

#J03HD

91/5T/€0
91/01/€0
9l/0l/e0
91/81/£0
9l/l/e0
Si/1l/e0
91/91/€0
9l9l/e0
9l/sz/e0
91/5T/L0
91/v1/£0
Suvl/eo
Si/vl/E0
91/01/€0
s/ol/e0
91/01/£0
9t/0t/e0
9V/1Z/e0
91/52/£0
91/57/£0
91/57/£0
91/80/£0
91/80/€0
91/8%/£0
91/5Z/£0
91/01/£0
91/80/£0
91/80/£0
91/80/£0
91/80/£0
91/51/€0
S1/L0/€0
SI/L1/E0
91/£0/£0
91/¥0/£0
91/01/€0
91/87/€0
91/87/€0
91/87/€0
9l9l/E0
91/£0/€0
91/£0/£0
91/8Z/€0
ol/L1/€0
91/91/€0
91/91/€0
Sl/o1/€0
91/80/€0
S1/€T/E0
91/1Z/€0
Suvi/e0
91/81/€0
91/81/£0
91/01/€0

HDYVHO 40 41vd



Agenda Packet Page 216 of 238



Disbursement
Date

07/31/15

08/31/15

09/30/15

10/31/15

11/30/15

12/31/15

Description

CAL PERS - HEALTH INS.

ASSURANT - DENTAL INS.

CSDA,SAN DIEGO CHAPTER

WATER AGENCIES ASSOC OF S.D.

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES

DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

MILEAGE EXPENSE

REIMBURSEMENT FROM DIRECTORS
Monthly Totals

CAL PERS - HEALTH INS.

ASSURANT - DENTAL INS.

CSDA,SAN DIEGO CHAPTER

WATER AGENCIES ASSOC OF S.D.

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES

DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

MILEAGE EXPENSE

REIMBURSEMENT FROM DIRECTORS
Monthly Totals

CAL PERS - HEALTH INS.
ASSURANT - DENTAL INS.

CSDA,SAN DIEGO CHAPTER

WATER AGENCIES ASSOC OF S.D.

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES

DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

MILEAGE AND EXPENSES

REIMBURSEMENT FROM DIRECTORS
Monthly Totals

CAL PERS - HEALTH INS.

ASSURANT - DENTAL INS.

CSDA,SAN DIEGO CHAPTER

WATER AGENCIES ASSOC OF S.D.

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES

DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

MILEAGE AND EXPENSES

REIMBURSEMENT FROM DIRECTORS
Monthly Totals

CAL PERS - HEALTH INS.

ASSURANT - DENTAL INS.

CSDA,SAN DIEGO CHAPTER

WATER AGENCIES ASSOC OF S.D.

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES

DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

MILEAGE EXPENSE

REIMBURSEMENT FROM DIRECTORS
Monthly Totals

CAL PERS - HEALTH INS.

ASSURANT - DENTAL INS.

CSDA,SAN DIEGO CHAPTER

WATER AGENCIES ASSOC OF S.D.

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES

DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

MILEAGE EXPENSE

REIMBURSEMENT FROM DIRECTORS
Monthly Totals

Agenda Packet Page 217 of 238

FY 2015-2016

Bob Jack Dennis Helene Tory Paul
Lucy-21 Griffiths-22 Sanford-25 Brazier-27 Walker-29 Christensen
$ 340.62
$ 25.00
$ 30000 $§ 30000 $§ 30000 $ 30000 $ 300.00
$ (340.62)
$ 30000 $§ 300.00 $ 30000 $ 30000 $ 32500 $ -
$ 340.56
$ 456.20
$  (340.56)
$ - 8 = $ 45620 $§ - $ - $ E
$ 340.56
$ 25.00
$ 30000 $ 30000 $ 450.00 $ 300.00 $ 450.00
$ 29.34
$ (340.56)
$ 30000 $ 32934 $§ 450.00 $ 300.00 $ 475.00 $ =
$ 340.56
$ 15000 $ 150.00 $ 150.00 $ 150.00
$ 17534
$ (340.56)
$ - 3 150.00 § 32534 $ 150.00 § 150.00 $ -
$ 340.56
$ 35.96
$ 300.00 $ 450.00 $ 90000 $ 450.00 $ 600.00
$ (340.56)
$ 30000 $ 450.00 $ 93596 $ 450.00 $ 600.00 $ -
$ 340.56
$ 15000 $ 150.00 $ 150.00 $ 150.00 $ 150.00
$  (340.56)

$ 15000 $§ 15000 $ 150.00 $ 150.00 $ 150.00 § -

Page 10of 2



Agenda Packet Page 218 of 238

FY 2015-2016

Disbursement Bob Jack Dennis Helene Tory Paul
Date Description Lucy-21 Griffiths-22 Sanford-25 Brazier-27 Walker-29 Christensen
01/31/16 CAL PERS - HEALTH INS. $ 340.56

ASSURANT - DENTAL INS.

CSDA,SAN DIEGO CHAPTER

CSDA TRAINING

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES $ 25.00

DIRECTORS' MEETINGS $ - $ 15000 §$ 30000 $ 150.00 $ 300.00

MILEAGE EXPENSE

REIMBURSEMENT FROM DIRECTORS $ (340.56)

Monthly Totals $ - $ 15000 $ 30000 $ 15000 $ 32500 $ -

02/28/16 CAL PERS - HEALTH INS. $ 340.56

ASSURANT - DENTAL INS.
CSDA,SAN DIEGO CHAPTER
CSDA TRAINING
COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES $ 25.00
DIRECTORS' MEETINGS $ 150.00 $§ 30000 $ 150.00 $ 300.00
MILEAGE EXPENSE $ 9.18
REIMBURSEMENT FROM DIRECTORS
Monthly Totals $ - $ 159.18 _$§ 300.00 $ 150.00 $ 325.00

(340.56)

€2 |en

03/31/16 CAL PERS - HEALTH INS.
ASSURANT - DENTAL INS.
CSDA TRAINING
WATER AGENCIES ASSOC OF S.D.
COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES
DIRECTORS' MEETINGS
MILEAGE EXPENSE
REIMBURSEMENT FROM DIRECTORS
Monthly Totals $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

04/30/16 CAL PERS - HEALTH INS.
ASSURANT - DENTAL INS.
CSDA,SAN DIEGO CHAPTER
WATER AGENCIES ASSOC OF S.D.
COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES
DIRECTORS' MEETINGS
MILEAGE EXPENSE
REIMBURSEMENT FROM DIRECTORS
Monthly Totals $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

05/31/16  CAL PERS - HEALTH INS.
ASSURANT - DENTAL INS.
VALLEY CENTER MWD
CSDA-SAN DIEGO CHAPTER
COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES
DIRECTORS' MEETINGS
MILEAGE EXPENSE
REIMBURSEMENT FROM DIRECTORS
Monthly Totals 3 - 8 - $ - % - $ - $ -

06/30/16  CAL PERS - HEALTH INS.
COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES
VALLEY CENTER MWD
WATER AGENCIES ASSOC OF S.D.
COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES
DIRECTORS' MEETINGS
MILEAGE EXPENSE
REIMBURSEMENT FROM DIRECTORS
Monthly Totals $ - % - 8 - 8 - § - 3 -

Pane 2 nf?2



RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER Dlé&-enda PaCket Page 21 9 Of 238

FOR BOARD INFORMATION
March 31, 2016

GENERAL LEDGER
Check No Check Date Payee and Description Check Amount
51809 03/03/2016 AFLAC
HEALTH AND ACCIDENTAL INSURANCE
$ 159.06
$ 159.06
51810 03/03/2016 COLONIAL LIFE & ACCIDENT INS.
HEALTH AND ACCIDENTAL INSURANCE
$ 60.71
$ 60.71
51812 03/03/2016 LINCOLN NATIONAL
PR Batch 00003.02.2016 Lincoln Life
PR Batch 00003.02.2016 Lincoln - Employer $ 8,006.50
$ 3,802.50
$ 11,809.00
Total for 3/3/2016: $ 12,802.27

51813 03/09/2016 AMERICAN EXPRESS
CA Special District Association - Vaneesa Matrinzez - Seminar

Monthly Rental Agreement $ 150.00
Star12 Renewal - Seminars $ 73.00
Flowers for Larry Carlstom $ 199.00
Office Chairs $ 89.42
5 Drawer Road Chest $ 658.75
Monthly Uniforms $ 767.99
Mats & Misc. $ 130.56
Monthly Uniforms $ 128.28
Monthly Uniforms $ 92.48
Monthly Uniforms $ 123.71
Monthly Uniforms $ 92.48
Mats & Misc. $ 122.02
Monthly Uniforms $ 6.30
Monthly Uniforms $ 90.46
Mats & Misc. $ 127.35
Monthly Uniforms $ 163.10
Monthly Uniforms $ 90.46
Mats & Misc. $ 122.81
Monthly Uniforms $ 6.30
Mats & Misc. $ 92.14
Monthly Uniforms $ 6.30
Mats & Misc. $ 128.87
Monthly Uniforms $ 163.10
Class |l Base $ 90.46
Class |l Base $ 2,250.56
Class |l Base $ 1,692.52
Annual Permit Renewal for Natural Gas Engines at PS #1 $ 1,082.56
Gate Valves $ 2,586.68
Power Seal Clamp $ 1,708.57
Gate Valves $ 569.12
Male Meter Thread $ 3,685.18
Male Meter Thread $ 66.42
Flange Bolt Kit, Flare Adaptor $ 92.99
Coupling, Steel Plug, Swivel Adaptor $ 357.80
Short Flare Nut, Flare Adaptor $ 2,612.35
Range Gasket, Center Ring, Trackhead, End Ring $ 99.04
Center Ring $ 405.84
Flange Bolt Kit $ 85.56
Butt Strap, Air Valve Combo $ 362.88
Bolt Kit with Double Washers, Flange Tee, Air Vac $ 6,753.78
Repair Kit $ 4,414.40
Galvanized Vent Cap $ 1,166.40
Monthly Bin Rental $ 260.17
Legal Services $ 210.00
Legal Services $ 199.50
Legal Services $ 4,275.00
Legal Services $ 798.00
Backflow Certifications $ 521.43
Backflow Certifications $ 7,554.00
Backflow Certifications $ 7,296.00
Data Loggers $ 7,176.00
Realquest Map Seach, Mortgage Data and Property Detail Data $ 863.99
Cartridges, Paper $ 192.50
Toner $ 292.05



RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER D.Agﬁnda Packet Page 220 of 238

FOR BOARD INFORMATION
March 31, 2016

GENERAL LEDGER
Check No Check Date Payee and Description Check Amount
Toner $ 165.33
Stapler, Pencil Cip, Paper Holder, Post-it Notes, Chairmat, Pens $ 314.27
Mesh Stacking Letter Tray $ 111.94
DVD-R Spindle $ 27.51
USB Drive $ 156.38
2 Shelf Cart $ 80.35
Credit Due $ 105.94
Markers, Staples, Posted Stamp, Binders, Clipboard $ (41.73)
Pens $ 226.04
File Jackets, Stamp, Pens, Duster $ 7.87
Pens $ 74.19
Laminating Pouch $ 7.87
3-Tier Swivel Dish $ 5.17
Soft Coil Water Tubing $ 30.11
Shovels, Brass Tube $ 142.52
Huntley Pump Station - LED Floodligjht $ 491.39
Tefion Pipe Dope, Hacksaw Blades, Brush $ 163.35
Hypochlorite Solution $ 250.12
1" Meter w/ltron - 100WATT ERT $ 1,198.70
1" Meter w/ltron - 100WATT ERT $ 3,974.40
$ 24,376.69
$ 95,074.04
51814 03/09/2016 FIRST BANKCARD
Domain Hosting Service by Grable Graphics
Employee Relations - Lunch with the General Manager $ 107.88
Employee Relations - Event Planning Committee $ 35.08
$ 52.38
$ 195.34
51815 03/09/2016 FIRST BANKCARD
Petty Cash Slips
3$ 7.29
$ 7.29
51816 03/09/2016 FIRST BANKCARD
Employee Relations - Anniversay Break
Bluetooth Headset $ 25.41
Employee Relations - Quarterly Birthday Luncheon $ 17.27
Employee Relations - Quarterly Birthday Luncheon $ 10.76
Employee Relations - Quarterly Birthday Luncheon $ 39.42
Employee Relations - Workshop $ 6.20
$ 22.44
$ 121.50
51817 03/09/2016 FIRST BANKCARD
San Diego County Recorder Fees
San Diego County Recorder Fees $ 39.50
$ 76.50
H 116.00
51818 03/09/2016 MICHAEL ADAMS
Refund on closed account
$ 80.63
$ 80.63
51819 03/09/2016 MIRAMAR TRUCK CENTER-SAN DIEGO
Unite #32 - Replacement
$ 91,523.66
$ 91,523.66
51820 03/09/2016 MK CIRCA, LLC
Refund on overpayment on Account #29-8268-0
Refund on overpayment on Account #29-8269-0 $ 1,608.36
$ 1,873.03
$ 3,481.39
51821 03/09/2016 PLIC-SBD GRAND ISLAND
Monthly Dental Insurance
$ 6,124.02

$ 6,124.02



rasow municipAL water oifdg@nda Packet Page 221 of 238

FOR BOARD INFORMATION
March 31, 2016

GENERAL LEDGER
Check No Check Date Payee and Description Check Amount
51822 03/09/2016 RESERVE ACCOUNT
Postage for Admin. Postage Machine
$ 3,300.00
$ 3,300.00
51823 03/09/2016 ROSE FAMILY TRUST
Refund on closed account
$ 91.89
$ 91.89
51824 03/09/2016 VERNON WILLIS
Refund for overpayment
$ 1,242.68
$ 1,242.68
Total for 3/9/2016: $ 201,358.44
51825 03/15/2016 ACTIVE AUTO COLLISION
Unit #41 - Repair Front Bumper
Unit #42 - Repair Front Bumper $ 377.03
$ 321.20
$ 698.23
51826 03/15/2016 AIRGAS SAFETY INC
New PPE for Ed Bradley - Tanking Climbing/Sewer Fall Protection
New PPE for Ed Bradiey - Tanking Climbing/Sewer Fall Protection $ 289.78
Replacement of PPE Supplies $ 304.36
$ 220.91
$ 815.05
51827 03/15/2016 AIRGAS USA, LLC
Monthly Agreement
$ 119.47
$ 119.47
51828 03/15/2016 AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOC.
Annual Membership Renewal - April 2016 - March 2017
$ 1,920.00
$ 1,920.00
51829 03/15/2016 AMERIGAS - TEMECULA
Lift Station #1 - Propane
Lift Station #5 - Propane $ 106.92
$ 117.72
$ 224.64
51830 03/15/2016 ART'S TRENCH PLATE &
Trench Plate Rental
Trench Plate Rental $ 180.00
Trench Plate Rental $ 1,580.00
$ 757.00
$ 2,517.00
51831 03/15/2016 ATKINS NORTH AMERICA, INC
2015 Updates to Water/Wastewater Master Plans
2015 Updates to Water/Wastewater Master Plans $ 21,983.90
$ 21,983.90
$ 43,967.80
51832 03/15/2016 BABCOCK LABORATORIES, INC
Monthly Water Anaylsis
Monthly Water Anaylsis $ 105.00
Monthly Water Anaylsis $ 15.00
Monthly Water Anaylsis $ 125.00
Monthly Water Anaylsis $ 30.00
Monthly Water Anaylsis $ 75.00
Monthly Water Anaylsis $ 60.00
Monthly Water Anaylsis $ 15.00
$ 30.00
$ 455.00



rainsow municiaL waTer oidvg@gnda Packet Page 222 of 238

FOR BOARD INFORMATION
March 31, 2016

GENERAL LEDGER
Check No Check Date Payee and Description Check Amount
51833 03/15/2016 BIRD FAMILY TIRE AND AUTO
Unit #20 - Evaporator Valve, Charge A/C
$ 313.43
$ 313.43
51834 03/15/2016 BOB COLEMAN
Payment on District Claim
$ 1,562.01
$ 1,562.01
51835 03/15/2016 BONSALL PEST CONTROL
$ 90.00
$ 90.00
51836 03/15/2016 BP BATTERY
Battery
Unit #247 - Battery $ 207.01
$ 43.69
$ 250.70
51837 03/15/2016 BRIAN FONSECA
Employee Computer Assistance Program
$ 2,000.00
$ 2,000.00
51838 03/15/2016 BRYAN ROSE
Reimbursement for Plant Maintenance Tech. Grade 1 Renewal Fee
$ 81.00
$ 81.00
51839 03/15/2016 CONTROLLED MOTION SOLUTIONS
Unit #75 - Hose, Fitting, Miniclamp
$ 19.21
$ 19.21
51840 03/15/2016 COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES
Tom Kennedy's Attendance at COWU Meeting
Tory Walker's Attendance at COWU Meeting $ 25.00
$ 25.00
$ 50.00
51841 03/15/2016 COVERALL NORTH AMERICA, INC
Monthly Service
$ 995.00
$ 995.00
51842 03/15/2016 CROP PRODUCTION SVC INC,
Unit #247 - Fuel Pump Kit
$ 110.46
$ 110.46
51843 03/15/2016 CWEA
Annual Membership Renewal for Chris Hand - ID #0000443381
Annual Membership Renewal forRuben Lopez - ID #0000441001 $ 164.00
$ 164.00
$ 328.00
51844 03/15/2016 DATAPROSE INC.

Monthly Mailing of Water Bills and Newsletters

Monthly Mailing of Water Bills and Newsletters $ 2,869.36
Monthly Mailing of Water Bills and Newsletters $ 1,027.56
Monthly Mailing of Water Bills and Newsletters $ 503.41
$ 2,049.19
$ 6,449.52



ransow municieaL water ifhggNda Packet Page 223 of 238

FOR BOARD INFORMATION
March 31, 2016

GENERAL LEDGER
Check No Check Date Payee and Description Check Amount
51845 03/15/2016 DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION
Relocation of Sewer Facailities Hi-Way 76 - Final Payment
$ 178,460.81
$ 178,460.81
51846 03/15/2016 DRAVES PIPELINE, INC
River Village
$ 5,206.67
$ 5,206.67
51847 03/15/2016 EMPLOYEE RELATIONS, INC
New Hire Background Check
$ 250.15
$ 250.15
51848 03/15/2016 FALLBROOK AUTO PARTS
Unit #23 & #24 - Qil Filter, Air Filter, Fleet Supplies
Unit #4 - Serpentine Blet, Curved Hoses, Thermostat $ 159.49
$ 72.48
$ 231.97
51849 03/15/2016 FALLBROOK IRRIGATION SUPPLIES
Fence Silt with Stakes
$ 431.76
$ 431.76
51850 03/15/2016 FALLBROOK OIL CO
Fuel Deliveries
Fuel Deliveries $ 180.85
Fuel Deliveries $ 382.55
Fuel Deliveries $ 606.49
Fuel Deliveries $ 484.70
Fuel Deliveries $ 190.61
$ 577.22
$ 2,422.42
51851 03/15/2016 FALLBROOK WASTE AND RECYCLING
Refuse Service - Lower Yard
Monthly Refuse and Recycle $ 943.00
Monthly Refuse and Recycle $ 123.25
$ 212.30
$ 1,278.55
51852 03/15/2016 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1083
Villa Fore - Ball Angle Meter Valve
Steel Coupling, Weld Flange, 1" Copper 45 $ 501.64
$ 385.56
$ 887.20
51853 03/15/2016 FORD OF ESCONDIDO
Unit #20 - Clutch
$ 330.39

$ 330.39



rainsow municipaL waTer ifxg@nda Packet Page 224 of 238
PO e a1, 018

GENERAL LEDGER
Check No Check Date Payee and Description Check Amount
51854 03/15/2016 HAWTHORNE LIFT SYSTEMS
Unit #170 - Drive Wheel Reservoir
$ 904.24
$ 904.24
51855 03/15/2016 HAWTHORNE MACHINERY COMPANY
Unit #105 - Various Parts
$ 203.53
203.53
51856 03/15/2016 HOME DEPOT
Credit Due
Steel Stake, DynaFlex, Lumber $ (56.72)
Huntley Pump Station - Conduit, 90 Degree Elbow $ 75.50
Metal Disc Wheel, Cable Ties, Umbrella $ 65.30
Pipe Thread Tape, Gas Leak Dectector, GFCI Outlet $ 163.94
Conduit, Coupling, Reducing Bushing, Cover, Compression Coupling $ 68.02
Small Angle Grinder $ 168.77
Cord Cover $ 127.44
Conduit, Spring Nut, Reducing Bushing $ 61.37
$ 4217
$ 715.79
51857 03/15/2016 INNOVYZE, INC.
Water and Sewer Models System Support
$ 3,500.00
3,500.00
51858 03/15/2016 JOE'S HARDWARE
100ft Phone Line
Jig Saw Blades $ 12.30
Mouse Bait Station $ 18.45
$ 4.70
$ 35.45
51859 03/15/2016 KEVIN MILLER
Reimburse Retired Employee Health Ins - March 2016
$ 726.00
$ 726.00
51860 03/15/2016 KNIGHT SECURITY & FIRE SYSTEMS
Replaced Greybar on Roof Hatch, Evaluated Bldg 2 Restroom Window
$ 118.00
$ 118.00
51861 03/15/2016 MISSION RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT
Home Water Use Evaluations - February 2016
$ 187.50
$ 187.50
51862 03/15/2016 MITEL LEASING
Lease Agreement
$ 575.70

$ 575.70



ransow municipaL water oifv@@nda Packet Page 225 of 238

FOR BOARD INFORMATION
March 31, 2016

GENERAL LEDGER
Check No Check Date Payee and Description Check Amount
51863 03/15/2016 MODULAR BUILDING CONCEPTS, INC

Rental Agreement

Rental Agreement $ 248.40
$ 478.44
$ 726.84
51864 03/15/2016 NETWORK FLEET, INC.
Monthly Airtime Charges for GPS Tracking - March 2016
$ 780.00
$ 780.00
51865 03/15/2016 QUALITY CHEVROLET
Unit #24 - Connector
Unit #24 - Oil Line Connector $ 43.94
Unit #24 - Hoses $ 40.20
Unit #18 - Resistor, Connector $ 101.84
$ 138.14
$ 324.12
51866 03/15/2016 REM MECHANICAL, INC
Repairs
$ 680.00
$ 680.00
51867 03/15/2016 RHO MONSERATE C.C.H.A.
Electric Charge
$ 435.33
$ 435.33
51868 03/15/2016 RICARDO ZARAGOZA
Reimbursement for Tuition Fees - Operation of WW Treatment
$ 237.68
$ 237.68
51869 03/15/2016 RYAN HERCO PRODUCTS CORP
Check Valve Repair Kit and Pressure Relief Valve Rebuild Kit
$ 174.14
$ 174.14
51870 03/15/2016 SAN DIEGO COUNTY ASSESSOR/RECORDER/CLERK
Acct #51-6203-2 - Recording Release of Lien
Acct #07-8244-0 - Recording Release of Lien $ 13.00
$ 13.00
$ 26.00
51871 03/15/2016 SAN DIEGO COUNTY FARM BUREAU
Regional Agricultural Water Management Plan
$ 4,637.50
$ 4,637.50
51872 03/15/2016 SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC
Monthly Electric Service
Monthly Electric Service $ 9.24
Monthly Electric Service $ 12.00
$ 5,208.12
$ 5,229.36
51873 03/15/2016 SOUTHWEST ANSWERING SERVICE, INC.
Monthly Answering Service
$ 1,665.34
$ 1,665.34
51874 03/15/2016 STONEY-MILLER CONSULTANTS, INC.
As-Needed Hydrogeologist Services
$ 6,841.00

$ 6,841.00



rainsow municipaL waTer oifk@@nda Packet Page 226 of 238
FOR BOARD INFORMATION
March 31, 2016
GENERAL LEDGER

Check No Check Date Payee and Description Check Amount

51875 03/15/2016 T.R.Y. ENTERPRISES, INC.
Patrol Services for March 2016 for the District Yard

Patrol Services for March 2016 - Huntley Pump Station $ 510.00
$ 475.00
$ 985.00
51876 03/15/2016 TCN, INC
Monthly 48 Hour Notice Calls
$ 16.82
$ 16.82
51877 03/15/2016 TETRA TECH, INC.
As-Needed Construction Support Services
$ 17,262.24
$ 17,262.24
51878 03/15/2016 TK CONSTRUCTION
Afton Farms Waterline Extension
$ 68,115.00
$ 68,115.00
51879 03/15/2016 TONY'S CUSTOM UPHOLSTERY
Unit #20 - Drivers Side Seat Repair & Arm Rest Repair
Unit #41 - Drivers Side Seat Repair $ 400.00
$ 179.00
$ 579.00
51881 03/15/2016 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT
Locate Utilities
$ 132.00
$ 132.00
51882 03/15/2016 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE
Monthly Short Term Disability
$ 588.00
$ 588.00
51883 03/15/2016 VICTOR VEENSTRA
15 Year Anniversary
$ 200.00
$ 200.00
51884 03/15/2016 WESTERN LANDSCAPE MAINT PLUS,
Landscape Maintenance Service
$ 483.00
$ 483.00
51885 03/15/2016 WESTERN SALES, LLC
Carbon Odor Control for Manholes and Lift Stations
$ 464.60
$ 464.60
51886 03/15/2016 XEROX CORP.
Monthly Lease
Monthly Lease $ 686.73
$ 744.21
$ 1,430.94
Total for 3/15/2016: $ 371,446.56
ACH 03/17/2016 LINCOLN NATIONAL
RETIREMENT
RETIREMENT 3 4,062.50
$ 8,566.50
$ 12,629.00
51899 03/17/2016 AFLAC
HEALTH AND ACCIDENTAL INSURANCE $ 159.06
$ 159.06
51900 03/17/2016 COLONIAL LIFE & ACCIDENT INS.
HEALTH AND ACCIDENTAL INSURANCE $ 60.71

$ 60.71



rainsow municipaL waer oifk@@nda Packet Page 227 of 238
e

GENERAL LEDGER
Check No Check Date Payee and Description Check Amount
51901 03/17/2016 ACWA
Publication/Subscription - Guidelines for Conduct & AB1234 Comp. $ 24.00
$ 24.00
51902 03/17/2016 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.
Acrobat Pro Licenses - 1 Year $ 1,716.80
Card Printer for Secure Site Access & Warranty $ 1,894.96
$ 3,611.76
51903 03/17/2016 CO'S TRAFFIC CONTROL, INC.
Rentals $ 2,233.00
Traffic Control $ 260.00
Rental $ 2,233.00
$ 4,726.00
51904 03/17/2016 CWEA
Annual Memebership Renewal for Brain Fonseca - ID#0000301821 $ 164.00
$ 164.00
51905 03/17/2016 DAR FRYER HYDRAULICS, INC
Diagnose/Repair in Ground Lift in Garage 3 1,281.47
$ 1,281.47
51906 03/17/2016 FALLBROOK EQUIPMENT RENTAL
Light Tower Rental $ 244.00
1/2 Yard Concrete $ 140.40
1/4 Yard Concrete $ 129.60
$ 514.00
51907 03/17/2016 ROSTEK TRUST
Refund for Overpayment $ 141.53
$ 141.53
Total for 3/17/2016: § 24,085.03
51526 03/24/2016 AIRGAS SAFETY INC
Replacement of PPE $ 132.54
Replacement of PPE $ 33.13
$ 165.67
51527 03/24/2016 AIRGAS USA, LLC
Black Welding Helmet $ 43.50
$ 43.50
51528 03/24/2016 ALL THINGS FALLBROOK
Replacement of PPE $ 673.38
$ 673.38
51529 03/24/2016 AMERIGAS - TEMECULA
Propane Gas $ 2,062.23
$ 2,062.23
51530 03/24/2016 ART'S TRENCH PLATE &
Trench Plate Rental $ 30.00
Trench Plate Rental $ 250.00
Trench Plate Rental $ 105.00
$ 385.00



ransow MunicieaL waTer oifk@@nda Packet Page 228 of 238
FOR BOARD INFORMATION
March 31, 2016

GENERAL LEDGER
Check No Check Date Payee and Description Check Amount
51531 03/24/2016 AT&T
Monthly Phone Service $ 76.70
Monthly Phone Service $ 90.88
$ 167.58
51632 03/24/2016 AT&T
Monthly Phone Service $ 21.49
Monthly Phone Service $ 18.07
Monthly Phone Service $ 18.16
Monthly Phone Service $ 406.57
Monthly Phone Service $ 50.71
Monthly Phone Service $ 39.80
$ §54.80
51533 03/24/2016 AT&T LONG DISTANCE
Monthly Phone Service $ 16.07
$ 16.07
51534 03/24/2016 AYALA ENGINEERING, INC.
Work to Stop Groundwater Infiltration $ 2,600.00
$ 2,600.00
51535 03/24/2016 BANNER DAY, INC
Huntley PS - Weed Abatement $ 2,850.00
$ 2,850.00
51536 03/24/2016 CHARLES C. SNEED
Reimburse Retired Employee Health Ins - March 2016 $ 363.00
$ 363.00
51537 03/24/2016 COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO-DPW
Road Permits $ 498.00
$ 498.00
51538 03/24/2016 DRAVES PIPELINE, INC
Via Encinos - 8" Water Main Repair $ 11,591.45
$ 11,591.45
51539 03/24/2016 ED BRADLEY
Reimbursement for Work Safety Boots $ 145.79
$ 145.79
51540 03/24/2016 FALLBROOK AUTO PARTS
Fuel Line Hose, Shop Supplies, Fuel Filter $ 80.75
Thermostat & Seal, Qil Filter $ 28.92
Unit #53-0il & Fuel Filter, Whee! Nut Cover, Unit #4-Air Filter $ 47.25
$ 156.92
51541 03/24/2016 FALLBROOK EQUIPMENT RENTAL
3/4 Yard Concrete Mix $ 162.00
1 Yard Concrete Mix $ 183.60
$ 345.60
51542 03/24/2016 FALLBROOK GLASS, INC.
Rework and Repair Existing Window in Bldg. 2 Restroom $ 378.00

$ 378.00



rainsow municieaL water idh@@nda Packet Page 229 of 238

FOR BOARD INFORMATION
March 31, 2016

GENERAL LEDGER
Check No Check Date Payee and Description Check Amount
51543 03/24/2016 FEDEX
Delivery Service $ 52.64
$ 52.64
51908 03/24/2016 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1083
3/4", 1", 1 1/2" and 2" Couplings $ 2,882.52
B/S Spring Range $ 3,027.54
Bali Corporatoin Stop $ 990.36
300PSI Gauge, 300 & 600 PSI Liquid Fill Gauge, 30PSI Liquid Gaug $ 837.00
Flange Bolt Kit $ 1,101.60
Brass Nipples $ 116.94
Wharfheads $ 2,566.08
$ 11,522.04
51909 03/24/2016 GIL FRANCO, TIRE HAULER
Used Tires Disposal $ 22.00
$ 22.00
51910 03/24/2016 HACH
Water Quality Supplies $ 1,517.55
$ 1,517.55
51911 03/24/2016 IMAGE SOURCE
Monthly Copy Count $ 141.37
$ 141.37
51913 03/24/2016 JCG TECHNOLOGIES
Audio Recording Software for Board Room $ 2,980.00
$ 2,980.00
51914 03/24/2016 KENNEDY/JENKS CONSULTANTS INC
Lift Station 1 Replacement $ 13,208.87
$ 13,208.87
51915 03/24/2016 ONESOURCE DISTRIBUTORS, LLC
Huntley PS - Parts for Repairs after Break-in $ 922.78
$ 922.78
51916 03/24/2016 PETTY CASH
After Hours Meal - Brian Fonsec $ 9.63
After Hours Meal - John Maccarrone $ 22.80
After Hours Meal - John Maccarrone $ 25.21
Training - Jeff Stacy $ 13.26
Propane for Forklift $ 25.86
After Hours Meals - 2 Employees - John Maccarrone $ 14.22
Mail Oakcrest Annual Report $ 8.55
Mail Monthly SWRCB Report $ 8.11
Training Expense - Jeff Stacy $ 15.00
After Hours Meal - 4 Employees - Ramon Zuniga $ 32.75
After Hours Meal - Brian Fonseca $ 8.18
Propane for Forklift $ 25.86
Mail Monthly SWRCB Report $ 8.33
Propane for Forklift $ 20.80
Training Expense - Ramon Zuniga $ 27.09
Training Expense - Jeff Stacy $ 26.83
Training Expense - John Maccarrone $ 24.49

@
w
-t
.O!
w0
<N



rainsow municipaL water oidvg@gnda Packet Page 230 of 238

FOR BOARD INFORMATION
March 31, 2016

GENERAL LEDGER
Check No Check Date Payee and Description Check Amount
51917 03/24/2016 PETTY CASH
Drinks for Employee Training Workshop $ 15.03
Brake Clips $ 4.27
Brake Drums $ 20.00
Reimburse Tammy Rakusan for Toaster for District $ 37.71
Reimburse Dawn Washburn for Board Secretary Luncheon and Mileage $ 39.16
Employee Relatons - 1st Quarter Birthday Luncheon $ 10.68
Drink for Panelist on Accounting Interview Panel $ 1.00
Reimburse Dawn Washburn for Mileage to Workshop $ 20.74
Drink for Panelist on Assocaite Engineering Interview Panel $ 1.00
Reimburse Marc Walker for Lunches at Training Seminar $ 24.40
Reimburse Kenny Diaz for Lunches at Training Seminar $ 24.83
Fuel Filters for Small Equipment 3 36.29
Reimburse Dawn Washburn for Framing of Bob Lucy's Commendation $ 32.40
$ 267.51
51918 03/24/2016 PITNEY BOWES, INC
Monthly Lease Agreement $ 686.82
$ 686.82
51919 03/24/2016 PSOMAS
Gird/Monserate Hill Waterline Design $ 5,877.50
$ 5,877.50
51920 03/24/2016 R.J. SAFETY SUPPLY CO, INC.
4 Channel Impact Needed for Confined Space Operations $ 1,020.60
$ 1,020.60
51921 03/24/2016 SAN DIEGO COUNTY ASSESSOR/RECORDER/CLERK
Acct #23-1822-5 - Recording Release of Lien $ 13.00
Acct #10-3865-0 - Recording Release of Lien $ 13.00
$ 26.00
51922 03/24/2016 SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC
Monthiv Gas and Electric Service $ 32.997.16
Monthlv Gas and Electric Service $ 1.072.47
Monthlv Gas and Electric Service $ 3.934.65
$ 38.004.28
51923 03/24/2016 SHEPHERD & STAATS. INC.
Administrative Services $ 2.500.00
Prebillina for Postaae. Reproduction and Envelooes for Mailina $ 500.00
$ 3.000.00
51924 03/24/2016 SHERRY MULLENNIX
Reimburse Retired Emplovee Health Ins - March 2016 $ 600.00

$ 600.00



rainsow municipAL waTer ifkg@nda Packet Page 231 of 238
FOR BOARD INFORMATION
March 31, 2016

GENERAL LEDGER
Check No Check Date Payee and Description Check Amount
51925 03/24/2016 SHRED-ITUSALLC
Service Aareement $ 121.28
$ 121.28
51926 03/24/2016 STREAMLINE
Monthlv Web Manacement Fee $ 300.00
$ 300.00
51927 03/24/2016 TIME WARNER CABLE
Monthlv Internet Connection $ 1.250.00
$ 1.250.00
51928 03/24/2016 USA BLUEBOOK
Dechlorination Tablets & Table Mat $ 796.48
$ 796.48
51929 03/24/2016 VERIZON WIRELESS
Monthlv Cellular Service $ 1.907.73
$ 1.907.73
51930 03/24/2016 WEST COAST GEOTECHNICAL. INC
Afton Farms Waterline Extension - Enaineerina Geoloaist Services $ 6.684.00
$ 6.684.00
51931 03/24/2016 XEROX FINANICAL SERVICES
Monthlv Lease Aareer Monthlv Lease Aareement $ 567.14
$ 567.14
Total for 3/24/2016: $ 114.790.55
ACH 03/31/2016 LINCOLN NATIONAL
RETIREMENT $ 3.462.50
RETIREMENT $ 8.566.50
$ 12.029.00
51912 03/31/2016 AFLAC
HEALTH AND ACCIDENTAL INSURANCE $ 159.06
$ 159.06
51932 03/31/2016 COLONIAL LIFE & ACCIDENT INS.
HEALTH AND ACCIDENTAL INSURANCE $ 60.71
$ 60.71
Total for 3/31/2016: $ 12.599.27

Reoort Total (137 checks): $ 737.082.12



Agenda Packet Page 232 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 233 of 238

NOILVAN3IWWOI S.AOM
908 30 ONINVYS HO4 NYNGHSYM NMVYQ 3SYNTINITY

AININDINDI TVIAS Y04 S¥3LTH4 13Nd

HVYNINIS
ONINIVYL 1V SFHONNT ¥O4 ZVIAa ANN3IX ISHNINIFY

HVYNIW3S
ONINIVYL LY STHONNT YOd YINTYM DUV ISHNGINITY

13NvVd
M3IIAY3LINI ¥IINION3T 31VID0SSY NO 1S1738Vd ¥O4 MNINA

dOHSHYOM OL 3OV Y04 NYNGHSYM NMVQ 3SHNaNIZY

T3INVd MIIAYILNI ONILNNODIDV NO LSIMINVd 04 ANIHA

NO3HIONNT AVAH1YI8 "¥10 1ST - SNOILV13Y 33A0TdNI

3IOVINUN B NOFHONNT

AYV13dD3S a¥v0d Y04 NYNGHSYM NMVYA ISHNGINITY

JO1I¥1sIa
JHL Y04 ¥31SVOL HO4 NVSMXIVY AWINVL 3SHNGNITY

SIWNYA ivya

SdIT0 vy

dOHSYYOM ONINIVYL 33A0TdNT HOd SHNIYA

1ivl3id

910¢/TC/E

9to0T/12/€

910T/L1/€

910Z/LT/E

910Z/91/¢

9102/01/€

9102/L/€

910Z/€/¢

9102/1/¢

9to0e/ve/e

910¢/ve/T
9102/22/C

9102/6/

Jiva

NYNGHSYM NMVQ

AJVIS 4431

ZVIG ANNIN

YINTVM DUVIN

3SIM H3JINNIP

NYNGHSYM NMVQ

ISIM ¥34INNAr

HSNgG ,aN3Y

NYNGHSVM NMVQ

NVSMIVY AWNVL

INOYYVIOVIN NHOT

INOYYVIOVIN NHOT

HSNE ,IN3Y

33AVd

€TS995-T¥-€0

000€9-9¢-€0

00€SL-TY-€0

000€SL-TY-€0

0002.-Tv-€0

00€SL-TY-€0

000TL-Tv-€0

€T595-TV-€0

00€SL-TY-€0

000¢L-T1-€0

CCre9-9¢-€0

0007L-9¢€-€0

€TS95-TY-€0

438WNN 100V 19

15°L9C

ov'ece

6C°9¢

€8'vC

ovr've

vL0C

00T

89°0T

9T'6€

TLLE

00°0¢

v

€0°ST

INNOWYV

$

$

TvioL

[4?

T

(0]

#N3L

*S1d1303Y

9T/TZ/€ HONOYHL 9T/6/T - HSVD ALidd

101440



Agenda Packet Page 234 of 238



Agenda Packet Page 235 of 238

9zLIT

0LT'v20T
79L9SS‘T
¥58'v90°T
LTT'E8
918°0¢
09
T9t'SE
0€€‘86T
918816
980°S0C
feiol
pueio

alA1924/any Aq |ero) puelg

OO0 000000 Oo0OOo
OO0 000000 O0OOo

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

NNr AVIN  ddv

8t1's6
€29'vST
580801
SvL'L
v1e
S
18,
8EL'TT
LTT'V6
SE9'6T
VN

L15°TS
Tr8’LS
S86°8€
£999
96L
14
¥81°T
1658
8¥9'SE
7s0'0t
934

6L£°69
09€t8
L0L'9Y
TL0'8
8¢8
S
T00‘T
6588
¥09'8t
TLL'TT
Nvr

00696
v19'T9T
¥82'60T
009°8
1v9°C
9
190°€
¥90'CT
L5998
9901C
Jaa

otL'ott
9/8'/8T
866'EET
¥99°6
66C'E
v
88L's
0€€91
L8L'601
Evy'se
AON

SE0'SET
S00'26T
T00ZET
756'6
€L0°E
8
¥66'€
Teete
90T
£85'ST
120

9T0¢-STOC YV3IA 1VOSH

So|eg I9leM\

079291
18¥'LST
SY1'88t
£88°0T
98Y'C
0]
1€6°S
1vY'6€E
SOP'EST
rES'EE
d3s

LOV'EVT
069°CTC
[{3: 877"
6L7°0T
6LL'T
01
ov0°L
€20'LE
LTT'VTT
99t
onv

vLS'8YT
1LT'SPT
952291
TSETT
€LL'T
8
0899
796'C€
SOT'EvT
95€'0€
nr

4S ¢60S
as 9¢€ort
JS 9te
4N 88
Sl ¢
at
ND L€
IND 9¢¢
oV €0t
av €09
9po) 1asn SIS 4O
Amuenp



Agenda Packet Page 236 of 238

%001 %01 %6 %L %S % %S %V %8 %01 %2l %EL %cl G1-900¢
ySy've L'S52s'e y'9se'e L'ye8’L 8/82'L 6°186 ive'l 10101 G/¥6'L Sv.le'C L'v68'C L'¥90'e ¥'S¥0'e ‘BAY IA OL
%001 %01 %6 %8 %S %S %S %¥ %9 %6 %cCl %2CL %Cl Sl-1102
¥00°L2 y6L'e v'LL6L 08L°'L ¥'8.0°} €v.0'L 0'980°'L 1'9/8 G8ye'l 9'9¢€6'L 9'89¥'C G'€L9'e 9'695°C BAY A S
995°02 0'886'L 0'v29'L (\WAZAN 0'lce 0¢8s 0°06¥ 0'66€'L 0°20L°L 0'L¥s'e 0'L0e'c oeev'e 0'8€6'C G6-7661
858've 8'68.'C 1'698' §'8LLe 1°20L L'6vy £'e9e’l 9y9€’L 92112 ¥'9z8'c 9'/£8'C 2'€66'C S0€L'C 96-G66 1
VA4 14 y'les'e ¥'v89' L'€€2'e o'ov8‘e 1'866 0c8l S'Shy G'€0e'l ¥'188'C 1'8¥8'¢ 9'666'¢C £002'c 16-9661
ovl'el 6'5.0'C 6'502'L €662l 1865 L'Lel 9'LEY §'9es €'689°) 9'60¥'C 0905 0'z.0't 0610t 86-2661
9Gl'‘se 0265z L'sev'e 0veL') 02851 €8LL'l 7'68¥°L S'ye'L TYeEr'l ¥'90v'2 z0e8‘e gove'e 6'9.0°€ 66-8661
858'62 6vee's S'evl'e g'l0L'c 1'862'L 2’688 €0r8'L L'08e'C 0'6LL'C z'es9'e £'619'C 8vrl'e 6'eSl'e 00-6661
6ze'Le €6lLLE 0'ese'e 0'199'L 0'€L0'L gL 9'2.02'L 6clee 2'c98'L 6'068°¢ y've8'C §'826'c L'zLe'e 10-000C
9e9‘Le 0'69¢'e 0'9¥8'e 0'999'C 0'66€'C 0'609'L o'sll'e 0'929°L 0ves'l 0's6l'e o'LLL'e 0'682'c o'Lov'e ¢0-100¢2
166'8¢ 0'e80'c 0'296°L olel'e 0224 0°0€9'L o'lse'e 0'see’L 00LL°) 0ve6'e 0'65L'e 0'c66'c 0'/86'¢ £0-200C
0og‘ee £'8eT'e 0'66.'c 0'818C 0've8‘L 0988 o %14 oevL'L 0'LL6°) 0'e6l'e 0'9v9'e 0'986'¢ 0'00.'¢ 0-€00¢
€12'S¢ L'8ye'e 2696 0's8L'e 9'8.¥y 6859 ¢'95S 68701 8'L2L £'€80'C 6'658'c LivL'Y eelL'e S0-¥002
L0s‘0e 0's62'e 0519°C 0228 0818 9218t [ 1" 9'coP'e L'9gl'e ¥'G61'C Yv6L'e 1998 9'126't 90-5002
12483 L'e9g'e 9v6L'e G'895°C gelLL'e ¢'Li6 1'62€C 9911 g'colL'e 1'2€6'C €'865'€ 0e8lL'e 0ve0'y 10-9002
6le'le 8'0v.L'e €98l 0'zie'e 0'619°'L 0'Sly 0°09S 0195 0'86¥'C 0'690°c o'Lav'e 0'286'c 0'ssL'e 80-2002
152'92 T.8¢e'C oeclL's L'6EV'C 0°066°L 6'vc6 TSl 0058 L'€20'C 1'266'C oovL'e 0'858'C 0'98.'C 60-8002
L0v'Te 1'00S'C 0'896°L 0ceL'L 0988 €8¢ [AVA:] 6'6€L €'1.e'C T'€L8'C S'¥00°c 6°060'¢ L'6LL'E 01-600¢
y6v'8L 1'650'C 0'€L6'l 6€IY'L S'LvS 1668 0'9e8 7’669 0'82z'L L'60€'L 0'2s‘e €'¢.5'C €oLY'e L1-010¢
¥€8'02 6'v6L'C 0'210'C 8'€LLL 0056 oveL'L g'Lec’t oveLl 9698 z'1e6'l 9'eey'e L'ev9'e Sv19'e cl-Loe
€0v'ee 1'812'¢ €116'L zese'e 8'L2v'L 0682 991, 1’852 G'6v6°'L 6'.82'C €06.C WA zlav'e el-cioe
yee'ee ¥'98¢' 8'6£5'C 8'0€L'g L'Ll6 0v0E'L 0'898°L L20€'L 9vLE'L vs8'L €'€6E'C 6'6EV'C 6CL8'e y1-€10¢
290'02 L9191 0'08¢'L 2096°L L'68Y'L €'€0e'l 9'/8. 968y 8'¥8E'L 1°00€'e 0’602 1299 £'esh'e Sl-¥i0¢
Sv6'Ll 026 9'8vg'L 9'8eY 8°'/68 v'2LZ'L £'0LS8'L £816'L 0'696°L £'99.'L 9L-GL02
|eloL aunp Aepy Jady youep Aenigaq fenuer 1aquiada@ JaqWIBAON 130300 Jaquydeg  isnbny Ainp ¥VY3IA
1334 3HOV

aseyoind Jajep

VYMOAS Wolj saseyaind Jayep

AMIN moquiey



Agenda Packet Page 237 of 238

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Committed to Excellence

SEWER EQUIVALENT DWELLING UNITS (EDUs) STATUS REPORT

MARCH 2016
STATUS SUMMARY EDUs

Total Treatment Capacity Purhcased from Oceanside 8,333.33

Less 5% Contractual Allowance 416.67

EDUs Set Aside by Board for Emergencies 60.00

EDUs Connected 3,899.40

EDUs Unconnected 1,304.44

Total EDUs Available for Purchase: 2,652.83

CAPACITY
DEVELOPMENTS WITH UNCONNECTED EDUs EDUs FEES PAID

Others (Misc. SFR) 17.20| $ 298,420
Horse Creek Ridge/ Passarelle 850.57| $ -
Palomar College 100.00| $ -
Polo Club 59.85[ $ 1,022,775
Pala Mesa Highlands 124.001 $ 2,151,400
Golf Green Estates 102.46| $ 1,743,180
Lake Vista Estates 2.76] $ 46,150
Vista Valley Country Club 5.00| $ 86,750
Silver Holdings 9.00| $ 153,810
Olive Hill Estates 33.60[ $ 574,224
Total Unconnected: 1,304.44| $ 6,076,709

0:\12_Public\2. SEWER_WATER App#Log_Capacity\SEWER\EDU Count\EDU Board Update.xlIsx



Agenda Packet Page 238 of 238



	AGENDA
	March 10, 2016 - Special Board Meeting
	March 22, 2016 - Regular Board Meeting
	Summary of Formal Board of Directors' Meeting March 24, 2016
	Budget and Finance Committee
	Communications Committee
	Engineering Committee
	9A - Contract Signer
	9B - Establishing Salary Table
	9C - Engineering Committee Appointment
	10 - Golf Green Estates
	11 - Quitclaim of Easements
	12 - Joint Agreement
	13 - 2016 Water and Wastewater Master Plan
	14 - North County Irrigated Lands Group
	15 - Administrative Code Section 8.12
	16 - Paperless Board Packets
	17 - LAFCO Runoff Election
	18 - Robert's Rules of Order
	19 - Administrative Code Chapters 2.03 and 4.10
	20A - General Manager Comments
	20B - Communications
	20C - Construction and Maintenance Comments
	20D - Water Operations Comments
	20E - Wastewater Comments
	20F - Operations Comments
	20G - Engineering Comments
	20H - Customer Service Comments
	20I - Safety Comments
	20J - Human Resources Comments
	20K - Finance Manager Comments



